
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 3
GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

SR 6 A General Manager Rpt 5
SR 6 A 2013 Gm Rpt Ferguson Group 6
SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt Attach Sch of Cash Invest 7
SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt Debt Schedule 8
SR 6 A Fire Chief Report 9
SR 6 A Fire Stats September 2013 10
SR 6 A GM Face and Res Rpt 11
SR 6 A GM Rpt Admin Svcs Office Rpt 12
SR 6 A UM Mgr Rpt 13
SR 6 A Dis Eng Rpt 15
SR 6 A Attachment 1 to Well Level 17
SR 6 A Attachment 2 to District Engineers 2013 09 01
Production 18
SR 6 A Attachment 3 2013 09 15 SR Well Level Chart 19
SR 6 A Attachment 4 to District Engineers SS Creek
Levels Statistical Chart 20
SR 6 A Attachment 5 to District Engineers SS Annual
Levels 1998 to Mid Sept 2013 21
SR 6 A Attachment 6 to Distric Engineers SS Creek
2013 Min Max Avg Chart 22
SR 6 A Attachment 7 to District Engineers SS Levels
Past 5 Yrs Chart 23

Consideration to Approve Expenditures for August 2013
SR 7 A Expenditure Rpt for Aug 2013 24
SR 7 A Expend Rpt Dept Codes 34

Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular
Meeting August 22 2013 Special Meeting September 9 2013

SR 7 B 2013 0822 Draft Minutes 35
SR 7 B 2013 0909 Draft Minutes 39

Consider Resolution 39 2013 Authorizing a Money Market Bank
Account at Heritage Oaks Bank

SR 7 C Appv Opening Money Mkt Acct 41
SR 7 C 39 2013 Open Mkt Acct 43

Discussion and Reconsideration of Extension of Intent to Serve
Letters for 16 Multi Family EDUs Applicant Pacific Western
Bank APN 024 191 062

SR 9 A Discussion and Reconsideration Intent to Serve
Extension Pacific Western Bank 44
SR 9 A Attachment of Parcel Map 45
SR 9 A Pacific Western Bank Letter 46
SR 9 A Attachment 2008 Agreement 49
SR 9 A Copy of August 2013 Staff Report Pacific
Western Bank 58

1



Discussion on the Status of Intent to Serve Letters Wait Lists
and Update of the Existing Commitment List

SR 9 B Discussion and Consideration on Status of ITS
WL 60
SR 9 B Exhibit B December 20 2012 List with Strikeouts
and Proposed Changes 63
SR 9 B Exhibit B 9 26 2013 Update to Non Active
Service Commitment List 65
SR 9 B Exhibit D Existing Commitment Active Service
Meter Designation list 09042013 67
SR 9 B Meter Designation Summary for Exhibit D 157
SR 9 B Grand Total Utlity Billing Summary Page July
August 2013 158

Consideration of An Agreement For Consultant Services with
CDM Smith for Hydro geological Modeling of the Lower San
Simeon Creek Aquifer to Support Development of the Long
Term Water Supply Project

SR 9 C CDM Smith Consulting Agreement for Geo
Hydrological Modeling 159
SR 9 C Attachment CDM Smith Consult Svcs Agmt 160

2



   

 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, September 26, 2013– 12:30 PM 
VETERANS MEMORIAL BUILDING, 1000 MAIN ST., CAMBRIA, CA 

 

AGENDA 
This agenda is prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. By listing a topic on 
this agenda, the District’s Board of Directors has expressed its intent to discuss and act on each item. In 
addition to any action identified in the summary description of each item, the action that may be taken by 
the Board of Directors shall include: a referral to staff with specific requests for information; continuance; 
specific direction to staff concerning the policy or mission of the item; discontinuance of consideration; 
authorization to enter into negotiations and execute agreements pertaining to the item; adoption or 
approval; and disapproval. 
 
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the 
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business 
hours. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents shall be made available in alternative formats 
to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any questions regarding the agenda. 
 
1. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Establishment of Quorum 
D. Report from Closed Session 
 

2. SPECIAL REPORTS  
A. SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT REPORT 
B. FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 

 (Estimated Time: 5 minutes) 
 

3. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS/PRESENTATIONS  
(Estimated Time: 15 minutes) 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction 
of the Board but not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot 
discuss or act on items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips 
(available at the entry) should be submitted to the District Clerk. 

(Estimated Time: 20 minutes) 
 

5. AGENDA REVIEW: ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND PULLED CONSENT ITEMS 
(Estimated Time: 5 minutes) 

 
6. MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS  

A. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
B. MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

(Estimated Time: 10 minutes) 
 

3



CCSD Agenda 
Thursday, September 26, 2013 
Page 2 

7. CONSENT AGENDA  
All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to 
discuss a consent item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be 
made. Such items are pulled for separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a 
whole is acted upon. 
 
A. Consideration to Approve Expenditures for August 2013 

 
B. Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

August 22 2013 Special Meeting September 9 2013 
 

C. Consider Resolution 39 2013 Authorizing a Money Market Bank Account 
at Heritage Oaks Bank  
 

(Estimated Time: 15 minutes) 
 

8. HEARINGS AND APPEALS  
 

 (Estimated Time: 0 minutes) 
 
9. REGULAR BUSINESS  

 
A. Discussion and Reconsideration of Extension of Intent to Serve Letters for 

16 Multi Family EDUs Applicant Pacific Western Bank APN 024 191 062 
 

B. Discussion on the Status of Intent to Serve Letters Wait Lists and Update 
of the Existing Commitment List 
 

C. Consideration of An Agreement For Consultant Services with CDM Smith 
for Hydro geological Modeling of the Lower San Simeon Creek Aquifer to 
Support Development of the Long Term Water Supply Project  
    
 

 (Estimated Time: 60 minutes) 
 

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S)  
Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or 
request a formal agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal 
action can be taken except to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. 
 

 
11. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 6 
Agency Designated Representative District Counsel  
Title Position of Unrepresented Employee General Manager 
 

4



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6. A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: September 26, 2013   Subject: MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 
Administration 
 

 Listed below is my General Manager’s Report for September 22, 2013 in addition to 
other activities that I am working on with the assistance and support of CCSD Ad hoc 
Committees, Staff, and District Counsel. 
 

 
 Staff has spent the majority of its time since the August 22, 2013 closely 

monitoring production well levels and monitoring well levels  
 Staff has spent a great deal of time since the September Board Meeting in 

preparation for 2 special Board Meeting.  
 Staff has spent a great deal of time since the September Board Meeting keeping 

the Board apprised of well levels 
 Staff continues to evaluate and work diligently on proposed short term water 

alternative solutions.  
 Staff has been able to operate the SR4 on a regular basis. Staff is working on 

interfacing the WBE monitoring well water level thru radio communication to turn 
off and on the SR4 well when the level of the WBE well rises above the three foot 
mark.  

 Staff has implemented fully and or in part 20 of the 22 Demand Management 
Measures that were identified as part of the Board approved Water Efficiency 
Plan produced by Maddaus Water Management.  

 Staff has completed training relating to conducting commercial audits for water 
efficiency purposes. Staff has started audit the highest 25 users for commercial 
lodging.  

 Staff continues to make major infrastructure repairs and improvements to areas 
identified as part of the CCTV process.  

 Please find attached the recent correspondence from the Ferguson Group dated 
September 18, 2013 regarding Government Shutdown and FY 2014 
Appropriations, Water Resources Legislation (Corps of Engineers authorizations 
and funding), and TFG – Cambria Action Summary 

 
 
 

I attended the following meetings and or community events on behalf of the CCSD since 
CCSD’s last Board of Directors’ Meeting on August 22, 2013. 

 
 I met with the Water Alternatives Ad-Hoc Committee. 

 
Attachment: The Ferguson Group LLC Correspondence 09-18-2013 

 

5



6



7



8



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING SEPTEMBER 26, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
 

Response information is attached and represents activities for the month of August 2013. 
Progress updates and highlights regarding the different programs and services our Department 
provides are identified below: 
 
Prevention and Education (August 2013) 

 02 residential new and remodel fire plan reviews were completed. 
 06 residential and commercial technical fire inspections were conducted.  
 00 hydrant system flow test. 
 08 engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted. 
 03 public education event 
 03 residential smoke detectors were installed and or the batteries changed. 

 
Meetings and Affiliations (August 2013) 

 EMS Operations    Aug 01  0900-1100, SLO 
 SLO County Chiefs Assn Meeting  Aug 07  0900-1300, Los Osos 
 NCFC Meeting    Aug 12  0900-1200, Cayucos 
 Community Wildfire Planning   Aug 27  1400-1600, Cambria 

 
                                                                                                                                      
Operations 
 
Fire Department staff recently applied for a FEMA SAFER Grant to provide improved staffing 
and reduce overtime within the department.  If successful, the grant would provide the 
Department with 3 full time Firefighter Paramedics for a period of 2 years.  The total value of the 
grant would be roughly $395,000 and would fund all wages and benefits for the personnel 
allowing the Department to operate with the NFPA standard crew of 4 firefighters. The 
Department minimum staffing level of 3 personnel would not change allowing for a savings in 
funds typically earmarked for overtime. 
 
Fire Engineer Ryan Maloney recently attended the National Fire Academy (NFA) at the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) National Emergency Training Center (NETC) in 
Emmitsburg Maryland.  He received advanced training in Fire Scene Investigation and while on 
campus was selected to serve on the September 11 Honor Guard.  This was quite an honor for 
Ryan and the Cambria CSD Fire Department as the NFA hosts Firefighters and Fire 
Departments from around the world.  Ryan represented the Department and our community 
very well. 
 
 
Prevention 
 
The Fire Department is currently working with SLO County Fire Department in developing a 
comprehensive Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP).  The initial framework for the 
countywide plan was grant funded by the San Luis Obispo Fire Safe Council and involved 
stakeholders from around the County.  Annexes specific to each operational area (such as 
Cambria) are being developed locally by the individual agencies.  The plan will provide a 
comprehensive view of the predicted fire behavior and firefighting resources throughout the San 
Luis Obispo County area.  The plan will eventually be available on-line to use as a preplanning 
tool and informational resource.  The existence of the CWPP will place the SLO County 
communities as “fire wise” and will open up opportunities for future grant funding for wildland fire 
mitigation. 
 

9



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories 13-Jan 13-Feb 13-Mar 13-Apr 13-May 13-Jun 13-Jul 13-Aug 13-Sep 13-Oct 13-Nov Dec-13  Totals

Fire 0 1 0 0 0 4 1 0 6

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical* 30 41 33 33 30 46 34 47 294

Vehicle TC 0 3 0 1 1 5 2 0 12

Hazardous Situations 4 1 1 7 4 2 1 2 22

Public Service Assist 10 9 7 13 15 8 12 7 81

False Alarms 10 3 7 9 11 8 10 9 67

Agency Assist 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Mutual Aid 2 0 0 0 1 2 4 1 10

Auto Aid 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Investigations 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2

Monthly Response Totals 58 58 49 63 64 77 64 66 499

Cumulative Totals 116 165 228 292 369 433 499 499

10



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – September 26, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT FACILITIES AND RESOURCES 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

o Fiscalini Ranch: 
 Bluff Trail: 

 On August 27th and 28th the California Conservation Corp cleared 
back 4 feet of ice plant off of the trail. District Staff assisted the 
Corp with equipment (atv, dump trailer and tractor) and staff. 

 The CCC were hired by the Friends of the Fiscalini Ranch through 
a $1,000 grant from the Cambria Tourism Board and $400 from 
their own funds. The CCC donated an extra day of work.  

 When the two days were over 5 trailer loads of ice plant were 
hauled away. Another great example of multiple agency’s working 
together!  

 Huntington Trail: 
 Several areas on this trail were filled in due to erosion. 

 Wetlands: 
 Staff has been working on repairing a fence that runs between the 

Bluff trail and the Marine Terrace trail. This fence will help funnel 
walkers away from sensitive wetlands areas and through 
designated trails. 

o Administration Office: 
 Two offices were painted and carpets washed 

o Retrofit West Public Restroom and Vet’s hall: 
 Staff worked with Cortney Upthegrove in retrofitting the West Public 

Restroom and Vet’s hall. New water efficient toilets, urinals, aerators and 
faucet fixtures were installed. 

o Vet’s Hall: 
 46 events were held at Veterans Memorial Building since last Board 

Meeting. Among those events were: Pinedorado-Follies rehearsals, 
Pinedorado Celebration and American Legion Patriots Day. 

 Semiannual fire system test was conducted 
 

o Pinedorado: 
 Staff assisted Lions Club with parking on East Fiscalini Ranch, Parking on 

Dog Park, Sunday Car show and miscellaneous event’s at Vet’s hall 
grounds. 

o Facilities  Yard: 
 Exterior Building: 

 Exterior of the building was painted. 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Carlos Mendoza 
Facilities and Resources Supervisor/ 
Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Manager 
 

11



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ SEPTEMBER 26, 2013 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES OFFICER 

ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

Human Resources:     
 
We are preparing to hold interviews of the candidates for the Water Operator T3/D2 position.  
The Wastewater Operator position has been extended to operators who hold a Grade one 
(1) license and will close on 9/19.     
 
Utility Bills: 
 
Due to an error some utility bills were returned to the CCSD.  The billing date has been 
extended for all customers to ensure a sufficient turnaround time for customers to remit their 
payments in a timely manner.  The due date is now October 15, 2013.   
 
  
Retrofit Point Bank: 
 
As of 9/1/2013 we have handed out 807 showerheads and 832 aerators. Commercial 
customers have received 204 aerators and 346 showerheads.  Residential customers have 
received 628 aerators, and 443 showerheads.     
 
The retrofit point bank total at this time is 9543.   

 

Rebates:    6772 

Retrofit upon resale:   2771 
Total remaining points:  9543 
 
Conservation:   
 
Conservation meetings continue to be held weekly.   
 
Following the recent purchase of a computer and the software necessary to conduct water 
audits for CCSD customers, training was scheduled.  Senior Water Operator Justin Smith 
and Water Conservation Specialist Cortney Upthegrove participated in a training exercise 
with Michelle Maddaus on Tuesday, September 17, and Wednesday, September 18.  Five 
(5) local businesses allowed CCSD staff and Michelle Maddaus to audit their properties.  We 
greatly appreciate their volunteering their businesses to participate in the audit process.  
Cortney will be providing them with the results of the audit in approximately one (1) week.  
Staff will continue to work with the commercial community to schedule more businesses for 
audits as well as with residential customers for landscaping audits.   
 
The Vet’s Hall, Fire Department and Public Restrooms located on Cornwall have been 
completely retrofitted.  
 
Public Outreach: 
 
Staff with working on ordering the water conservation public outreach notices for commercial 
establishments.   
 
Submitted by, 
Monique Madrid 
Administrative Services Officer 

12



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING SEPTEMBER 26, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

UTILITIES MANAGER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Water Department:  
 

 
 Staff has been operating well SR4 utilizing the new Opto 22 PLC program. Operators 

continues working closely with Alpha electric fine tuning and making necessary 
programming improvements to maximizing operational efficiency. 

 
 Staff installing radio transmitter/antenna at the WBE monitoring well which will allow 

operators to receive and record real time level data. This will assist operators with 
SR4 well operation by decreasing down time associated with manually checking the 
level and operating SR4 Well.  

 
 Installed new well pump VFD controller at SR4 well. 

 
 
 Bob Wright construction finished new storage and equipment handling facility located 

at the WWTP.  
 
 Staff repaired service lines located on Cornwall, Norwich, Main Street, and Croydon 

Ln.  
 
 Dechance Construction installed a fire hydrant and repaired a water main leak 

located on Croydon Ln.   
 
 To improve water conservation staff is closely monitoring and reviewing water meter 

usage and investigating any abnormal usage that may be caused by water leaks. 
 
 Alpha electric replaced booster pump motor starters #1 & #2 located at the Stuart 

Street Tank. In addition, staff installed a new HMI pump controller and power fault 
recorder to improve overall operation efficiency. 

 
 Cambria Community Service District has hired William Bellis with ATS INC to 

perform a dive inspection at both Stuart Street tanks and Fiscallini Tank. 
 
 Staff met with the CA Department of Public Health to review water system sanitary 

survey report and perform field investigation. 
 
 Contacted J.R. Environmental to discuss analyzer calibration preventive 

maintenance program.  
 
 Scheduled ATS Inc to perform internal tank inspection for both Stuart street tanks.  
 

 
 

 
 

13



 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Department: 
 

 Dechance Construction repaired WWTP flow equalization bypass valve. 
 

 Staff ordered and replaced 8 inch check valve and rotating assembly for influent 
pump #3. 

 
 Staff installed new belt guards on all three influent pumps. 
 
 Alpha electric installed new VFD for R.A.S. pump #2. 
 
 Propipe Inc. completed the first 20% of the collection system CCTV/Hydro cleaning 

project. Staff currently working with terrain Inc project management on all repairs 
found as a result of that project. 

 
 Dechance construction repaired sewer lines located in Fern and Strawberry Canyon. 
 
 Buddy Campo finished improving sewer easement access located in East ranch, 

Fern Canyon, and Strawberry Canyon. 
 
 In order to improve conservation efforts staff is installing a new membrane filtration 

system on the Biosolids dewatering unit. This will allow us to use wastewater effluent 
(non-potable water) instead of potable water. 

 
 Completed annual laboratory certification ELAP inspection. 
 
 Staff repaired 4 inch flow meter for non-potable well 9P7. 
 
 Staff installed new air relief valve (ARV) on the main effluent line located within the 

sprayfield. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Administrative: 
 
 

 Continue on-going weekly meetings with both Water and Wastewater supervisors. 
 

 Attended meeting with CA SWRCB.  
 

 
Mike Finnigan 
Utilities Manager 

14



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – SEPTEMBER 26, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

DISTRICT ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
The following table summarizes activities from August 22, 2013 to September 19, 2013.  A 
summary discussion on well levels also follows. 
 
 

Item No. Description Activities/Project Status 
1 Assistance to water & 

wastewater operations. 
Submitted draft master agreement with Terrain consulting 
(Paul Reichardt) to legal counsel for review.  The intent of 
this agreement is to allow for issuance of specific task 
order authorizations for miscellaneous consulting 
assistance.  Initial task orders would include assessing 
the recent Phase I CCTV sewer inspection work to 
develop follow up repair recommendations.  A second 
initial task order would be issued to provide management 
and inspection of lateral repairs, which were found to 
have separated from a main line sewer located below 
Avon Creek behind Orlando Drive.  These lateral 
connection repairs are needed before the onset of the 
rainy season to avoid wet periods when the creek flows, 
and to eliminate them as a source of infiltration and inflow 
into the sanitary sewer system and treatment plant. 
 
Met with SWRCB staff in Sacramento on September 11, 
2013 to review the 2011 calendar year sanitary sewer 
overflows and provided follow up information to legal 
counsel. 
 
Assisted in analysis of well SR-4 operation, which allowed 
for its operation when levels in the Windsor Bridge 
monitoring wells are above a 3-foot minimum.  
Coordinated with Cleath-Harris Geologists in the 
completion of soil borings on 9/17/2013, which were used 
in developing supply options described in the 9/20/2013 
special meeting staff report (3 A).    
 
Pending items include: 
 
Completing short term water supply options.   
 
Developing a request for quotation to incorporate water 
and sewer facilities into an updated GIS system. 
 
Developing a request for proposal for a wastewater 
treatment plant master plan.   

2 Sanitary sewer extension to 
well SR-4 treatment facility. 

Restarted design and appraisal efforts after receiving 
direction to not include a sodium bisulfite chemical feed 
system.  Operations had requested this feature, and final 
design completion was subject to whether a related 
building and storage for this chemical would be 
acceptable to the school district.   

3 Rodeo Grounds Pump Station Currently working on Coastal Development Permit 

15



 
 

 

Replacement and Stuart Street 
Tank 3. 

applications to the County.  Revised preliminary layout 
drawings were received from RBF on 7/19/2013.   

4 Long-term water supply project Held conference call with ACE and consulting project 
team to resolve the lack of Federal funding to more fully 
address hydro-geological questions on the brackish water 
alternative. Since no additional Federal funding is 
available, a separate contract is being proposed directly 
with CDM Smith for hydro-geological modeling, This 
contract, along with its proposed funding by the CCSD, is 
part of today’s agenda discussion items. 
 
Executed contract with The Ferguson Group for advocacy 
assistance.  Discussed project funding needs and the 
status of the Federal WRDA bill with Mike Miller of The 
Ferguson Group.  A summary report by The Ferguson 
Group is part of today’s General Manager’s report.  

5 Development and remodels  Seven remodel reviews were completed during this 
period. 

 
 
The attached table shows the current Santa Rosa and San Simeon supply well levels as of 
September 16, 2013. As of this date, the San Simeon wells were at 2.84 feet above sea level, 
and the Santa Rosa well SR4 had not been read due to its operating period not matching that 
day’s staffing schedule.  However, on September 15, 2013, Well SR-4 was at 49.8 feet above 
sea level.   
 
The attached production table shows that from January 2013 through August 2013, 449 acre-
feet had been produced by the San Simeon well field, and 59 acre-feet had been produced by 
Santa Rosa well SR4. This results in a total production from both sources of 508 acre-feet. The 
January through August 2013 production total is close to what it was during 2007 for this same 
time of year.  For discussion purposes, the total annual production was 748 acre-feet for 2007. 
In comparison, the most recent 2012 total annual production was 724.74 acre feet. 
 
Attachments: 
 

 Well Levels Summary as of September 16, 2013 

 Annual Production through the month of August 2013 

 Line plot of Santa Rosa well levels for 2013, up to September 15, 2013 

 Plot showing statistical analysis of San Simeon well levels by month 

 Line plots of San Simeon well levels by year, 1988 to September 16, 2013. 

 Line plot of San Simeon well levels for historic minimum, average, and maximum. 

 Line plot of San Simeon well levels for past five years 

16



9/16/13 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 9/16/13

Reference
Distance Point Depth of
Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea
Code Water Level Level Level            Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 83.42 Not Read
SR4 82.00 Not Read
SR3 20.41 54.30 33.89 Shut down*

SR1 19.71 46.40 26.69 Shut down*

RP#1 21.33 46.25 24.92
RP#2 17.20 33.11 15.91
21R3 10.00 12.88 2.88
WBE 13.76 16.87 3.11
WBW 17.02 Not Read

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 30.29 FEET
      CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = FEET

          *  Wells SR-1 and SR-3 are out of service.  Well SR-4 serves as CCSD's Santa Rosa production wel

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 8.00 11.81 3.81
9M1 65.63 Not Read
9P2 14.49 19.11 4.62
9P7 19.59 Not Read
9L1 24.33 27.33 3.00
SS4 21.83 25.92 4.09 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = - -0.53
9K2 27.52 30.23 2.71
SS3 31.10 33.25 2.15
SS2 31.01 34.01 3.00
SS1 30.70 34.07 3.37
11B1 105.43 Not Read
11C1 35.89 98.20 62.31

PFNW 93.22 Not Read
10A1 78.18 Not Read
10G2 62.95 Not Read
10G1 59.55 Not Read
10F2 66.92 Not Read
10M2 30.81 55.21 24.40
9J3 43.45 Not Read

Not Read
             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1, SS2,  & SS3  = 2.84 FEET

9/16/13
                                         Report format revised 7/23/2013

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

17



2013
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
       WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

ACRE-FEET
1000.0

YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUG. SEPT. OCT. NOV. DEC. TOTAL YEAR

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60
1988 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90 1988

TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40
1989 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60 1989

TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14
1990 S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66 1990

TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90
1991 S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80 1991

TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30
1992 S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.40 1992

TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50
1993 S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 1993

TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00
1994 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10 1994

TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94
1995 S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90 1995

TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99
1996 S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26 1996

TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51
1997 S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29 1997

TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.66 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31
1998 S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16 1998

TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05
1999 S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53 1999

TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82
2000 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2000

TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25
2001 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68 2001

TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77
2002 S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71 2002

TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83
2003 S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05 2003

TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52
2004 S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11 2004

TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26
2005 S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98 2005

TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96
2006 S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14 2006

TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61
2007 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57 2007

TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.18

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69
2008 S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92 2008

TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94
2009 S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54 2009

TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90
2010 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51 2010

TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16
2011 S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72 2011

TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73
2012 S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01 2012

TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S. 50.55 46.55 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 72.32 449.41
2013 S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 3.50 58.73 2013

TOTAL 50.55 46.55 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 75.82 508.14

-3.11 -2.33 2.12 8.36 6.95 5.91 2.82 1.4818



0.
00

5.
00

10
.0

0

15
.0

0

20
.0

0

25
.0

0

30
.0

0

35
.0

0

40
.0

0

45
.0

0

50
.0

0

55
.0

0

60
.0

0

15th

APRL

15th

MAY

15th

JUNE

15th

JULY

15th

AUG.

15th

SEPT

15th

OCT.

15th

NOV.

15th

DEC.

15th

JAN.

15th

FEB.

15th

MAR.

15th

ELEVATION ABOVE SEA LEVEL

SA
N

TA
 R

O
SA

 C
R

EE
K

 W
EL

L 
LE

VE
LS

M
ar

ch
 1

5t
h,

 2
01

3-
C

ur
re

nt

23
R

(H
S

 w
el

l)
SR

4
SR

3
SR

1

19



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

1988 ‐2012 Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Purple (hatched) and Green (solid) bars

25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2013 reads

20



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

15 A
P

R
L

15 M
A

Y

15 JU
N

E

15 JU
LY

15 A
U

G
.

15 S
E

P
T

15 O
C

T.

15 N
O

V
.

15 D
E

C
.

15 JA
N

.

15 FE
B

.

15 M
A

R
.

15
El

ev
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l (

Fe
et

)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - Mid-September 2013

1988  (566 af) 1989  (622 af) 1990  (457 af) 1991  (405 af) 1992  (542 af) 1993  (691 af) 1994  (538 af)

1995  (676 af) 1996  (718 af) 1997  (679 af) 1998  (707 af) 1999  (775 af) 2000  (799 af) 2001  (745 af)

2002 (728 af) 2003 (709 af) 2004 (612 af) 2005 (652 af) 2006 (613 af) 2007 (618 af) 2008 (707.61)

2009 (699.48) 2010 (672.41) 2011 (682.88) 2012 2013

21



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

15
th

AP
RL

15
th

M
AY

15
th

JU
N
E

15
th

JU
LY

15
th

AU
G
.

15
th

SE
PT

15
th

O
CT

.

15
th

N
O
V.

15
th

DE
C.

15
th

JA
N
.

15
th

FE
B.

15
th

M
AR

.

15
th

E
L
E
V
A
T
I
O
N
 
A
B
O
V
E
 
S
E
A
 
L
E
V
E
L

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELL LEVELS
Historical Data from March 15th. 1988 to Current  

Well Level Data Begining March 15th 2013 to Current

PREVIOUS HIGHS

PREVIOUS LOWS

AVERAGE

2013 March 15th to current

‐

22



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

15 A
pr

15 M
ay

15 June

15 July

15 A
ug

15 S
ept

15 O
ct

15 N
ov

15 D
ec

15 Jan

15 Feb

15 M
ar

15
El

ev
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
Se

a 
Le

ve
l (

Fe
et

)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Last 5 years

March, 2008  - Current

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



 

 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
P.O. Box 65 • Cambria, CA  93428  • Telephone:  (805) 927-6223 • Fax: (805) 927-5584 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADDENDA TO MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT CODES 

 FD  Fire Department  

 F&R  Facilities and Resources   

 ADM  Administration  

 RC  Resource Conservation  

 WD  Water Department  

 WW  Wastewater Department  

 PR  Parks & Recreation  
 

34



    CONSENT ITEM 7 B 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 22, 2013, 12:30 PM 
 

AGENDA ITEM  DISCUSSION OR ACTION 

1A.  CALL TO ORDER  President Thompson called the regular meeting to 
order at 12:03 PM.  

1B.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  President Thompson led the pledge of allegiance 
and established a quorum. 

1C.  ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  President Thompson    Present 
Vice President Bahringer  Present 
Director Clift      Present 
Director Robinette      Present 
Director Rice    Present 
Staff Present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, 
Assistant District Counsel Hirsch, Confidential 
Administrative Assistant Justine Harris and  District 
Engineer Bob Gresens. 
 

1D.  REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION    Counsel stated no action was taken and no closed 
session items to report 

2.  SPECIAL REPORTS   

A. Sheriff’s Department Report  Not present  

B. Fire Department Report  Chief Miller presented  his manager’s report and 
answered questions in regard to the public’s 
concern   

3.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS  President Thompson and Director Robinette  
presented a proclamation to Norm Smyth, 
Cambria Community Emergency Response Team 
(CERT) Coordinator, Mr. Smyth. Retired Fire Chief  
Bob Putney  was recognized for starting the CERT 
program.  

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT  Harry Farmer. 
Bernadene Morgan  
Elizabeth Bettenhausen  
Tina Dickason  

5.  AGENDA REVIEW  Director Rice requested minor changes to Karen 
Dean’s comments from July 25, 2013 minutes.  
Director Rice requested to pull 7C from Consent. 
Motion was seconded Director Clift Ayes – 5, No’s  
‐ 0, Absent – 0 . Motion carried unanimously.   

6.  MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS   

A. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

General Manager Gruber presented the manager’s 
report. Board Discussion followed. 
District Engineer Gresens provided Engineer’s 
report. 
Board discussion followed. 

35



CCSD Minutes 
Page 2 
August 22, 2013 

Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen  
Richard Hawley  
Tina Dickason   

B. MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  Director Rice reported on NCAC meeting.  Director 
Rice attended the Forest Committee meeting.  
Director Rice asked about q public shower for 
Cambria residents. Vice President Bahringer would 
like to purchase public trash cans but not 
jeopardize the grant. Director Clift reported from 
his Ad Hoc Committee with Vice President 
Bahringer about water issues.  

7.  CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approve expenditures for month of July 
2013 

B. Approve Minutes of Board of Directors 
regular meeting July 25, 2013 

C. Pulled from Consent Agenda: Pacific 
Western Bank request for Intent to Serve 
extension for APN 024‐191‐062 WAS 
PULLED FROM CONSENT 
 

Director Rice moved to approve the consent 
agenda. Director Clift seconded. Motion carried.  
Ayes – 5, No ‐ 0. Absent ‐0 
 
 
Director Rice moved to deny the extension for this 

Intent to Serve letter for APN 024.191.062 for 16 

EDU’s for multi‐family residential.   Director 

Robinette seconded the motion.  Board discussion 

followed. Director Rice amended the motion to 

allow the Bank to  resubmit its request for a time 

extension before the Intent to Serve Letters expire 

in November without prejudice.  Amended Motion 

was seconded by Director Robinette. Motion 

carried unanimously. Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent – 0, 

Roll call vote . 

 
Public Comment: None  
 

8.  HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
A.  Public Hearing to adopt Resolution 34‐

2013 approving Appropriation Limit for 
Fiscal Year 2013/2014 

President Thompson introduced the item and 
opened the public hearing. General Manager 
Gruber presented the staff report.  
Public Comment: None 
President Thompson closed the public hearing. 

Director Clift moved to adopt Resolution 34‐2013 

establishing the CCSD appropriation limit for  fiscal 

year 2013/2014, and direct staff to submit the 

Resolution to the SLO County Auditor Controller 

Director Bahringer seconded the motion Motion 

carried unanimously. Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent – 0, 

36



CCSD Minutes 
Page 3 
August 22, 2013 

Roll call vote . 

 

B.  Public Hearing to consider adoption of 
Resolution 35‐2013 amending the CCSD 
Fee Schedule to provide for revised fees to 
connect to the Water and Sewer Systems  

President Thompson opened the public hearing. 
General Manager Gruber presented the staff 
report. Alex Handler answered questions.  Why 
CCSD is so low and TCSD is so high. 
Public Comment: 
Crosby Shorts 
Karen Dean  
Elizabeth Bettenhausen  
Richard Hawley   
 
President Thompson closed public hearing.  
Vice‐President Bahringer moved to approve 

Resolution 35‐2013 adopting a water capacity fee 

of $12,688 per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU); 

and, a sewer capacity fee of $7,161 per EDU for 

properties located within the boundaries of 

Assessment District 2; or, $9,330 per EDU for 

properties located outside of Assessment District 

2; and, providing that applicants shall be 

responsible for paying all costs of making physical 

connection to the CCSD’s water and/or sewer 

system, and shall reimburse the CCSD any actual 

costs incurred by the District.  Director Clift 

seconded the motion. Motion carried 

unanimously. Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent – 0, Roll call 

vote . 

 
 

9.  REGULAR BUSINESS   

A. Consideration of adoption of Ordinance 
03‐2013 amending the CCSD Municipal 
Code to implement the interim issuance of 
intent to serve letters and the revised 
Water Conservation and Retrofit Program 
and directing the District Clerk to file a 
Notice of Exemption and adoption of 
Resolution 36‐2013 establishing the 
retrofit in‐lieu fees 

President Thompson introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber presented the staff report. 
 
 
Public Comment: 
Bob McDonnell Opposed 
Bill Warren Opposed  
Karen Dean Opposed 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen  Opposed 
Tina Dickason Opposed 
Richard Hawley Opposed 
Jeff Hellman Opposed 
Cynthia Holley Opposed 

37



CCSD Minutes 
Page 4 
August 22, 2013 

Jerry McKinnon full support 
Harry Farmer Chamber of Commerce Opposed  
 
Vice‐President Bahringer moved to waive further 
reading, read by title only and adopt Ordinance 03‐
2013  Amending Chapters 4.16 and 4.20, and 8.04 
of the CCSD Municipal Code Relating to Water 
Conservation Devices, The Water Conservation 
and Retrofit Program, and Water and Sewer 
Allocation in Order to Amend the Water 
Conservation and Retrofit Program and Implement 
the Water Use Efficiency Plan and the Interim 
Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters.   Director Clift 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent – 0, Roll call 
vote . 
 

10.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
 

Director Rice stated By‐laws in the next few 
meetings. Director Rice requested Rick Hawley 
make a presentation. Possible discussion on 350 v. 
Moratorium.   

11.  ADJOURN 
 

President Thompson adjourned the meeting at 
5:40 PM and went to closed session.  

 

38



    CONSENT ITEM 7.B. 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY SEPTEMBER 9, 2013, 10:00 AM 
 

AGENDA ITEM  DISCUSSION OR ACTION 

1A.  CALL TO ORDER  Vice President Bahringer called the meeting to 
order at 10:01 AM. 

1B.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
1C          ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

President  Thompson    Absent 
Vice President Bahringer  Present 
Director Clift    Present 
Director Robinette    Present 
Director Rice    Present 
 
Staff Present: General Manager Gruber, District 
Engineer Gresens, District Counsel Carmel  Conf. 
Admin Asst Justine Harris. 

2.  PUBLIC COMMENT  Boboa Taham  
Tina Dickason 
Geoff Palmer 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Geoff Palmer 
Shirley Bianchi 
 

3.  SPECIAL MEETING BUSINESS  
A.   Discussion of water 

supply conditions. 
 

Bob Gresens, District Engineer, presented the staff 
report and responded to questions from the 
Board.  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Shirley Bianchi 
Karen Dean 
Boboa Toham 
Mahala Burton 
Bill Seavey 
Tina Dickason 
Bob McDonnell 
John Mackinnon  
Jeff Hellman 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Richard Hawley  
Cynthia Hawley 
Mary Webb 
Vari Mcneil (double check this)  
Allan Mackinnon  
John Mackinnon 
Harry Farmer  
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Tina Dickason 
VP Bahringer closed public comment 

39



CCSD Minutes 
Page 2 
September 09, 2013 

The Board discussed current water supply 
conditions, the process for immediate 
consideration of additional water conservation 
measures, including the use and effectiveness of 
surcharges/penalties, as well as potential 
additional short term water supply options. The 
Board provided direction to staff schedule and 
provide notice for a public hearing on 9/20/13 at 
10am to consider enhanced water conservation 
measures, surcharges/penalties, and to present 
information and options to immediately augment 
the water supply, including purchase of a portable 
reverse osmosis system and associated permitting. 
 
 

4.            CLOSED SESSION 
A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL‐ EXISTING   
LITIGATION Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9 (d) Name of Case: SWRCB v. CCSD; NOV’s 
related to SSO’s 1‐2‐11, 10‐6‐11, and 12‐17‐11 

Public Comment: None. 
 
 

5.       RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION  No action to report 

6.  ADJOURN  Vice President Bahringer adjourned the meeting at 
12:50 PM. 

 

40



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.C. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Alleyne LaBossiere, Finance Manager  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: September 26, 2013 Subject: Consider Resolution 39-2013 
        Authorizing a Money Market Bank  
        Account at Heritage Oaks Bank  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Adopt Resolution 39-2013 authorizing the establishment of a CCSD money market bank 
account at Heritage Oaks Bank. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There are no costs associated with the opening of an account except for staff time.  There is 
currently a projected savings of approximately $3,000/year in bank fees. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Currently, the CCSD fulfills all of its banking needs with accounts at Heritage Oaks Bank 
(HOB).  In the past, virtually all fees had been waived by HOB.  However, this will no longer be 
the case.  It should be noted that these fees include the automated processing of payments 
received by the CCSD (and that HOB paid 50% of the cost of the equipment required for this 
process), which has resulted in reduced Staff time to process payments.  By establishing a 
Money Market (MM) account and keeping a sufficient balance in it, the CCSD is expected to 
avoid incurring bank fees or at the least, significantly reducing them.  The projected balance to 
be deposited in the MM account is $500,000 although this balance would be affected by the 
balance held in the CCSD’s regular checking account as well as any future changes affecting 
bank fees.  If the MM account is established, HOB will pay the CCSD an “earnings” rate that is 
15 basis points (.15%) over their published Public Entities Money Market Rate.  This interest 
rate is currently 25 basis points (.25%), so at the present time, the CCSD would be earning 40 
basis points (.40%) on the funds deposited in the MM account up to an amount equal to any 
bank charges.  The interest rate will float based on HOB’s prime rate.  As a point of reference, 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is currently paying a rate of .25%.  The earnings rate will 
only be applied to offset any bank fees.  The interest earned will first be applied to any 
remaining bank fees and any surplus would be paid to the CCSD.   
 
The first priority of the CCSD’s Investment Policy is Safety (of the principal).  Currently, funds 
deposited in HOB are guaranteed up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC).  This is for all accounts combined.  It is impossible to always keep the 
amount on deposit under the $250,000 threshold, so some funds already are not guaranteed 
by the federal government.  Opening the MM account would increase this exposure.  However, 
California banks are required to collateralize public funds at an amount not less than 110% of 
the amount on deposit (Reference California Government Code Sections 53652 et seq.).  HOB 

41



 

is required to hold these funds (which are invested in either Municipal Bonds, Government 
Mortgage Backed Securities or Treasury Bills/Notes) for the sole purpose of redeeming the 
CCSD’s funds on deposit for which the securities are held as long as the CCSD has funds on 
deposit with them in excess of $250,000.  A bank does not go bankrupt if it becomes insolvent, 
it is “liquidated.”  During this process, any securities held by a bank for collateralization cannot 
be used for any purpose other than to redeem the public entity’s funds on deposit for which the 
securities are held.  In other words, the securities are directly tied to the public entity’s 
deposits.   It should also be noted that the CCSD’s funds held in its LAIF account are not FDIC 
insured, at least for the most part.  The large majority of LAIF’S funds are invested in Treasury 
Bills/Notes.  None is invested in stocks, derivatives or the like as LAIF’S Investment Policy has 
the same priorities as the CCSD’s (Safety is the first priority). 
 
Of course, even though no depositor lost any funds during the last few years when many 
banks were liquidated, it would be preferable to not have to not have funds on deposit with a 
bank that fails.  HOB is currently has a 5-Star rating (Superior), which is the highest rating 
available.  While this is not a guarantee of continued operations, it is as good of an indicator as 
is available.  This rating is routinely reviewed by CCSD Staff. 
 
The second priority of the CCSD’s Investment Policy is Liquidity.  The CCSD would be able to 
make up to six withdrawals from the MM account without penalty.  As this account would not 
be used for day to day operations, this is expected to be more than sufficient for the CCSD’s 
needs. 
 
The third priority of the CCSD’s Investment Policy is Return on Investment.  As noted, this 
action would increase the CCSD’s cash flow. 
 
 
Attachment: Resolution 39-2013 
 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
  

42



 
RESOLUTION 39-2013 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING A MONEY MARKET BANKING ACCOUNT 

AT HERITAGE OAKS BANK 
 

 WHEREAS, the Cambria Community Services District’s Investment Policy’s prime 
objectives are the safety of the CCSD’s funds, liquidity of the principal and return on 
investment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the establishment of a money market bank account is consistent with these 
priorities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there will be a positive fiscal impact related to maintaining a money market 
bank account at Heritage Oaks Bank. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors for the Cambria 
Community Services District as follows: 
 

1.  A money market banking account is hereby authorized to be established at Heritage 
Oaks Bank. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY of SEPTEMBER, 2013. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson 

President 
 

 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Kathy A. Choate    Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk     District Counsel 

43



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO.  9.A. 
 

FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
  Cortney Upthegrove, Administrative Tech III 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  September 26, 2013   Subject: Discussion & Reconsideration of Extension  
        of Intent to Serve Letters for 16 Multi- 
        Family EDUs; Applicant Pacific Western 
        Bank, APN 024.191.062 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, consider and approve the request from Pacific 
Western Bank for a one year time extension for Intent to Serve Letters for 16 Multi-Family EDUs,  
conditioned upon the applicant demonstrating significant project progress prior to November 25, 2014, 
in order to be eligible for any additional extension, and that the project shall be subject to meeting all of 
the current plumbing standards per CCSD Code Section 4.16.160(A). 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
Time extensions for Intent to Serve Letters are subject to payment of fees in accordance with the 
CCSD’s Fee Schedule and are required to pay a $400 deposit to cover the actual cost. We currently 
have a deposit on file for this property.  At that time of connection the applicant will be subject to paying 
the connection fees which in are place at the time.   
 

DISCUSSION: 
 

During the August 22, 2013 Board meeting, Pacific Western Bank requested a three year time 
extension of their Intent to Serve Letter for 16 Multi-Family EDUs. The Board denied this request but 
invited the applicant to return when they had additional information. Pacific Western Bank is reapplying 
for a one year extension to provide time for the Bank to transfer ownership to a viable developer. The 
property is currently in escrow and a one year extension will allow the buyer sufficient time to apply for 
and obtain the necessary permits and begin work on the project.  
 
Based upon the circumstances set forth in the letter from the Applicant’s counsel, a copy of which is 
attached, staff is recommending that the Board of Directors grant a 12-month extension. It is also 
recommended that the Board impose conditions that the Applicant provide proof of significant project 
progress prior to the November 25, 2014 expiration date in order to be eligible for any additional 
extension. Additionally, the project shall be subject to meeting all of the current CCSD Code 
requirements, including new plumbing standards. Failure to meet these conditions would result in 
expiration of the Intent to Serve Letter resulting in the return of the  Intent to Serve Letter for 16 Multi 
Family EDUs to the Multi-Family Residential Wait List, pursuant to CCSD Code Section 8.04.080(E)(1) 
and (F). 
 

If approved, this extension of the Intent to Serve Letter would be valid through November 25, 2014.  
 

Attachments:  Parcel Map  
  Correspondence from Pacific Western Bank 
  Copy of previous agreement dated 2008 
  Copy of Staff Report from August 2013 Meeting 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___RICE___ROBINETTE 44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.C. 
 

FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
  Cortney Upthegrove, Administrative Tech III 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  August 22, 2013   Subject: Consider Extension of Intent  
        to Serve Letter for Pacific Western Bank,  
        Applicant, APNs 024.191.062 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve a 36-month extension of a 16 EDU Multi-Family 
Residential Intent to Serve Letter for Pacific Western Bank APNs 024.191.062 with the conditions that 
there be significant progress or completion of the project prior to November 25, 2016 in order to be 
eligible for an additional extension, and that the project shall be subject to meeting all of the current 
plumbing standards per CCSD Code Section 4.16.160(A).  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Time extensions for Intent to Serve Letters are subject to paying fees in accordance 
with the CCSD’s Fee Schedule and are required to pay a $400 deposit to cover the actual cost.  
 

DISCUSSION: 
 

Pursuant to CCSD Code Section 8.04.080(E)(3), the extension of an Intent to Serve letter for more than 
three (3) EDU’s is to be approved by the Board of Directors. Multi-Family Residential project extensions 
are valid for up to a 36-month period. That Section also provides that “…The board of directors shall 
have full discretion to approve or disapprove the request for extension on all other projects and, if 
granted, shall be subject to any conditions, which the board may impose.” 
 

CCSD Code Section 8.04.080(E)(3) also requires that applications for an extension of a Multi-Family 
Residential intent to serve letter have an application accepted by the County for processing of a minor 
use permit or development plan, if applicable, and an active application for a building permit. In addition 
any extension of an Intent to Serve letter shall be subject to payment of fees in accordance with the 
CCSD Fee Schedule, which requires a $400.00 deposit.   
 
 

This Intent letter was originally issued in 1997. The CCSD Board of Directors has approved eight prior 
extensions from 1999 until present. The most recent extension was issued in 2008 via special 
agreement and allowed for a five year extension period. As set forth in the attached letter from the 
Applicant, they are requesting a hardship waiver of the requirements in Section 8.04.080(E)(3), based 
upon the history of the property, and other factors relating to the real estate market and their efforts to 
sell the property for development. Section 8.04.080(E)(4) permits the Board to grant such hardship 
waivers “...upon a showing by the applicant that the time extension is necessary and the failure to 
comply with the requirements of subsection 8.04.080 E(3) is the result of circumstances outside of its 
control, including but not limited to financial hardship, foreclosure of the property and acquisition by a 
lender, or any similar facts and circumstances.”  The applicant has also submitted additional documents 
in support of their request relating to their efforts to develop the property. Those documents total 
approximately 335 pages and have been provided to the Board under separate cover. A copy of the 
additional documents is also available for public review in the District Clerk’s Office. 
 
Based upon the circumstances set forth in the Applicant’s letter, Staff is recommending that the Board 
of Directors grant a 36-month extension, and impose conditions that there be significant progress or 
completion of the project prior to November 25, 2016 in order to be eligible for an additional extension 
and that the project shall be subject to meeting all of the current plumbing standards per CCSD Code 
Section 4.16.160(A). Failure to meet these conditions could result in revocation of the Intent to Serve 

58



 
 

 

letter and return of the 16 EDUs to the Multi-Family Residential Wait List pursuant to CCSD Code 
Section 8.04.080(E)(1) and (F). 
 

If approved, this extension of the Intent to Serve letter would be valid through November 25, 2016.  
 

Attachments:  Parcel Map  
  Application for Extension 
  Correspondence from Pacific Western Bank 
   Copy of previous agreement dated 2008 
   
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___RICE___ROBINETTE 

59



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.B. 
 
FROM: Monique Madrid, Administrative Service Officer 
  Cortney Upthegrove, Administrative Technician III 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: September 26, 2013 Subject: Discussion on the Status of Intent to 
        Serve Letters, Wait Lists, and Update of 
        the Existing Commitment List 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss, receive and file this status report on 
Intent to Serve Letters, Wait Lists and the updated Existing Commitments List. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
CCSD Code Section 8.04.030(C) requires staff to update the Existing Commitments List to 
reflect changes authorized by Chapter 8.04. The Existing Commitment List was last updated in 
December 2012. The following updated information regarding the Existing Commitment List, 
Intent to Serve Letters, and the Single Family Residential, Multi Family Residential, 
Commercial, and Affordable Housing Project Wait Lists is respectfully submitted.  

Intent to Serve Letters (Pipeline Projects): 

Designation of Property 
Total 
Number  EDUs 

Single Family Residential *:  5   

Multi Family Residential:  2   

Commercial:  3 19.67 

Affordable Housing:  1 34.00 

        

Total Outstanding Intent to Serve Letters:**  11   
*One ITS letter has been connected and is currently being billed. The ITS for Habitat for 
Humanity which was for 2 EDUs has been returned to the Affordable Housing Waitlist.  
** Only 9 will become future connections; 2 already have utility accounts 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



 
 

2

Water & Sewer Waitlists: 

Designation of Property 
Number of 
Positions  EDUs 

Affordable Housing *:  63   

Commercial:  10 89.91 

Multi Family Residential:  11   

Single Family Residential:  666   

        

Total Waitlist Positions:  689   
*The original ITS for PSHH has been modified from 40 EDUs to 33 EDUs. 7 EDUs have been returned 
to the Affordable Housing Waitlist.  

 
Existing Commitment List Update:   
CCSD Municipal Code Section 8.04.030 Section A provides for the following categories of 
existing commitments: 

1. Active Service Commitments (Exhibit D): Consists of active water & sewer uses, 
and service accounts with EDUs assigned.  

2. Non-Active Service Commitments: (Exhibit B): Consists of parcels with what the 
district has determined have pre-existing (grandfathered) commitments for 
service, but which do not have active service uses. Non-Active service 
commitments are subject to minimum bi-monthly billing to maintain their status. 

3. Park/Landscape/Irrigation Commitments: Consists of water meters installed on a 
parcel for park irrigation, landscape or agriculture irrigation or stock watering 
purposes only. 

 

 
The active service commitment list Exhibit “D” has increased by 4 accounts since this 
information was last provided to the Board from the October 31, 2012 billing summary. These 
four accounts consist of the following: 

1) One (1) Intent to Serve letter connected APN 023.049.022. 
2) Three (3) internal accounts for CCSD lift stations.  

 
 

Number of Accounts Added from 2012‐2013 

July/August 2013  Number of Accounts  4032

September/October 2012 Number of Accounts‐Last Reporting  4028

Sub‐Total Added Accounts  4

Internal Accounts  ( For CCSD Use)  (3)

Total Customer Accounts Added as of August 31, 2013  1

 
 
In addition, CCSD Municipal Code Section 8.04.010 defines “existing commitments” as follows: 
 

61



 
 

3

" ‘Existing commitments’ means service commitments made to district customers, including 
active service commitments, non-active service commitments (commonly known as 
"grandfathers"), and parks/landscape/irrigation commitments, as established by Section 
8.04.030. The table of existing commitments in Exhibit B of the ordinance codified in this 
chapter inventories non-active service commitments and parks/landscape/irrigation 
commitments” 
 
Staff has updated the Existing Commitment List be in accordance with the authority in CCSD 
Municipal Code Section 8.04.030(C). The last time the list was updated was December 20, 
2012 (See attached Exhibit “B” December 20, 2012 list with Strikeouts and Proposed 
Changes). The updated list dated September 26, 2013 is being presented to the Board of 
Directors and contains the following changes: 

 

 The current list has increased by one commitment due to restoring a position that 
was inadvertently removed. In March 2005, APN 013.122.005 was incorrectly 
removed from the Existing Commitment List. This account is a grandfathered “water 
only” meter and has been added to Exhibit B, non active service commitments. 

 Thirty One (31) existing commitments remain on the current list. (This number 
excludes the Park/Landscaped/Irrigation Commitments.)   

 
Other changes made to the current list have resulted from ownership changes of billing 
accounts, and assessor’s parcel number changes. 
 

 Present total count for current and future connections:   
  Current number of accounts:  4007 
  Future ITS connections:             9 
  SFR, MFR, & Commercial          
  Wait List Positions/future connections:    689 
  Affordable Housing Waitlist       63  
 
  TOTAL:     4768 
 

  Exclusions: CCSD internal accounts and existing commitments from list which  
    already have utility accounts.   
 

Attachments:   
 Exhibit “B” December 20, 2012 list with Strikeouts and Proposed 

Changes. 
 Exhibit “B” September 26, 2013 update to Non-Active Service 

Commitments and Parks/Landscapes/Irrigation Service Commitments 
proposed clean version 

 Exhibit “D” to § 8.04.030(A)(1) Active Service Commitments 
 Meter Designation Summary for Exhibit (D) Active Service 

Commitments. 
 Copy of Grand Total Utility Billing Summary Page July/August 2013 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT___ ROBINETTE_____ RICE____ 

62



Current APN  
(Original)

Location
Billing 

Account #
Status / Notes

1. 013.051.018
San Simeon Creek 

Rd
Molinari 1.88 EDU, water only   (Molinari)   

2. 013.122.005 Pineridge Dr STE0032

Vacant, water. Meter was removed 

from the list in 2007. This parcel 

should have been included in the 

12.20.2012 list. 

3. 013.151.023 Schoolhouse Ln VIC0001 Vacant, meter in ground

4. 013.232.004 Wall Street MIL0053 Water + sewer (Carson Agrmnt)

5. 013.331.041 Buckley Dr ETZ0002 Vacant, water, meter in ground

6. 022.083.033 Canterbury Ln ENK0001 Vacant, water

7 022.151.061 Windsor Blvd JOH0005 Vacant, water

8. 022.283.017 Windsor Blvd CNC0001 Vacant, water

9. 022.292.003 Leighton St KAR0001 Vacant, water & sewer

10. 023.019.023 Madison St WOL0007
Vacant, water & sewer, retrofits 

completed

11. 013.084.005 Kathryn EUB0002
Vacant, transferred from 023.041.045 

Sherwood Dr. 

12. 024.312.026 Linden Ct HEN0019 Vacant, water & sewer

13. 013.323.008 Windsor Blvd GRE0048

Vacant, meter in ground 

transferred from 024.363.007 

(STE0031)

14. 023.151.046 Chester Ln ZET0001

Water + Sewer, retrofits 

completed, demand off-set letter 

provided, building in progress. 

Section Total *14

15. 013.101.046 Main St THO0013 Vacant, meter pulled 1 .0 EDU

16 013.101.072
Main St, across 

from Vets Hall 
(CCSD) 3.0 Com EDUs + Sewer

17. 013.131.038 Rodeo Grounds Rd (CCSD) Vacant 1.0 EDU

18
023.441.008 

(013.151.034) 
Schoolhouse Ln

CLA0068 

(CLA0047)

Transferred .72 EDUs from 

013.151.034 to 023.441.008 per 

special agreement. Water + Sewer

19. 013.251.011
Adj. To 1880 Main 

St
COO0006

Vacant Tear down, was residential 

1.0 EDU

Section Total 5 6.72 Commerical EDUs

2.) Unimproved 

Commercial.   

Each APN is 

assigned one (1) 

commercial EDU 

unless otherwise 

noted.                     

1) Unimproved 

Single-family 

Residential Meters

CCSD CODE EXHIBIT "B" to 8.04.030 (A)(2) & (3) Existing Commitments                                                                           
(Approved on 12/20/2012)

63



Current APN  
(Original)

Location
Billing 

Account #
Status / Notes

20.
013.085.001

6795 Cambria 

Pines Rd
ASS0002 Vacant

21.

013.085.002
6785 Cambria 

Pines Rd
MAC0024 Vacant

22.
013.085.003

6775 Cambria 

Pines Rd
LEI0006 Vacant

23.
013.085.005

6725 Cambria 

Pines Rd
LEI0022 Vacant

24.

013.085.006 6175 Brighton Ln MIL0045

Water + sewer, retrofits 

completed, demand off-set letter 

provided, building in progress

25.
013.085.009 6188 Brighton Ln NEL0004 Water + sewer

26.
013.085.010 6178 Brighton Ln

HUN0014  

(LEI0011)
Water + sewer

27. 013.085.012 6735 Kathryn Dr REA0002 Vacant

28.

013.085.013 6775 Kathryn Dr PAC0018

Water + sewer, retrofits 

completed, demand off-set letter 

provided, building in progress

29.
013.085.014 6825 Kathryn Dr MIK0004 Vacant

30.

013.085.019 6855 Kathryn Dr GRI0018

House is built and construction is 

complete. Needs to be removed 

from the list. 

31. 013.085.018 6730 Kathryn Dr GRA0016 Vacant

Section Total 12

Sub Total - 31 

Exisiting 

Commitments 

remain on the 

current list

31

1. 013.101.081 Tamson Dr. CAM0023 Irrigation

2. 013.101.083 Knollwood Dr CAM0017 Irrigation

3. 013.101.083 Knollwood Dr CAM0018 Irrigation

4. 013.181.025 Rancho Marino RAN0001 Stockwater, per easement

5. 022.341.034 Worcester AND0016 Andy's Garden

6. 023.362.030 Pierce Ave  ARN0002 Irrigation

Section Total 6
Grandfather# for 

BRP 26

Indicates that construction has been finished, and there is a house

Indicates changes to APN Information, or owner information, or update to project. 

Indicates a new account that was not listed on the December 2012 list. 

* Number increased from 13 in 2012 to 14 in 2013. 

4.)                             

Parks/Landscape/ 

Irrigation Service 

Commitments No 

EDUs assigned. 

Cannot be used for 

construction.

3.) Cambria West 

Tract 1804.              
Service is subject to the 

terms and service 

conditions of the                    

Settlement Agreement 

and Full Mutual Release 

dated July 12, 1999, 

between the District and 

Cambria West/Leimert 

("Leimert"), including 

payment of connection 

fees and surcharge fees 

prior to installation of 

meters.  Satisfaction of 

the District's Water 

Conservation and Retrofit 

Ordinance requirements 

for retrofit or in-lieu 

retrofit fees will be 

required prior to issuance 

of building permits for 

residential uses.

64



Current APN  
(Original)

Location
Billing 

Account #
Status / Notes

1. 013.051.018
San Simeon Creek 

Rd
Molinari 1.88 EDU, water only   (Molinari)   

2. 013.122.005 Pineridge Dr STE0032

Vacant, water. Meter was removed 

from the list in 2007. This parcel 

should have been included in the 

12.20.2012 list. 

3. 013.151.023 Schoolhouse Ln VIC0001 Vacant, meter in ground

4. 013.232.004 Wall Street MIL0053 Water + sewer (Carson Agrmnt)

5. 013.331.041 Buckley Dr ETZ0002 Vacant, water, meter in ground

6. 022.083.033 Canterbury Ln ENK0001 Vacant, water

7 022.151.061 Windsor Blvd JOH0005 Vacant, water

8. 022.283.017 Windsor Blvd CNC0001 Vacant, water

9. 022.292.003 Leighton St KAR0001 Vacant, water & sewer

10. 023.019.023 Madison St WOL0007
Vacant, water & sewer, retrofits 

completed

11. 013.084.005 Kathryn EUB0002
Vacant, transferred from 023.041.045 

Sherwood Dr. 

12. 024.312.026 Linden Ct HEN0019 Vacant, water & sewer

13. 013.323.008 Windsor Blvd GRE0048

Vacant, meter in ground 

transferred from 024.363.007 

(STE0031)

14. 023.151.046 Chester Ln ZET0001

Water + Sewer , retrofits 

completed, demand off-set letter 

provided, building in progress.

Section Total *14

15. 013.101.046 Main St THO0013 Vacant, meter pulled 1 .0 EDU

16 013.101.072
Main St, across 

from Vets Hall 
(CCSD) 3.0 Com EDUs + Sewer

17. 013.131.038 Rodeo Grounds Rd (CCSD) Vacant 1.0 EDU

18. 023.441.008 Schoolhouse Ln CLA0068

Transferred .72 EDUs from 

013.151.034 to 023.441.008 per 

special agreement. Water + Sewer

19. 013.251.011
Adj. To 1880 Main 

St
COO0006

Vacant Tear down, was residential 

1.0 EDU

Section Total 5 6.72 Commerical EDUs

2.) Unimproved 

Commercial.   

Each APN is 

assigned one (1) 

commercial EDU 

unless otherwise 

noted.                     

1) Unimproved 

Single-family 

Residential Meters

CCSD CODE EXHIBIT "B" to 8.04.030 (A)(2) & (3) Existing Commitments                                                                           
(To be approved on 9/26/2013)

65



Current APN  
(Original)

Location
Billing 

Account #
Status / Notes

20.
013.085.001

6795 Cambria 

Pines Rd
ASS0002 Vacant

21.

013.085.002
6785 Cambria 

Pines Rd
MAC0024 Vacant

22.
013.085.003

6775 Cambria 

Pines Rd
LEI0006 Vacant

23.
013.085.005

6725 Cambria 

Pines Rd
LEI0022 Vacant

24.

013.085.006 6175 Brighton Ln MIL0045

Water + sewer, retrofits 

completed, demand off-set letter 

provided, building in progress

25.
013.085.009 6188 Brighton Ln NEL0004 Water + sewer

26.
013.085.010 6178 Brighton Ln HUN0014 Water + sewer

27. 013.085.012 6735 Kathryn Dr REA0002 Vacant

28.

013.085.013 6775 Kathryn Dr PAC0018

Water + sewer, retrofits 

completed, demand off-set letter 

provided, building in progress

29.
013.085.014 6825 Kathryn Dr MIK0004 Vacant

30.
013.085.018 6730 Kathryn Dr GRA0016 Vacant

Section Total 11

Sub Total - 31 

Exisiting 

Commitments 

remain on the 

current list

31

1. 013.101.081 Tamson Dr. CAM0023 Irrigation

2. 013.101.083 Knollwood Dr CAM0017 Irrigation

3. 013.101.083 Knollwood Dr CAM0018 Irrigation

4. 013.181.025 Rancho Marino RAN0001 Stockwater, per easement

5. 022.341.034 Worcester AND0016 Andy's Garden

6. 023.362.030 Pierce Ave  ARN0002 Irrigation

Section Total 6
Grandfather# for 

BRP 25

* Number increased from 13 in 2012 to 14 in 2013. 

4.)                             

Parks/Landscape/ 

Irrigation Service 

Commitments No 

EDUs assigned. 

Cannot be used for 

construction.

3.) Cambria West 

Tract 1804.              
Service is subject to the 

terms and service 

conditions of the                    

Settlement Agreement 

and Full Mutual Release 

dated July 12, 1999, 

between the District and 

Cambria West/Leimert 

("Leimert"), including 

payment of connection 

fees and surcharge fees 

prior to installation of 

meters.  Satisfaction of 

the District's Water 

Conservation and Retrofit 

Ordinance requirements 

for retrofit or in-lieu 

retrofit fees will be 

required prior to issuance 

of building permits for 

residential uses.

66



Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

A.P.N. Route & Service Number Meter Designation
013-081-052 360-1010 1
013-081-078 360-1050 1
013-081-081 040-0887 1
013-081-082 220-0888 1
013-084-001 220-0935 1
013-084-002 220-0930 1
013-084-005 040-0923 1
013-084-007 220-0915 1
013-084-008 220-0910 1
013-084-009 220-0905 1
013-084-010 220-0895 1
013-084-012 220-0890 1
013-084-016 220-0825 1
013-084-019 220-0845 1
013-084-020 220-0855 1
013-084-021 220-0850 1
013-084-022 220-0840 1
013-084-023 220-0835 1
013-084-024 220-0830 1
013-084-025 220-0820 1
013-084-026 220-0810 1
013-084-027 220-0805 1
013-084-029 220-0795 1
013-084-030 220-0785 1
013-084-031 220-0790 1
013-084-032 220-1005 1
013-084-033 220-1010 1
013-084-034 220-1015 1
013-084-037 220-1020 1
013-084-038 220-1025 1
013-084-040 220-0900 1
013-084-043 220-0920 1
013-084-044 220-1000 1
013-084-045 220-0995 1
013-084-047 220-0990 1
013-084-048 220-0985 1
013-084-049 220-0980 1
013-084-050 220-0975 1
013-084-055 220-0925 1
013-084-058 220-0815 1
013-084-059 220-0800 1
013-085-001 035-0885 1
013-085-002 035-0880 1
013-085-003 035-0875 1
013-085-004 220-0860 1

1
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com67

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-085-005 040-0865 1
013-085-006 035-1580 1
013-085-007 200-1591 1
013-085-009 035-1595 1
013-085-010 035-1585 1
013-085-011 220-0870 1
013-085-012 035-0945 1
013-085-013 035-0955 1
013-085-014 035-0960 1
013-085-018 035-0940 1
013-085-019 220-0970 1
013-085-020 220-0965 1
013-085-021 220-0950 1
013-101-059 300-1385 1
013-101-060 300-1390 1
013-101-066 300-1395 1
013-101-067 300-1400 1
013-101-068 300-1420 1
013-101-069 300-1415 1
013-101-070 300-1405 1
013-101-071 300-1410 1
013-101-074 300-0335 1
013-101-083 300-1540 1
013-122-005 600-0673 1
013-122-006 600-0672 1
013-124-001 400-3315 1
013-124-002 400-3330 1
013-124-003 400-3335 1
013-124-004 400-3345 1
013-124-005 400-3350 1
013-124-006 400-3360 1
013-124-007 400-3365 1
013-124-008 400-3375 1
013-124-009 400-3380 1
013-124-010 400-3370 1
013-124-011 400-3355 1
013-124-012 400-3340 1
013-124-013 400-3325 1
013-124-014 400-3320 1
013-124-015 400-3290 1
013-124-016 400-3300 1
013-124-017 400-3310 1
013-124-018 400-3305 1
013-124-019 400-3295 1
013-124-020 400-3285 1

2
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com68

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-124-021 400-3280 1
013-131-034 400-1850 1
013-131-035 400-1865 1
013-131-037 400-1825 1
013-141-014 720-1185 1
013-141-015 700-1880 1
013-141-016 700-1190 1
013-141-017 800-2515 1
013-151-012 400-0845 1
013-151-019 400-0835 1
013-151-021 400-0855 1
013-151-023 035-3525 1
013-151-033 400-3520 1
013-181-025 920-0578 1
013-221-002 400-0005 1
013-221-009 400-0095 1
013-221-016 400-0065 1
013-221-025 300-1380 1
013-231-001 400-0455 1
013-231-002 400-0450 1
013-231-004 400-0420 1
013-231-007 400-0440 1
013-231-010 400-0405 1
013-231-011 400-0415 1
013-232-004 040-0075 1
013-232-012 400-0110 1
013-233-001 400-0395 1
013-241-001 400-0430 1
013-241-002 400-0425 1
013-241-005 400-0385 1
013-241-006 400-0375 1
013-241-006 400-0380 1
013-241-007 400-0365 1
013-241-014 400-0275 1
013-241-017 400-0330 1
013-241-018 400-0340 1
013-241-026 400-0280 1
013-241-026 400-0290 1
013-241-026 400-0295 1
013-241-026 400-0300 1
013-241-026 400-0305 1
013-241-026 400-0310 1
013-241-027 400-0346 1
013-241-028 400-0325 1
013-241-028 400-0348 1

3
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com69

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-242-008 400-0255 1
013-242-022 400-0265 1
013-242-025 400-0260 1
013-242-029 400-0250 1
013-263-010 400-0510 1
013-263-011 400-0350 1
013-291-006 300-1375 1
013-292-007 300-1165 1
013-292-008 300-1032 1
013-292-010 300-1435 1
013-292-011 300-1430 1
013-292-017 300-1425 1
013-292-020 300-1365 1
013-292-023 300-1370 1
013-293-001 300-1185 1
013-293-002 300-1195 1
013-293-003 300-1210 1
013-293-004 300-1220 1
013-293-005 300-1030 1
013-293-006 300-1025 1
013-293-009 300-1010 1
013-293-011 300-1015 1
013-293-012 300-1020 1
013-294-001 300-1160 1
013-294-006 300-1190 1
013-294-010 300-1040 1
013-294-016 300-1075 1
013-294-017 300-1080 1
013-294-018 300-0655 1
013-294-021 300-1050 1
013-294-026 300-1200 1
013-294-027 300-1215 1
013-294-028 300-1205 1
013-294-029 300-0670 1
013-294-030 300-0665 1
013-294-034 300-1065 1
013-294-035 300-1070 1
013-294-042 300-1170 1
013-294-043 300-1175 1
013-295-003 300-1005 1
013-301-001 300-0965 1
013-301-002 300-0975 1
013-301-003 300-0980 1
013-301-004 300-0990 1
013-301-006 300-0995 1

4
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com70

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-301-007 300-1100 1
013-301-008 300-0985 1
013-301-010 300-0970 1
013-301-014 300-1000 1
013-301-017 300-1140 1
013-301-019 300-1130 1
013-301-021 300-1125 1
013-301-022 300-1105 1
013-301-023 300-1150 1
013-301-024 300-1115 1
013-301-026 300-1095 1
013-301-027 300-0645 1
013-301-028 300-0640 1
013-301-029 300-0630 1
013-301-030 300-0620 1
013-301-031 300-0610 1
013-301-035 300-0590 1
013-301-036 300-1120 1
013-301-037 300-0580 1
013-301-038 300-0575 1
013-301-039 300-0570 1
013-301-040 300-0560 1
013-301-041 300-0555 1
013-301-042 300-0550 1
013-301-045 300-1110 1
013-301-048 300-0660 1
013-301-049 300-1085 1
013-301-050 300-1090 1
013-301-051 300-0600 1
013-311-002 300-0650 1
013-311-003 300-0635 1
013-311-004 300-1060 1
013-311-005 300-1055 1
013-311-007 300-1045 1
013-311-009 300-0615 1
013-311-010 300-0605 1
013-311-012 300-0595 1
013-311-013 300-0585 1
013-311-014 300-1295 1
013-311-015 300-1280 1
013-311-016 300-1275 1
013-311-017 300-1265 1
013-311-018 300-1255 1
013-311-019 300-1245 1
013-311-020 300-1230 1

5
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com71

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-311-021 300-1035 1
013-312-001 300-1225 1
013-312-002 300-1235 1
013-312-003 300-1240 1
013-312-004 300-1250 1
013-312-005 300-1260 1
013-312-006 300-1270 1
013-312-007 300-1285 1
013-312-008 300-1290 1
013-312-009 300-0565 1
013-312-010 300-1530 1
013-312-011 300-1525 1
013-312-012 300-1510 1
013-312-013 300-1495 1
013-312-014 300-1485 1
013-312-015 300-1475 1
013-312-016 300-1465 1
013-312-018 300-1445 1
013-313-001 300-1440 1
013-313-002 300-1450 1
013-313-003 300-1455 1
013-313-006 300-1480 1
013-313-007 300-1490 1
013-313-008 300-1500 1
013-313-009 300-1505 1
013-313-010 300-1515 1
013-313-011 300-1520 1
013-313-012 300-1535 1
013-313-015 300-1470 1
013-321-002 100-2990 1
013-321-003 100-2985 1
013-321-004 100-2980 1
013-321-005 100-0190 1
013-321-006 100-2995 1
013-321-013 100-3000 1
013-321-014 100-0180 1
013-322-001 100-0170 1
013-322-003 100-0160 1
013-322-004 100-0155 1
013-322-005 100-0150 1
013-322-007 100-0140 1
013-322-008 100-0135 1
013-322-009 100-0120 1
013-323-001 100-0210 1
013-323-003 100-0195 1

6
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com72

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-323-005 100-0175 1
013-323-006 100-0165 1
013-323-007 040-0158 1
013-323-008 035-0162 1
013-324-001 100-0130 1
013-324-003 100-0115 1
013-324-004 100-0100 1
013-324-005 100-0095 1
013-324-007 100-0075 1
013-324-008 100-0065 1
013-324-014 100-0025 1
013-324-015 100-0015 1
013-324-017 100-0040 1
013-324-021 100-0055 1
013-324-022 100-0050 1
013-325-001 100-0110 1
013-325-002 100-0105 1
013-325-004 100-0080 1
013-325-005 100-0070 1
013-325-006 100-0060 1
013-325-007 100-0045 1
013-325-008 100-0035 1
013-325-010 100-0010 1
013-325-011 100-0005 1
013-331-001 220-1250 1
013-331-002 220-1060 1
013-331-003 220-1045 1
013-331-004 220-1040 1
013-331-005 220-1035 1
013-331-006 220-1030 1
013-331-008 220-1050 1
013-331-009 220-1055 1
013-331-014 220-1095 1
013-331-015 220-1100 1
013-331-016 220-1115 1
013-331-017 220-1125 1
013-331-018 220-1135 1
013-331-023 220-1168 1
013-331-024 220-1170 1
013-331-025 220-1165 1
013-331-026 220-1155 1
013-331-027 220-1150 1
013-331-028 220-1140 1
013-331-035 220-1080 1
013-331-036 220-1070 1

7
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com73

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-331-037 220-1245 1
013-331-039 220-1145 1
013-331-040 220-1160 1
013-331-041 035-0070 1
013-331-042 220-1175 1
013-331-043 220-1130 1
013-331-044 220-1120 1
013-331-045 220-1110 1
013-331-046 220-1105 1
013-331-047 220-1090 1
013-331-048 220-1085 1
013-331-049 200-1240 1
013-331-050 220-1065 1
013-331-051 220-1075 1
013-341-001 200-1205 1
013-341-002 200-1520 1
013-341-003 200-1530 1
013-341-004 200-1540 1
013-341-005 200-1545 1
013-341-006 200-1535 1
013-341-007 200-1525 1
013-341-010 200-1255 1
013-341-012 200-1270 1
013-341-013 200-1265 1
013-341-014 200-1260 1
013-341-015 200-1235 1
013-341-016 200-1360 1
013-341-017 200-1355 1
013-341-018 200-1230 1
013-341-019 200-1225 1
013-341-020 200-1495 1
013-341-021 200-1515 1
013-341-024 200-1210 1
013-341-028 200-1220 1
013-341-029 200-1215 1
013-351-001 200-1350 1
013-351-004 200-1340 1
013-351-006 200-1325 1
013-351-007 200-1315 1
013-351-008 200-1310 1
013-351-009 200-1300 1
013-351-011 200-1290 1
013-351-012 200-1285 1
013-351-013 200-1280 1
013-351-015 200-1450 1

8
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com74

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-351-016 200-1455 1
013-351-017 200-1460 1
013-351-037 200-1330 1
013-351-038 200-1335 1
013-351-040 200-1440 1
013-351-041 200-1320 1
013-351-042 200-1305 1
013-351-044 200-1295 1
013-351-045 200-1275 1
013-351-047 200-1465 1
013-351-048 200-1485 1
013-351-049 200-1400 1
013-351-050 200-1405 1
013-351-051 200-1410 1
013-351-053 200-1430 1
013-351-054 200-1345 1
013-371-001 200-1470 1
013-371-002 200-1475 1
013-371-003 200-1480 1
013-371-004 200-1490 1
013-371-005 200-1395 1
013-371-006 200-1390 1
013-371-007 200-1385 1
013-371-008 200-1365 1
013-371-009 200-1370 1
013-371-010 200-1375 1
013-371-011 200-1380 1
013-371-012 200-1500 1
013-371-013 200-1510 1
013-371-014 200-1505 1
013-371-015 200-1415 1
013-371-016 200-1420 1
013-371-017 200-1425 1
013-371-018 200-1435 1
013-371-019 200-1445 1
013-371-027 200-1615 1
013-371-028 200-1610 1
013-371-029 200-1605 1
022-012-015 200-0460 1
022-012-018 200-0465 1
022-012-030 200-0440 1
022-012-031 200-0450 1
022-013-019 200-0365 1
022-013-045 200-1550 1
022-013-046 200-0370 1

9
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com75

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-013-048 200-0395 1
022-013-050 200-1560 1
022-013-055 200-0425 1
022-013-057 200-0415 1
022-013-058 200-0400 1
022-014-007 200-0385 1
022-014-008 200-0390 1
022-014-021 200-0330 1
022-014-036 200-0410 1
022-014-037 200-0350 1
022-014-039 200-0305 1
022-014-040 200-0380 1
022-014-043 200-0320 1
022-014-046 200-0315 1
022-021-009 200-0530 1
022-021-017 200-0495 1
022-021-019 200-0550 1
022-021-020 200-0540 1
022-021-021 200-0525 1
022-021-022 200-0505 1
022-021-023 200-0515 1
022-021-024 200-0480 1
022-021-025 200-1565 1
022-022-002 200-0485 1
022-022-003 200-0490 1
022-022-006 200-0520 1
022-022-013 200-1645 1
022-022-019 200-1685 1
022-022-020 200-1690 1
022-022-025 200-0500 1
022-022-026 200-0510 1
022-022-027 200-0545 1
022-022-032 200-1720 1
022-022-033 200-1710 1
022-022-038 200-1700 1
022-022-039 200-0535 1
022-022-040 200-0470 1
022-022-041 200-0475 1
022-022-042 200-1655 1
022-022-043 200-1675 1
022-022-043 200-1680 1
022-023-004 200-1660 1
022-023-005 200-1665 1
022-023-006 200-1670 1
022-023-011 200-1695 1

10
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com76

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-023-013 200-1705 1
022-023-019 200-2460 1
022-023-020 200-2465 1
022-023-021 200-2475 1
022-023-022 200-2470 1
022-023-027 200-2490 1
022-023-030 200-1555 1
022-023-032 200-1650 1
022-024-006 200-2480 1
022-024-027 200-2485 1
022-024-036 200-2505 1
022-024-037 200-2500 1
022-024-041 200-2495 1
022-024-042 200-2455 1
022-024-047 200-2605 1
022-024-048 200-2595 1
022-024-049 200-2600 1
022-026-037 200-0025 1
022-026-043 200-0015 1
022-026-044 200-0300 1
022-026-045 200-0020 1
022-031-007 200-0590 1
022-031-008 200-0600 1
022-031-016 200-0585 1
022-031-025 200-0570 1
022-031-026 200-0575 1
022-032-001 200-1200 1
022-032-002 200-0565 1
022-032-015 200-1730 1
022-032-016 200-1735 1
022-032-025 200-0610 1
022-032-027 200-0595 1
022-032-033 200-1745 1
022-032-035 200-0620 1
022-032-039 200-0605 1
022-032-041 200-0293 1
022-032-042 200-1775 1
022-032-043 200-1760 1
022-033-004 200-1740 1
022-033-009 200-1770 1
022-033-010 200-1780 1
022-033-013 200-1785 1
022-033-016 200-2530 1
022-033-017 200-2540 1
022-033-018 200-2545 1

11
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com77

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-033-019 200-2555 1
022-033-029 200-2565 1
022-033-030 200-1725 1
022-033-032 200-2520 1
022-033-033 200-2590 1
022-033-035 200-1750 1
022-033-037 200-2580 1
022-033-039 200-1765 1
022-033-041 200-2575 1
022-034-001 200-2515 1
022-034-002 200-2525 1
022-034-003 200-2535 1
022-034-009 200-1185 1
022-034-013 200-2635 1
022-034-021 200-2570 1
022-034-023 200-2585 1
022-034-025 200-2645 1
022-034-027 200-2560 1
022-034-029 200-2615 1
022-034-030 200-2625 1
022-035-005 200-2630 1
022-035-011 200-2655 1
022-035-018 200-1930 1
022-035-021 200-2620 1
022-035-023 200-2610 1
022-035-025 200-2640 1
022-035-026 200-1925 1
022-035-027 200-1180 1
022-041-001 200-0630 1
022-041-009 200-0660 1
022-041-010 200-0645 1
022-041-011 200-0655 1
022-041-013 200-0695 1
022-041-015 200-0412 1
022-041-016 200-0665 1
022-041-017 200-0680 1
022-041-018 200-0690 1
022-042-009 200-1800 1
022-042-010 200-1810 1
022-042-031 200-1845 1
022-042-037 200-0635 1
022-042-038 200-0625 1
022-042-039 200-1955 1
022-042-041 200-1820 1
022-042-042 200-0640 1

12
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com78

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-042-043 200-1815 1
022-042-045 200-0670 1
022-042-046 200-0675 1
022-042-050 200-0685 1
022-042-051 200-0700 1
022-042-053 200-1855 1
022-042-054 200-1830 1
022-043-002 200-0730 1
022-043-003 200-0735 1
022-043-013 200-0755 1
022-043-014 200-0770 1
022-043-015 200-0715 1
022-043-016 200-1970 1
022-044-008 200-0750 1
022-044-009 200-0760 1
022-044-013 200-1870 1
022-044-014 200-1875 1
022-044-026 200-0725 1
022-044-030 200-1900 1
022-044-031 200-0765 1
022-044-033 200-1890 1
022-044-038 200-0705 1
022-044-039 200-0710 1
022-044-040 200-0740 1
022-044-041 200-0745 1
022-044-044 200-1920 1
022-045-003 200-1880 1
022-045-006 200-1915 1
022-045-007 200-1995 1
022-045-009 200-2020 1
022-045-010 200-2030 1
022-045-019 200-2050 1
022-045-020 200-2395 1
022-045-026 200-1885 1
022-045-027 200-2005 1
022-045-028 200-1895 1
022-045-029 200-1910 1
022-046-003 200-2415 1
022-046-004 200-2410 1
022-047-005 200-2405 1
022-048-004 200-2385 1
022-048-008 200-2390 1
022-048-009 200-2400 1
022-052-008 200-0340 1
022-052-021 200-0270 1

13
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com79

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-052-024 200-0285 1
022-052-038 200-0290 1
022-052-039 200-0080 1
022-052-045 200-0325 1
022-052-047 200-0265 1
022-052-049 200-0358 1
022-052-052 040-0016 1
022-053-013 200-0055 1
022-053-034 200-0045 1
022-053-037 200-0295 1
022-053-041 035-0052 1
022-053-043 200-0075 1
022-053-044 200-0070 1
022-053-051 200-0030 1
022-053-052 200-0035 1
022-053-054 200-0050 1
022-071-044 200-2720 1
022-071-070 200-2690 1
022-071-077 200-2705 1
022-071-080 200-2715 1
022-071-086 200-1935 1
022-071-087 300-0005 1
022-071-088 200-2700 1
022-083-001 200-1825 1
022-083-002 200-2420 1
022-083-003 200-2425 1
022-083-007 200-1835 1
022-083-009 200-1850 1
022-083-011 200-1980 1
022-083-012 200-1985 1
022-083-014 200-2000 1
022-083-015 200-2010 1
022-083-017 200-2025 1
022-083-018 200-2035 1
022-083-019 200-2045 1
022-083-020 200-2055 1
022-083-021 200-2380 1
022-083-023 200-2370 1
022-083-026 200-2335 1
022-083-027 200-2210 1
022-083-028 200-2205 1
022-083-029 200-2190 1
022-083-032 200-2165 1
022-083-033 040-0030 1
022-083-035 200-2150 1

14
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com80

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-083-038 200-2135 1
022-083-041 200-2115 1
022-083-042 200-2105 1
022-083-043 200-2100 1
022-083-044 200-2090 1
022-083-046 200-2085 1
022-083-048 200-2065 1
022-083-049 200-1840 1
022-083-052 200-2440 1
022-083-053 200-2430 1
022-083-054 200-1990 1
022-083-056 200-2445 1
022-083-057 200-2435 1
022-083-058 200-2140 1
022-083-061 200-2360 1
022-084-001 200-1805 1
022-084-002 200-1795 1
022-084-005 200-1940 1
022-084-006 200-2660 1
022-084-007 200-2665 1
022-084-010 200-2685 1
022-084-011 200-2695 1
022-084-012 200-2710 1
022-084-014 200-2730 1
022-084-022 200-2200 1
022-084-023 200-2195 1
022-084-024 200-2185 1
022-084-025 200-2180 1
022-084-026 200-2175 1
022-084-027 200-2170 1
022-084-028 200-2160 1
022-084-035 200-2120 1
022-084-036 200-2110 1
022-084-038 200-2675 1
022-084-039 200-2095 1
022-084-040 200-2080 1
022-084-043 200-2060 1
022-084-049 200-1945 1
022-084-050 200-2725 1
022-084-053 200-2755 1
022-084-057 200-2075 1
022-084-059 200-2125 1
022-084-060 200-2155 1
022-084-061 200-2145 1
022-084-064 200-2735 1

15
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com81

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-084-065 200-2745 1
022-084-066 200-2750 1
022-091-022 200-2325 1
022-091-029 200-2265 1
022-091-033 200-2315 1
022-091-039 200-2330 1
022-091-041 200-2340 1
022-091-045 200-2270 1
022-091-046 200-2320 1
022-091-051 200-2350 1
022-091-055 200-2285 1
022-091-056 200-2345 1
022-091-057 200-2255 1
022-091-058 200-2245 1
022-091-059 200-2365 1
022-093-001 200-2310 1
022-093-002 200-2305 1
022-093-003 200-2295 1
022-093-008 200-2280 1
022-093-010 200-2275 1
022-093-017 200-2260 1
022-093-020 200-2250 1
022-093-021 200-2240 1
022-093-022 200-2235 1
022-093-026 200-2225 1
022-093-037 300-0365 1
022-093-040 300-0390 1
022-093-041 300-0385 1
022-093-044 300-0395 1
022-093-045 200-2220 1
022-093-053 200-2290 1
022-093-054 300-0360 1
022-131-004 200-2230 1
022-131-006 300-0790 1
022-131-010 300-0795 1
022-131-014 300-0685 1
022-131-021 300-0815 1
022-131-023 300-0840 1
022-131-026 300-0855 1
022-131-027 300-0860 1
022-131-034 300-0785 1
022-131-036 300-0825 1
022-131-038 300-0780 1
022-131-048 300-0775 1
022-131-059 300-0845 1

16
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com82

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-141-011 300-0850 1
022-141-017 300-0820 1
022-141-018 300-0810 1
022-141-026 300-0865 1
022-141-028 300-0805 1
022-141-032 300-0700 1
022-141-033 300-0695 1
022-141-034 300-0720 1
022-141-035 300-0725 1
022-141-036 300-0835 1
022-141-038 300-0765 1
022-141-039 300-0770 1
022-141-045 300-0745 1
022-141-046 300-0830 1
022-151-024 100-0440 1
022-151-053 100-0390 1
022-151-061 040-0045 1
022-151-067 100-0445 1
022-151-069 100-0425 1
022-151-076 100-0340 1
022-151-081 100-0415 1
022-151-082 100-0355 1
022-151-084 100-0350 1
022-151-086 100-0380 1
022-151-087 100-0410 1
022-151-088 100-0515 1
022-161-006 100-0305 1
022-161-008 100-0315 1
022-161-009 100-0310 1
022-162-010 100-0900 1
022-162-011 100-0905 1
022-162-013 100-0885 1
022-162-017 100-0890 1
022-162-018 100-0920 1
022-162-019 100-0915 1
022-163-002 100-0875 1
022-163-004 100-0300 1
022-163-005 100-0290 1
022-163-007 100-0930 1
022-163-009 100-0880 1
022-171-003 100-0325 1
022-171-004 100-0320 1
022-171-005 100-0375 1
022-171-006 100-0385 1
022-171-024 100-0552 1

17
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com83

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-171-028 100-0595 1
022-171-031 100-0610 1
022-171-034 100-0620 1
022-171-035 100-0545 1
022-171-036 100-0550 1
022-171-040 100-0395 1
022-171-041 100-0535 1
022-171-047 100-0455 1
022-171-048 100-0422 1
022-171-052 100-0420 1
022-171-053 100-0405 1
022-171-054 100-0435 1
022-171-055 100-0565 1
022-171-056 100-0575 1
022-171-057 100-0400 1
022-172-002 100-0635 1
022-172-004 100-0525 1
022-172-005 100-0530 1
022-172-018 100-0600 1
022-172-021 100-0655 1
022-172-022 100-0660 1
022-172-023 100-0670 1
022-172-025 100-0680 1
022-172-031 100-0732 1
022-172-033 100-0740 1
022-172-036 100-0750 1
022-172-039 100-0520 1
022-172-044 100-0590 1
022-172-049 100-0580 1
022-172-050 100-0570 1
022-172-053 100-0690 1
022-172-054 100-0700 1
022-172-057 100-0760 1
022-172-059 100-0770 1
022-172-060 100-0615 1
022-172-061 100-0540 1
022-181-003 100-0285 1
022-181-006 100-0665 1
022-181-007 100-0675 1
022-181-010 100-0695 1
022-181-011 100-0705 1
022-181-014 100-0730 1
022-181-015 100-0735 1
022-181-016 100-0745 1
022-181-018 100-0765 1

18
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com84

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-181-026 100-0955 1
022-181-033 100-1015 1
022-181-034 100-1035 1
022-181-035 100-1040 1
022-181-042 100-0685 1
022-181-047 100-0965 1
022-181-049 100-0725 1
022-181-052 100-0995 1
022-181-053 100-0295 1
022-181-054 100-0945 1
022-181-055 100-0980 1
022-181-056 100-0975 1
022-181-058 100-0775 1
022-181-062 100-1065 1
022-181-063 100-1060 1
022-181-064 100-1075 1
022-181-065 100-1010 1
022-182-011 100-0985 1
022-182-013 100-1005 1
022-182-014 100-1020 1
022-182-015 100-1025 1
022-182-017 100-1045 1
022-182-020 100-1070 1
022-182-021 100-1080 1
022-182-022 100-1082 1
022-182-025 100-1400 1
022-182-037 100-1495 1
022-182-039 100-1000 1
022-182-042 100-1050 1
022-182-043 100-1055 1
022-182-047 100-1440 1
022-182-048 100-1450 1
022-182-050 100-0280 1
022-182-051 100-1475 1
022-182-057 100-1385 1
022-182-058 100-1395 1
022-182-061 100-0270 1
022-182-065 100-1425 1
022-182-066 100-1430 1
022-182-069 100-1380 1
022-182-070 100-0950 1
022-182-071 100-1470 1
022-191-003 100-0510 1
022-191-013 100-1125 1
022-191-018 100-1140 1

19
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com85

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-191-020 100-1155 1
022-191-027 100-1145 1
022-191-029 100-1135 1
022-191-030 100-1130 1
022-191-034 100-0505 1
022-192-007 100-1115 1
022-192-014 100-1515 1
022-192-019 100-1530 1
022-192-029 100-1120 1
022-192-033 100-1110 1
022-192-036 100-1510 1
022-192-037 100-1505 1
022-192-039 100-1350 1
022-192-041 100-1090 1
022-192-043 100-1105 1
022-192-048 100-1545 1
022-192-049 100-1555 1
022-193-004 100-1535 1
022-193-011 100-1570 1
022-193-013 100-1745 1
022-193-014 100-1750 1
022-193-021 100-1805 1
022-193-026 100-1560 1
022-193-027 100-1550 1
022-193-028 100-1540 1
022-193-029 100-1785 1
022-193-031 100-1760 1
022-193-036 100-1770 1
022-201-006 100-1295 1
022-201-007 100-1305 1
022-201-010 100-1340 1
022-201-016 100-1170 1
022-201-017 100-1180 1
022-201-021 100-1195 1
022-201-026 100-1225 1
022-201-035 100-1240 1
022-201-049 100-1315 1
022-201-050 100-1320 1
022-201-051 100-1325 1
022-201-053 100-1335 1
022-201-055 100-1290 1
022-201-056 100-1255 1
022-201-057 100-1185 1
022-201-064 100-1160 1
022-201-068 100-1175 1

20
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com86

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-201-069 100-1285 1
022-201-070 100-1235 1
022-201-071 100-1280 1
022-201-072 100-1205 1
022-201-073 100-1330 1
022-201-074 100-1215 1
022-201-076 100-1310 1
022-202-006 100-1200 1
022-202-009 100-1220 1
022-202-014 100-1245 1
022-202-016 100-1260 1
022-202-023 100-1250 1
022-202-026 100-1265 1
022-202-027 100-1210 1
022-212-019 300-0730 1
022-212-020 300-0735 1
022-212-025 300-0750 1
022-212-028 300-0460 1
022-212-029 300-0470 1
022-212-032 300-0490 1
022-212-033 300-0495 1
022-212-034 300-0500 1
022-212-044 300-0740 1
022-212-046 300-0480 1
022-212-051 300-0445 1
022-222-005 100-0830 1
022-222-022 100-0840 1
022-222-023 100-0835 1
022-222-026 100-0845 1
022-222-027 100-0860 1
022-223-001 100-0865 1
022-223-003 100-1355 1
022-223-008 100-1370 1
022-223-009 100-0925 1
022-223-010 100-0935 1
022-224-007 100-1360 1
022-224-011 100-1615 1
022-224-012 100-0265 1
022-224-013 100-1365 1
022-226-018 100-0260 1
022-226-019 100-1405 1
022-226-021 100-1415 1
022-226-022 100-1390 1
022-226-023 100-1625 1
022-227-004 100-1620 1

21
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com87

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-227-006 100-1630 1
022-227-016 100-1870 1
022-227-019 100-1600 1
022-227-023 100-1825 1
022-227-024 100-1830 1
022-227-025 100-1850 1
022-227-026 100-1635 1
022-227-028 100-1835 1
022-231-003 100-1445 1
022-231-006 100-1460 1
022-231-007 100-1465 1
022-231-018 100-1670 1
022-231-021 100-1695 1
022-231-027 100-1730 1
022-231-029 100-1710 1
022-231-030 100-1700 1
022-231-031 100-1420 1
022-231-034 100-1690 1
022-231-035 100-1480 1
022-231-037 100-1735 1
022-231-038 100-0500 1
022-231-039 100-1485 1
022-231-041 100-1655 1
022-232-001 100-1640 1
022-232-010 100-1715 1
022-232-011 100-1720 1
022-232-012 100-1725 1
022-232-013 100-0495 1
022-232-014 100-1875 1
022-232-025 100-0490 1
022-232-029 100-1705 1
022-232-031 100-1900 1
022-232-034 100-1680 1
022-232-036 100-1930 1
022-232-037 100-1920 1
022-232-040 100-1890 1
022-232-042 100-1675 1
022-232-043 100-1650 1
022-232-044 100-1660 1
022-232-046 100-1910 1
022-233-002 100-1885 1
022-233-009 100-1915 1
022-233-014 100-2085 1
022-233-025 100-0480 1
022-233-029 100-1895 1

22
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com88

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-233-032 100-2125 1
022-233-033 100-1925 1
022-233-034 100-2135 1
022-233-038 100-2115 1
022-233-041 100-2090 1
022-233-042 100-1905 1
022-241-008 100-1765 1
022-241-009 100-1775 1
022-241-010 100-1790 1
022-241-016 100-1960 1
022-241-019 100-1975 1
022-241-020 100-1980 1
022-241-024 100-1755 1
022-241-028 100-1955 1
022-241-029 100-1940 1
022-241-033 100-1965 1
022-241-040 100-1795 1
022-241-041 100-1800 1
022-241-043 100-1995 1
022-242-001 100-0485 1
022-242-002 100-1945 1
022-242-008 100-1990 1
022-242-024 100-1950 1
022-242-028 100-2140 1
022-242-029 100-1970 1
022-242-030 100-2155 1
022-242-033 100-1985 1
022-242-035 100-2170 1
022-242-037 100-2185 1
022-243-001 100-0470 1
022-243-004 100-2150 1
022-243-010 100-2190 1
022-243-011 100-0465 1
022-243-015 100-2375 1
022-243-017 100-2390 1
022-243-018 100-2400 1
022-243-023 100-2410 1
022-243-024 100-2145 1
022-243-025 100-2370 1
022-243-026 100-2175 1
022-243-027 100-2160 1
022-243-028 100-2180 1
022-261-008 300-1325 1
022-261-033 300-1360 1
022-261-036 300-1340 1

23
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com89

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-261-052 300-1310 1
022-261-066 300-1300 1
022-261-069 300-1345 1
022-271-002 300-0475 1
022-271-006 300-1315 1
022-271-007 300-1320 1
022-271-025 300-0455 1
022-271-026 300-0465 1
022-271-033 300-1350 1
022-271-038 300-1330 1
022-271-039 300-1335 1
022-271-053 300-1342 1
022-271-054 300-1355 1
022-271-055 300-0450 1
022-282-004 100-2000 1
022-282-009 100-1815 1
022-282-012 100-0825 1
022-282-013 100-0250 1
022-282-014 100-0245 1
022-283-005 100-2005 1
022-283-006 100-2010 1
022-283-012 100-2205 1
022-283-013 100-2215 1
022-283-014 100-0815 1
022-283-015 100-2220 1
022-283-016 100-0820 1
022-283-017 040-0035 1
022-291-003 100-0240 1
022-291-007 100-1845 1
022-291-010 100-1595 1
022-291-012 100-2035 1
022-291-013 100-2040 1
022-291-026 100-2065 1
022-291-030 100-1855 1
022-291-031 100-2020 1
022-291-033 100-1860 1
022-291-034 100-1865 1
022-291-035 100-2060 1
022-292-003 040-0050 1
022-292-004 100-2030 1
022-292-008 100-2045 1
022-292-013 100-2235 1
022-292-021 100-2015 1
022-292-022 100-2250 1
022-292-023 100-2042 1

24
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com90

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-292-024 100-2025 1
022-292-025 100-2245 1
022-292-026 100-2275 1
022-292-028 100-2050 1
022-292-029 100-2055 1
022-292-030 100-2280 1
022-301-017 100-2675 1
022-301-022 100-2685 1
022-301-025 100-0785 1
022-301-025 100-0790 1
022-301-026 100-0780 1
022-302-001 100-0795 1
022-302-006 100-2200 1
022-302-011 100-2425 1
022-302-012 100-2445 1
022-302-015 100-2210 1
022-302-016 100-0810 1
022-302-018 100-0235 1
022-302-019 100-2225 1
022-303-012 100-2680 1
022-303-014 100-0220 1
022-303-015 100-2450 1
022-303-020 100-2440 1
022-303-021 100-2670 1
022-303-022 100-2420 1
022-311-001 100-2230 1
022-311-010 100-2290 1
022-311-012 100-2460 1
022-311-013 100-2470 1
022-311-016 100-2455 1
022-311-021 100-2490 1
022-311-024 100-2285 1
022-311-026 100-2270 1
022-311-027 100-2485 1
022-311-028 100-2240 1
022-311-030 100-2255 1
022-311-031 100-2260 1
022-312-006 100-2465 1
022-312-022 100-2740 1
022-312-025 100-2710 1
022-312-026 100-1580 1
022-312-029 100-2690 1
022-312-030 100-2730 1
022-312-031 100-0225 1
022-312-032 100-2475 1

25
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com91

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-312-034 100-2480 1
022-312-037 100-2452 1
022-313-014 100-2700 1
022-313-024 100-2720 1
022-313-025 100-2705 1
022-313-028 100-0215 1
022-313-029 100-2695 1
022-313-031 100-2750 1
022-313-032 100-2745 1
022-313-037 100-2770 1
022-321-009 100-2120 1
022-321-012 100-2300 1
022-321-015 100-2315 1
022-321-024 100-2130 1
022-321-026 100-2080 1
022-321-028 100-2310 1
022-321-030 100-2335 1
022-321-032 100-2110 1
022-321-033 100-2345 1
022-321-034 100-2325 1
022-322-005 100-2320 1
022-322-009 100-2350 1
022-322-010 100-1585 1
022-322-011 100-2500 1
022-322-017 100-2510 1
022-322-019 100-2295 1
022-322-021 100-2340 1
022-322-023 100-2330 1
022-322-024 100-2305 1
022-322-025 100-2515 1
022-322-027 100-2525 1
022-323-009 100-2545 1
022-323-025 100-2495 1
022-323-028 100-2540 1
022-323-029 100-2530 1
022-323-031 100-2780 1
022-323-033 100-2775 1
022-323-037 100-2765 1
022-323-043 100-2505 1
022-323-045 100-2520 1
022-323-046 100-2755 1
022-331-017 100-2570 1
022-331-021 100-2580 1
022-331-040 100-2605 1
022-331-042 100-2550 1

26
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com92

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-331-044 100-2385 1
022-331-045 100-2395 1
022-331-049 100-2365 1
022-331-052 100-2360 1
022-331-053 100-2590 1
022-331-055 100-2355 1
022-332-005 100-2575 1
022-332-012 100-2795 1
022-332-014 100-2810 1
022-332-018 100-2845 1
022-332-019 100-2850 1
022-332-020 100-2865 1
022-332-021 100-2825 1
022-332-024 100-2585 1
022-332-025 100-2595 1
022-332-026 100-2600 1
022-332-027 100-2800 1
022-332-028 100-2560 1
022-332-029 100-2555 1
022-333-002 100-2805 1
022-333-003 100-2815 1
022-333-009 100-2840 1
022-333-011 100-2820 1
022-333-012 100-2830 1
022-333-013 100-2860 1
022-333-016 100-2785 1
022-333-017 100-2790 1
022-341-005 100-1150 1
022-341-016 100-2655 1
022-341-026 100-2610 1
022-341-029 100-2620 1
022-341-032 100-2640 1
022-341-033 100-2650 1
022-341-034 120-2665 1
022-341-036 100-2965 1
022-341-038 100-1275 1
022-341-039 100-2415 1
022-341-042 100-1165 1
022-342-004 100-2615 1
022-342-007 100-2630 1
022-342-014 100-2940 1
022-342-015 100-2635 1
022-342-017 100-2645 1
022-342-020 100-2660 1
022-342-023 100-2930 1

27
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com93

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-342-024 100-2915 1
022-342-027 100-2900 1
022-342-029 100-2875 1
022-342-030 100-2880 1
022-342-032 100-1270 1
022-342-033 100-2625 1
022-343-008 100-2950 1
022-343-009 100-2955 1
022-343-012 100-2960 1
022-343-014 100-2970 1
022-343-016 100-2920 1
022-343-022 100-2895 1
022-343-023 100-2890 1
022-343-024 100-2885 1
022-343-028 100-2910 1
022-343-031 100-2925 1
022-343-039 100-2870 1
022-343-042 100-2935 1
022-343-043 100-2945 1
022-351-004 300-0890 1
022-351-005 300-0530 1
022-351-006 300-0545 1
022-351-007 300-0535 1
022-351-010 300-0505 1
022-351-011 300-0515 1
022-351-013 300-0955 1
022-351-014 300-0900 1
022-351-015 300-0925 1
022-351-016 300-0945 1
022-352-003 300-0910 1
022-352-004 300-0905 1
022-352-008 300-0915 1
022-352-009 300-0920 1
022-352-010 300-0930 1
022-352-012 300-0935 1
022-352-013 300-0950 1
022-352-014 300-0940 1
022-352-015 300-0960 1
022-352-016 300-0705 1
022-352-022 300-0880 1
022-352-023 300-0895 1
022-353-003 300-0715 1
022-353-004 300-0710 1
022-353-010 300-0525 1
022-353-011 300-0520 1

28
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com94

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-353-012 300-0510 1
022-353-013 300-0760 1
022-353-015 300-0755 1
022-354-001 300-0875 1
022-361-012 200-0205 1
023-011-010 900-1395 1
023-011-015 900-1405 1
023-012-002 900-1710 1
023-012-009 900-1665 1
023-012-010 900-1725 1
023-012-017 900-1715 1
023-012-021 900-1695 1
023-012-023 900-1690 1
023-012-028 900-1680 1
023-013-005 900-1685 1
023-013-009 900-1385 1
023-013-024 900-1375 1
023-013-026 900-1705 1
023-014-021 900-1675 1
023-014-022 900-0690 1
023-014-023 900-0685 1
023-014-026 900-0610 1
023-014-027 900-0605 1
023-014-029 900-1365 1
023-015-006 900-0475 1
023-015-009 900-0485 1
023-015-010 900-0490 1
023-015-011 900-0480 1
023-015-013 900-0515 1
023-015-015 900-0520 1
023-015-016 900-0530 1
023-015-023 900-0445 1
023-015-024 900-0540 1
023-016-004 900-1390 1
023-016-009 900-0535 1
023-016-014 900-0570 1
023-016-015 900-0585 1
023-016-022 900-0495 1
023-016-025 900-0500 1
023-016-028 900-0595 1
023-016-039 900-0565 1
023-016-046 900-0510 1
023-016-047 900-0470 1
023-017-007 900-0550 1
023-017-008 900-0555 1

29
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com95

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-017-011 900-0590 1
023-017-012 900-0600 1
023-017-013 900-0425 1
023-017-025 900-0650 1
023-017-030 900-0660 1
023-017-031 900-0640 1
023-017-033 900-1380 1
023-017-037 900-0675 1
023-017-038 900-0683 1
023-017-043 900-0575 1
023-018-004 900-0625 1
023-018-007 900-0645 1
023-018-010 900-0655 1
023-018-011 900-0653 1
023-018-012 900-0680 1
023-018-017 900-0415 1
023-018-025 900-0745 1
023-018-027 900-0740 1
023-018-028 900-0725 1
023-018-031 900-0730 1
023-018-036 900-1370 1
023-018-037 900-0715 1
023-018-039 900-0710 1
023-018-040 900-0702 1
023-019-003 900-0440 1
023-019-016 800-0115 1
023-019-021 900-0435 1
023-019-024 900-0455 1
023-019-026 800-0100 1
023-019-027 800-0237 1
023-019-029 900-0460 1
023-019-030 800-0125 1
023-019-034 900-0420 1
023-019-035 800-0090 1
023-019-037 900-0450 1
023-019-038 800-0245 1
023-019-039 035-0137 1
023-021-001 800-0135 1
023-021-008 800-0095 1
023-021-015 800-0310 1
023-021-021 800-0130 1
023-021-022 800-0250 1
023-021-027 800-0305 1
023-021-028 800-0105 1
023-021-030 800-0110 1

30
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com96

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-022-014 900-0400 1
023-022-018 800-0080 1
023-022-019 900-0410 1
023-022-020 800-0070 1
023-022-022 800-0087 1
023-022-023 900-0837 1
023-023-001 800-0370 1
023-023-003 800-0385 1
023-023-009 800-0325 1
023-023-010 800-0335 1
023-023-011 800-0390 1
023-023-015 800-0410 1
023-023-022 800-0420 1
023-024-005 800-0285 1
023-024-007 800-0405 1
023-024-008 800-0265 1
023-024-010 800-0395 1
023-024-011 800-0375 1
023-025-003 800-0255 1
023-025-009 800-0275 1
023-025-012 800-0425 1
023-025-015 800-0330 1
023-025-021 800-0465 1
023-025-023 800-0280 1
023-025-031 800-0260 1
023-025-037 800-0295 1
023-025-038 800-0290 1
023-025-039 800-0415 1
023-026-003 800-0510 1
023-026-005 800-0475 1
023-031-001 800-0345 1
023-031-002 800-0355 1
023-031-003 800-0365 1
023-031-005 800-0455 1
023-031-006 800-0450 1
023-032-001 800-0340 1
023-032-002 800-0350 1
023-032-003 800-0360 1
023-032-006 800-0500 1
023-032-007 800-0495 1
023-032-008 800-0485 1
023-033-003 800-0430 1
023-033-010 800-0490 1
023-033-011 800-0520 1
023-033-012 800-0515 1

31
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com97

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-033-018 800-0470 1
023-034-002 700-0980 1
023-034-003 700-1010 1
023-034-007 700-0990 1
023-034-009 700-1005 1
023-034-014 800-0460 1
023-035-006 700-1015 1
023-035-007 800-0440 1
023-035-010 700-1040 1
023-035-015 700-1035 1
023-035-020 700-1000 1
023-035-022 700-0885 1
023-035-023 700-0895 1
023-035-024 700-0995 1
023-035-025 700-0985 1
023-035-026 700-0900 1
023-035-027 700-1020 1
023-035-028 700-0975 1
023-036-008 700-1070 1
023-036-011 700-1045 1
023-036-025 700-1060 1
023-036-027 700-1065 1
023-036-028 800-0435 1
023-036-034 700-1025 1
023-036-035 700-1030 1
023-041-014 900-1550 1
023-041-019 900-1555 1
023-041-026 900-1625 1
023-041-029 900-1415 1
023-041-030 900-1650 1
023-041-031 900-1545 1
023-041-033 900-1660 1
023-041-036 900-1645 1
023-041-040 900-1640 1
023-041-041 900-1585 1
023-041-042 900-1595 1
023-041-043 900-1620 1
023-041-044 900-1605 1
023-041-045 900-1637 1
023-041-046 900-1635 1
023-042-005 900-0700 1
023-042-011 900-1655 1
023-042-014 900-0760 1
023-042-017 900-0695 1
023-042-019 900-0770 1

32
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com98

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-042-020 900-0775 1
023-043-001 900-0765 1
023-043-010 900-1355 1
023-044-001 900-0115 1
023-044-005 900-1340 1
023-044-008 900-1590 1
023-044-009 900-1580 1
023-044-010 900-1570 1
023-044-011 900-1325 1
023-044-012 900-1315 1
023-044-014 900-1560 1
023-044-017 900-1610 1
023-044-019 900-1540 1
023-045-020 900-0805 1
023-045-021 900-0810 1
023-045-022 900-0815 1
023-045-023 900-0820 1
023-045-029 900-0705 1
023-045-037 900-0795 1
023-045-038 900-0790 1
023-045-039 900-0780 1
023-045-040 900-0800 1
023-045-041 900-0735 1
023-045-042 900-0835 1
023-046-004 900-1345 1
023-046-010 900-0825 1
023-046-019 900-0125 1
023-046-020 900-0130 1
023-046-022 900-0150 1
023-046-027 900-0135 1
023-046-029 900-1350 1
023-046-032 900-0145 1
023-046-042 900-0395 1
023-046-043 900-0155 1
023-046-045 900-0122 1
023-047-001 900-1342 1
023-047-005 900-0120 1
023-047-009 900-0132 1
023-047-016 900-0870 1
023-047-018 900-0880 1
023-047-024 900-0140 1
023-047-034 900-0890 1
023-047-035 900-0860 1
023-047-037 900-0850 1
023-048-002 900-1330 1

33
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com99

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-048-021 900-0930 1
023-048-035 900-0845 1
023-048-041 900-0910 1
023-048-044 900-0900 1
023-048-047 900-0920 1
023-048-053 900-0865 1
023-048-054 900-0855 1
023-048-055 900-0940 1
023-049-011 900-0925 1
023-049-013 900-0935 1
023-049-014 900-0950 1
023-049-015 900-0960 1
023-049-018 900-0974 1
023-049-020 900-0990 1
023-049-021 900-0995 1
023-049-022 900-1002 1
023-049-023 900-1005 1
023-049-024 900-0955 1
023-049-031 900-0945 1
023-049-035 900-0980 1
023-049-037 900-0905 1
023-049-042 900-0895 1
023-049-044 900-0965 1
023-049-046 900-0915 1
023-051-005 900-0160 1
023-051-006 900-0255 1
023-051-011 900-0365 1
023-051-014 900-0375 1
023-051-018 900-0385 1
023-051-023 900-0370 1
023-051-027 900-0300 1
023-051-028 900-0285 1
023-051-034 900-0290 1
023-051-037 900-0280 1
023-051-038 900-0270 1
023-052-001 900-0390 1
023-052-004 900-0110 1
023-052-012 800-0040 1
023-052-013 800-0030 1
023-052-014 800-0055 1
023-052-024 800-0145 1
023-052-025 800-0050 1
023-052-027 800-0045 1
023-052-028 900-0095 1
023-052-029 800-0140 1

34
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com100

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-062-001 800-1600 1
023-062-005 800-1580 1
023-062-011 800-1350 1
023-062-016 800-1575 1
023-062-018 800-1565 1
023-062-019 800-0730 1
023-062-024 800-1570 1
023-062-025 800-1590 1
023-062-026 800-1345 1
023-062-027 800-1355 1
023-063-001 800-1365 1
023-063-016 800-1070 1
023-063-017 800-1075 1
023-063-018 800-1065 1
023-063-020 800-1060 1
023-063-021 800-1340 1
023-063-023 800-1360 1
023-064-008 800-1050 1
023-064-019 800-0970 1
023-064-021 800-0965 1
023-064-022 800-0950 1
023-064-023 800-1055 1
023-064-027 800-1080 1
023-065-001 800-0065 1
023-065-003 800-0155 1
023-065-004 800-0160 1
023-065-005 800-0165 1
023-065-006 800-0170 1
023-065-009 800-0180 1
023-065-011 800-0190 1
023-066-012 800-0235 1
023-066-023 800-0220 1
023-066-025 800-0200 1
023-066-026 800-0210 1
023-067-001 800-1660 1
023-067-002 800-0175 1
023-067-003 800-0185 1
023-067-004 800-0195 1
023-067-006 800-0215 1
023-067-007 800-0225 1
023-067-011 800-1650 1
023-067-015 800-1610 1
023-067-017 800-1605 1
023-067-019 800-0725 1
023-067-020 800-0230 1

35
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com101

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-067-022 800-1645 1
023-067-023 800-1620 1
023-067-024 800-1630 1
023-068-001 800-1665 1
023-068-002 800-1655 1
023-068-004 800-1653 1
023-068-008 800-1625 1
023-068-009 800-1615 1
023-068-010 035-1603 1
023-068-021 800-0150 1
023-068-024 800-0035 1
023-068-026 800-0715 1
023-068-027 800-0020 1
023-068-029 800-1635 1
023-068-031 800-1640 1
023-071-018 800-0955 1
023-071-020 800-0945 1
023-071-022 800-0875 1
023-071-025 800-0885 1
023-072-005 800-0835 1
023-072-010 800-0820 1
023-072-011 800-0810 1
023-072-023 800-0890 1
023-072-024 800-0840 1
023-072-025 700-1130 1
023-073-013 800-0925 1
023-073-029 800-0940 1
023-073-030 800-0935 1
023-074-026 700-0855 1
023-074-033 700-1105 1
023-074-034 700-1135 1
023-074-035 700-1120 1
023-074-038 700-1115 1
023-074-039 700-1110 1
023-075-005 800-0790 1
023-075-008 800-0825 1
023-075-012 800-0815 1
023-075-014 800-0870 1
023-075-021 800-0795 1
023-075-028 800-0775 1
023-075-029 800-0770 1
023-075-031 800-0865 1
023-075-032 800-0805 1
023-075-033 800-0800 1
023-075-035 800-0780 1

36
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com102

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-075-037 800-0830 1
023-076-003 700-1595 1
023-076-004 700-1820 1
023-076-010 800-0735 1
023-076-018 700-1815 1
023-076-019 800-0785 1
023-076-028 700-1810 1
023-076-030 700-1800 1
023-076-037 700-1795 1
023-076-038 800-0768 1
023-076-039 700-1825 1
023-081-002 900-1530 1
023-081-013 900-1500 1
023-081-014 900-1535 1
023-081-015 900-1510 1
023-081-016 900-1485 1
023-081-017 900-1490 1
023-082-002 900-1475 1
023-082-012 900-1480 1
023-082-014 900-1440 1
023-082-016 900-1445 1
023-082-022 900-1420 1
023-082-023 900-1430 1
023-083-003 900-1075 1
023-083-014 900-1515 1
023-083-016 900-1495 1
023-083-019 900-1505 1
023-083-020 900-1310 1
023-083-021 900-1525 1
023-084-003 900-1470 1
023-084-004 900-1455 1
023-084-005 900-1450 1
023-084-012 900-1285 1
023-084-014 900-1300 1
023-084-015 900-1080 1
023-085-001 900-1120 1
023-085-002 900-1435 1
023-085-012 900-1215 1
023-085-013 900-1205 1
023-085-014 900-1425 1
023-085-015 900-1130 1
023-085-016 900-1210 1
023-086-030 900-0985 1
023-086-031 900-1000 1
023-086-034 900-1020 1

37
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com103

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-086-035 900-1025 1
023-086-039 900-1057 1
023-086-042 900-0970 1
023-086-044 900-1030 1
023-086-045 900-1045 1
023-086-046 900-1015 1
023-087-006 900-1040 1
023-087-037 900-1055 1
023-087-039 900-1050 1
023-087-042 900-1065 1
023-087-045 900-1105 1
023-087-047 900-1070 1
023-087-048 900-1115 1
023-087-049 900-1035 1
023-088-001 900-1090 1
023-088-002 900-1295 1
023-088-027 900-1180 1
023-088-033 900-1140 1
023-088-035 900-1095 1
023-088-045 900-1155 1
023-088-048 900-1112 1
023-089-001 900-1135 1
023-089-002 900-1280 1
023-089-009 900-1165 1
023-089-010 900-1175 1
023-089-013 900-1220 1
023-089-014 900-1225 1
023-089-019 900-1245 1
023-089-029 900-0330 1
023-089-035 900-1235 1
023-089-036 900-1255 1
023-090-001 900-1250 1
023-090-005 900-1745 1
023-090-006 900-1760 1
023-090-007 900-1765 1
023-090-008 900-1240 1
023-090-009 900-1775 1
023-090-010 900-1770 1
023-090-011 900-1755 1
023-090-012 900-1750 1
023-090-014 900-1270 1
023-090-015 900-1275 1
023-090-016 900-1200 1
023-091-002 900-0210 1
023-091-003 900-0345 1

38
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com104

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-091-008 900-0360 1
023-091-024 900-0225 1
023-091-027 900-0240 1
023-091-028 900-0235 1
023-091-030 900-0215 1
023-091-032 900-1195 1
023-091-033 900-1185 1
023-091-036 900-0350 1
023-091-040 900-0335 1
023-091-041 900-0355 1
023-092-007 900-0025 1
023-092-010 800-0600 1
023-092-012 800-0615 1
023-092-013 800-0650 1
023-092-014 900-0005 1
023-092-021 800-0625 1
023-092-023 800-0645 1
023-092-027 800-0590 1
023-092-031 800-0675 1
023-092-032 800-0670 1
023-092-033 800-0655 1
023-092-034 900-0035 1
023-092-037 800-0575 1
023-092-040 800-0610 1
023-093-002 800-0585 1
023-093-008 800-0620 1
023-093-009 800-0660 1
023-093-010 800-0665 1
023-093-018 800-0630 1
023-093-020 800-2440 1
023-093-029 800-2445 1
023-093-030 800-2450 1
023-093-032 800-0640 1
023-093-033 800-2410 1
023-093-035 800-0605 1
023-093-037 800-2405 1
023-093-038 800-0595 1
023-093-039 800-0580 1
023-093-040 800-2395 1
023-094-005 900-0230 1
023-094-006 900-0245 1
023-094-008 900-0250 1
023-094-017 900-0050 1
023-094-018 900-0060 1
023-094-020 900-0085 1

39
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com105

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-094-029 900-0275 1
023-094-031 900-0265 1
023-094-033 900-0220 1
023-094-035 900-0015 1
023-094-039 900-0010 1
023-094-040 900-0075 1
023-094-041 900-0077 1
023-094-042 900-0205 1
023-095-004 900-0055 1
023-095-010 900-0090 1
023-095-016 800-0695 1
023-095-025 800-0025 1
023-095-029 800-0700 1
023-095-030 800-0705 1
023-095-031 900-0070 1
023-095-032 900-0065 1
023-095-034 800-0710 1
023-095-037 900-0020 1
023-095-038 800-0685 1
023-095-039 800-0005 1
023-095-040 800-0010 1
023-095-041 900-0080 1
023-096-019 800-2495 1
023-096-025 800-2510 1
023-096-028 800-2455 1
023-096-031 800-2480 1
023-096-032 800-0680 1
023-096-034 800-2505 1
023-096-036 800-0690 1
023-096-037 800-2500 1
023-096-047 800-2470 1
023-096-048 800-2460 1
023-101-017 800-2165 1
023-101-018 800-2155 1
023-101-031 800-2170 1
023-101-033 800-2490 1
023-101-035 800-2180 1
023-101-040 800-2485 1
023-101-042 800-2465 1
023-101-043 800-2475 1
023-101-045 800-2160 1
023-102-003 800-2435 1
023-102-004 800-2430 1
023-102-011 800-2135 1
023-102-019 800-2425 1

40
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com106

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-102-020 800-2125 1
023-102-021 800-2320 1
023-102-022 800-2130 1
023-102-025 800-2145 1
023-103-005 800-1930 1
023-103-006 800-1830 1
023-103-009 800-2150 1
023-103-013 800-1835 1
023-103-016 800-1935 1
023-104-001 800-2175 1
023-104-005 800-1825 1
023-104-006 800-1820 1
023-104-008 800-1555 1
023-104-019 800-1560 1
023-105-006 800-1540 1
023-105-008 800-1325 1
023-105-009 800-1320 1
023-105-012 800-1305 1
023-105-013 800-1295 1
023-105-014 800-1290 1
023-105-020 800-1315 1
023-105-022 800-1535 1
023-105-024 800-1530 1
023-105-026 800-1280 1
023-106-002 800-1310 1
023-106-005 800-1285 1
023-106-011 800-1025 1
023-106-021 800-1330 1
023-106-023 800-1030 1
023-106-024 800-1035 1
023-106-025 800-1045 1
023-107-009 800-1020 1
023-107-026 800-1040 1
023-107-028 800-0930 1
023-111-004 800-1905 1
023-111-008 800-1900 1
023-111-012 800-2000 1
023-111-018 800-1780 1
023-111-023 800-1085 1
023-111-026 800-1915 1
023-111-027 800-1910 1
023-111-033 800-1800 1
023-111-034 800-1805 1
023-112-004 800-1795 1
023-112-007 800-1785 1

41
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com107

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-112-008 800-1775 1
023-112-009 800-2005 1
023-112-012 800-1090 1
023-112-016 800-1520 1
023-112-020 800-1510 1
023-112-024 800-1515 1
023-112-028 800-1495 1
023-112-030 800-1815 1
023-112-031 800-1810 1
023-112-032 800-1790 1
023-113-014 800-1505 1
023-113-020 800-1490 1
023-113-021 800-1265 1
023-113-026 800-1255 1
023-113-027 800-1240 1
023-113-028 800-1235 1
023-113-029 800-1230 1
023-113-030 800-1095 1
023-113-032 800-1260 1
023-113-033 800-1523 1
023-114-002 800-2020 1
023-114-005 800-1105 1
023-114-006 800-1270 1
023-114-010 800-1100 1
023-114-016 800-2015 1
023-114-018 800-1010 1
023-114-024 800-1245 1
023-114-032 800-0995 1
023-114-033 800-1000 1
023-114-035 800-1250 1
023-115-004 800-1005 1
023-115-022 800-0910 1
023-115-026 800-1015 1
023-115-028 800-0990 1
023-116-007 800-0905 1
023-116-031 800-0900 1
023-117-003 800-0860 1
023-117-005 800-0920 1
023-117-013 800-2010 1
023-118-010 800-0740 1
023-118-026 800-0855 1
023-118-027 800-0850 1
023-118-029 800-0755 1
023-118-030 800-0845 1
023-119-013 800-0745 1

42
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com108

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-119-021 700-1780 1
023-119-028 800-0760 1
023-119-029 700-1785 1
023-119-030 700-1770 1
023-119-031 700-1775 1
023-121-008 900-0185 1
023-121-010 900-0170 1
023-121-011 900-0167 1
023-121-015 900-1190 1
023-121-017 900-0195 1
023-121-018 900-0325 1
023-121-019 900-0320 1
023-121-021 900-0180 1
023-121-022 900-0175 1
023-121-023 900-0310 1
023-121-025 900-0165 1
023-121-029 800-0555 1
023-121-030 800-0540 1
023-122-002 800-2390 1
023-122-005 800-0530 1
023-122-006 800-2380 1
023-122-008 800-0535 1
023-122-011 800-0565 1
023-122-012 800-0560 1
023-122-013 800-2375 1
023-122-015 800-2340 1
023-122-017 800-2365 1
023-122-019 800-0550 1
023-122-020 800-0545 1
023-122-022 800-2325 1
023-122-023 800-0570 1
023-122-024 800-2385 1
023-122-025 800-2335 1
023-122-028 800-2330 1
023-131-013 800-2290 1
023-131-014 040-2292 1
023-131-021 800-2315 1
023-131-021 800-2415 1
023-132-003 800-2310 1
023-132-004 800-2305 1
023-132-005 800-2300 1
023-132-011 800-2100 1
023-132-013 800-2295 1
023-132-015 800-2110 1
023-133-001 800-1920 1

43
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com109

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-133-006 800-2115 1
023-133-010 800-2120 1
023-133-013 800-1965 1
023-133-014 800-1990 1
023-133-015 800-1985 1
023-133-018 800-1995 1
023-133-019 800-2105 1
023-133-020 800-1960 1
023-133-021 800-1980 1
023-133-022 800-1970 1
023-141-001 800-1895 1
023-141-005 800-1770 1
023-141-008 800-1880 1
023-141-026 800-1755 1
023-141-027 800-1890 1
023-141-029 800-1750 1
023-141-031 800-1745 1
023-141-033 800-1885 1
023-141-034 800-1715 1
023-141-037 800-1870 1
023-141-039 800-1735 1
023-142-003 800-1480 1
023-142-004 800-1460 1
023-142-005 800-1087 1
023-142-007 800-1730 1
023-142-012 800-1445 1
023-142-019 800-1740 1
023-142-025 800-1720 1
023-142-031 800-1760 1
023-142-032 800-1455 1
023-142-033 800-1430 1
023-143-007 800-1450 1
023-143-009 800-1475 1
023-143-021 800-1170 1
023-143-027 800-1465 1
023-143-028 800-1215 1
023-143-030 800-1195 1
023-143-033 800-1440 1
023-143-034 800-1180 1
023-143-035 800-1425 1
023-143-038 800-1210 1
023-143-040 800-1200 1
023-151-003 800-1190 1
023-151-005 800-1205 1
023-151-008 800-1175 1

44
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com110

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-151-014 800-1225 1
023-151-021 800-1220 1
023-151-024 800-1185 1
023-151-027 800-1165 1
023-151-028 800-1155 1
023-151-037 700-1750 1
023-151-042 800-0975 1
023-151-046 040-0987 1
023-151-049 800-1130 1
023-151-050 800-1120 1
023-151-054 800-1140 1
023-161-002 800-2270 1
023-161-019 800-2275 1
023-161-021 800-2255 1
023-161-025 800-2555 1
023-161-029 800-2245 1
023-161-030 800-2550 1
023-161-035 800-2265 1
023-161-038 800-2370 1
023-161-039 800-2360 1
023-161-040 800-2260 1
023-161-041 800-2535 1
023-161-042 800-2350 1
023-161-043 800-2345 1
023-161-050 800-2545 1
023-162-005 800-0741 1
023-162-012 800-2060 1
023-162-020 800-2280 1
023-162-022 800-2095 1
023-162-024 800-2070 1
023-162-025 800-2240 1
023-162-026 800-2250 1
023-163-002 800-2080 1
023-163-014 800-2090 1
023-163-018 800-2075 1
023-163-019 800-2030 1
023-163-025 800-1945 1
023-163-026 800-1950 1
023-163-035 800-2055 1
023-171-010 800-2050 1
023-171-011 800-2045 1
023-171-019 800-2040 1
023-171-021 800-2210 1
023-171-022 800-2220 1
023-171-023 800-2225 1

45
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com111

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-171-024 800-2025 1
023-171-026 800-2035 1
023-171-032 800-2200 1
023-171-033 800-2205 1
023-171-037 800-2195 1
023-172-008 800-2215 1
023-172-016 800-2560 1
023-172-017 800-2235 1
023-172-020 800-2565 1
023-172-038 800-2230 1
023-172-041 800-2585 1
023-172-044 800-2575 1
023-172-046 800-2190 1
023-172-048 800-2185 1
023-172-049 800-1860 1
023-172-054 800-2590 1
023-172-056 800-2595 1
023-172-057 800-2580 1
023-181-004 800-1405 1
023-181-015 800-1385 1
023-181-018 800-1710 1
023-181-020 800-1410 1
023-181-025 800-1690 1
023-181-027 800-1685 1
023-181-030 800-1370 1
023-181-035 800-1670 1
023-181-036 800-1420 1
023-181-039 800-1695 1
023-182-002 800-1680 1
023-182-008 800-1865 1
023-182-029 800-1855 1
023-182-031 800-2525 1
023-182-035 800-1675 1
023-182-041 800-1705 1
023-182-045 800-2520 1
023-182-046 800-1700 1
023-182-047 800-1850 1
023-182-048 800-1845 1
023-191-007 700-1920 1
023-191-012 800-1145 1
023-191-016 800-1395 1
023-191-017 800-1115 1
023-191-020 800-1110 1
023-191-023 700-1925 1
023-191-025 800-1150 1

46
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com112

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-191-027 800-1135 1
023-191-028 800-1125 1
023-191-032 800-1415 1
023-191-033 800-1390 1
023-192-007 700-1630 1
023-192-009 700-1655 1
023-192-014 700-1745 1
023-192-016 700-1635 1
023-192-017 700-1645 1
023-192-018 700-1675 1
023-192-019 700-1945 1
023-192-022 700-1755 1
023-192-031 700-1670 1
023-192-033 700-1935 1
023-192-038 700-1760 1
023-192-039 700-1610 1
023-201-055 400-3270 1
023-201-056 400-3275 1
023-202-035 400-3225 1
023-202-053 400-3255 1
023-202-057 400-1750 1
023-202-058 400-3240 1
023-202-059 400-3220 1
023-202-063 400-3230 1
023-202-064 400-3235 1
023-202-070 400-1755 1
023-202-072 400-3260 1
023-202-073 400-3265 1
023-202-074 400-3245 1
023-203-014 400-1795 1
023-203-016 400-1800 1
023-203-022 400-1810 1
023-203-028 400-1835 1
023-203-032 400-1770 1
023-203-033 400-1780 1
023-203-034 400-1785 1
023-203-035 400-1765 1
023-203-036 400-1745 1
023-203-037 400-1815 1
023-203-038 400-1840 1
023-204-010 400-1805 1
023-204-021 400-1855 1
023-204-023 400-3035 1
023-204-025 400-3050 1
023-204-040 400-3140 1

47
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com113

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-204-042 400-3150 1
023-204-049 400-3130 1
023-204-059 400-1845 1
023-204-064 400-3060 1
023-204-067 400-1830 1
023-204-069 400-3080 1
023-204-071 400-1790 1
023-204-073 400-3090 1
023-204-077 400-1820 1
023-204-082 400-1760 1
023-204-083 400-1775 1
023-204-084 400-3120 1
023-204-086 400-2155 1
023-204-087 400-3065 1
023-205-001 400-3030 1
023-205-003 400-3040 1
023-205-006 400-3055 1
023-205-008 400-3085 1
023-205-013 400-3115 1
023-205-018 400-3145 1
023-205-026 400-2090 1
023-205-041 400-1955 1
023-205-042 400-3110 1
023-205-044 400-3070 1
023-205-045 400-3075 1
023-205-047 400-3000 1
023-205-048 400-2080 1
023-205-051 400-3125 1
023-205-053 400-3010 1
023-205-061 400-3020 1
023-205-062 400-3045 1
023-205-063 400-3105 1
023-205-064 400-3095 1
023-205-065 400-2095 1
023-205-066 400-3135 1
023-206-003 400-2065 1
023-206-013 400-3025 1
023-206-017 400-3015 1
023-206-018 400-2015 1
023-206-019 400-2035 1
023-206-029 400-2060 1
023-206-034 400-2075 1
023-206-035 400-2070 1
023-206-044 400-2050 1
023-206-046 400-2085 1

48
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com114

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-206-047 400-2025 1
023-206-048 400-2042 1
023-206-049 400-2045 1
023-206-050 400-3005 1
023-207-007 400-1950 1
023-207-009 400-1980 1
023-207-016 400-2055 1
023-207-020 400-2040 1
023-207-023 400-2005 1
023-207-024 400-2000 1
023-207-025 400-2030 1
023-207-026 400-1985 1
023-207-029 400-2020 1
023-207-030 400-1990 1
023-211-007 400-0635 1
023-211-051 400-1860 1
023-211-055 400-1655 1
023-211-056 400-0630 1
023-211-062 400-0620 1
023-211-066 400-1975 1
023-211-068 400-1670 1
023-213-018 400-1970 1
023-213-026 400-1930 1
023-213-030 400-1920 1
023-213-035 400-1945 1
023-213-043 400-1965 1
023-213-047 400-1940 1
023-213-049 400-0685 1
023-213-052 400-1960 1
023-213-056 400-0700 1
023-214-003 400-1695 1
023-214-043 400-1890 1
023-214-051 400-0560 1
023-214-052 400-1585 1
023-215-014 400-1610 1
023-215-025 400-1635 1
023-215-026 400-1630 1
023-215-027 400-1620 1
023-215-028 400-1615 1
023-215-031 400-1590 1
023-215-033 400-1735 1
023-215-037 400-1725 1
023-215-040 400-1715 1
023-215-046 400-1740 1
023-215-052 400-1700 1

49
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com115

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-215-053 400-1680 1
023-215-060 400-1605 1
023-215-061 400-1600 1
023-215-064 400-1710 1
023-215-068 400-1625 1
023-215-069 400-1705 1
023-215-071 400-1730 1
023-215-072 400-1645 1
023-221-051 700-0955 1
023-221-060 700-0950 1
023-222-015 700-0325 1
023-222-030 700-0420 1
023-222-049 700-0965 1
023-222-050 700-0335 1
023-222-055 700-0970 1
023-222-057 700-0110 1
023-222-060 700-0350 1
023-222-061 700-0960 1
023-223-002 700-0430 1
023-223-018 700-0945 1
023-223-019 700-0940 1
023-223-023 700-0330 1
023-223-030 700-0155 1
023-223-032 700-0345 1
023-223-034 700-0355 1
023-223-035 700-0340 1
023-223-036 700-0425 1
023-233-065 400-3250 1
023-233-071 400-3215 1
023-233-072 400-3180 1
023-233-078 400-3210 1
023-235-001 400-1995 1
023-235-003 400-1935 1
023-235-004 400-1925 1
023-235-005 400-1915 1
023-235-006 400-1910 1
023-235-007 400-1905 1
023-235-011 400-1885 1
023-235-015 400-3155 1
023-235-018 400-3170 1
023-235-019 400-3175 1
023-235-020 400-3185 1
023-235-021 400-3190 1
023-235-023 400-3195 1
023-235-028 400-1880 1

50
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com116

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-235-031 400-1875 1
023-235-035 400-1870 1
023-235-037 400-3165 1
023-235-040 400-3205 1
023-235-041 400-3200 1
023-235-042 400-3160 1
023-235-043 400-1900 1
023-243-002 700-0105 1
023-243-009 700-0120 1
023-243-023 700-0115 1
023-243-027 700-0395 1
023-243-031 700-0415 1
023-243-042 700-0125 1
023-243-043 700-0405 1
023-244-003 700-0145 1
023-244-004 700-0140 1
023-244-007 700-0130 1
023-251-003 400-0555 1
023-251-004 400-0550 1
023-251-020 400-1495 1
023-251-022 400-1490 1
023-251-040 500-0840 1
023-251-042 400-0540 1
023-251-050 400-1500 1
023-251-052 500-0830 1
023-251-057 400-1470 1
023-251-060 400-1480 1
023-251-061 400-1475 1
023-251-062 400-1505 1
023-253-011 500-0810 1
023-253-012 500-0795 1
023-253-015 500-0805 1
023-253-016 500-0800 1
023-261-004 700-0840 1
023-261-008 700-0825 1
023-261-009 700-0820 1
023-261-010 700-0935 1
023-261-013 700-0925 1
023-261-017 700-0910 1
023-261-018 700-0830 1
023-261-022 700-0905 1
023-261-027 700-0880 1
023-261-029 700-0920 1
023-261-036 700-0915 1
023-261-037 700-0800 1

51
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com117

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-261-038 700-1050 1
023-261-041 700-0890 1
023-261-042 700-0845 1
023-261-044 700-0930 1
023-271-009 700-0400 1
023-271-012 700-0385 1
023-271-016 700-0380 1
023-271-056 700-0505 1
023-272-011 700-0475 1
023-272-020 700-0655 1
023-272-024 700-0630 1
023-272-027 700-0625 1
023-272-030 700-0650 1
023-272-036 700-0480 1
023-272-040 700-0490 1
023-272-041 700-0620 1
023-272-043 700-0645 1
023-272-044 700-0485 1
023-272-045 700-0500 1
023-281-002 700-0050 1
023-281-023 700-0060 1
023-281-025 700-0035 1
023-281-028 700-0075 1
023-281-030 700-0100 1
023-281-031 700-0095 1
023-281-032 700-0090 1
023-281-037 700-0085 1
023-281-041 700-0030 1
023-282-063 700-0135 1
023-282-066 700-0150 1
023-282-067 700-0275 1
023-282-074 700-0375 1
023-282-075 700-0080 1
023-291-004 500-0480 1
023-291-013 500-0435 1
023-291-019 500-0270 1
023-291-043 500-0230 1
023-291-044 500-0485 1
023-291-047 500-0260 1
023-291-048 500-0475 1
023-291-049 500-0280 1
023-291-050 500-0265 1
023-291-051 500-0250 1
023-291-055 500-0410 1
023-291-056 500-0420 1

52
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com118

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-291-058 500-0225 1
023-291-060 500-0450 1
023-291-061 500-0455 1
023-291-067 500-0200 1
023-291-068 500-0460 1
023-292-004 500-0275 1
023-292-008 500-0240 1
023-292-009 500-0235 1
023-292-017 500-0205 1
023-292-023 500-0085 1
023-292-025 500-0080 1
023-292-029 700-1710 1
023-292-033 500-0040 1
023-292-035 500-0245 1
023-292-046 500-0045 1
023-292-048 500-0105 1
023-292-049 500-0825 1
023-292-053 500-0215 1
023-292-054 500-0220 1
023-292-055 500-0255 1
023-292-056 500-0090 1
023-292-060 500-0060 1
023-293-014 500-0055 1
023-293-015 500-0050 1
023-293-032 700-0065 1
023-293-036 700-0020 1
023-293-038 500-0075 1
023-293-042 500-0095 1
023-293-044 500-0065 1
023-293-046 700-0040 1
023-293-047 500-0070 1
023-293-048 500-0100 1
023-293-053 700-0045 1
023-293-054 700-0055 1
023-293-056 700-0025 1
023-293-057 700-0070 1
023-301-009 500-0755 1
023-301-010 500-0745 1
023-301-012 500-0790 1
023-301-014 500-0785 1
023-301-020 500-0760 1
023-301-022 500-0770 1
023-302-016 500-0635 1
023-302-017 500-0600 1
023-302-022 500-0615 1

53
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com119

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-302-023 500-0645 1
023-302-027 500-0780 1
023-302-031 500-0610 1
023-302-032 500-0595 1
023-302-036 500-0765 1
023-302-041 500-0775 1
023-302-042 500-0750 1
023-303-005 500-0650 1
023-303-012 500-0620 1
023-303-032 500-0440 1
023-303-036 500-0415 1
023-303-037 500-0850 1
023-303-039 500-0605 1
023-303-049 400-0585 1
023-303-050 500-0820 1
023-303-051 500-0815 1
023-303-052 500-0630 1
023-303-053 500-0465 1
023-303-054 500-0470 1
023-303-055 500-0640 1
023-303-056 500-0625 1
023-303-058 500-0445 1
023-303-059 500-0430 1
023-311-005 700-0835 1
023-311-010 700-0810 1
023-311-013 700-1055 1
023-311-014 700-0805 1
023-311-020 700-0745 1
023-311-025 700-0755 1
023-311-029 700-0815 1
023-311-030 700-0730 1
023-312-008 700-0765 1
023-312-011 700-0785 1
023-312-025 700-0760 1
023-312-027 700-0775 1
023-312-029 700-0720 1
023-312-030 700-0780 1
023-313-002 700-0778 1
023-313-010 700-0865 1
023-313-011 700-0860 1
023-313-014 700-0795 1
023-313-019 700-0790 1
023-313-022 700-0770 1
023-313-023 700-0870 1
023-313-024 700-0875 1

54
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com120

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-313-025 700-1075 1
023-321-023 700-0445 1
023-321-024 700-0455 1
023-321-028 700-0460 1
023-321-032 700-0440 1
023-322-013 700-0740 1
023-322-020 700-0610 1
023-322-026 700-0725 1
023-322-028 700-0715 1
023-322-029 700-0615 1
023-322-030 700-0600 1
023-322-032 700-0710 1
023-322-037 700-0635 1
023-322-038 700-0640 1
023-322-039 700-0750 1
023-322-040 700-0735 1
023-331-011 700-0255 1
023-331-012 700-0250 1
023-331-013 700-0245 1
023-331-022 700-0305 1
023-331-024 700-0300 1
023-331-028 700-0290 1
023-331-029 700-0285 1
023-331-034 700-0315 1
023-331-042 700-0310 1
023-331-056 700-0230 1
023-331-057 700-0320 1
023-331-059 700-0270 1
023-331-061 700-0260 1
023-332-030 500-1000 1
023-332-031 700-0280 1
023-332-033 700-0370 1
023-332-034 700-0295 1
023-333-009 700-0465 1
023-333-022 700-0365 1
023-333-039 700-0450 1
023-333-040 700-0435 1
023-333-044 700-0470 1
023-333-045 700-0360 1
023-341-080 700-0235 1
023-341-082 700-0265 1
023-341-083 700-0240 1
023-351-006 500-0385 1
023-351-008 500-0375 1
023-351-015 500-0175 1

55
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com121

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-351-021 500-0190 1
023-351-022 500-0185 1
023-351-026 500-0195 1
023-351-027 500-0395 1
023-351-028 500-0165 1
023-352-006 500-0180 1
023-352-009 500-0160 1
023-352-010 500-0155 1
023-352-019 500-0020 1
023-352-020 500-0015 1
023-352-031 500-0030 1
023-352-032 500-0010 1
023-352-033 500-0170 1
023-352-035 500-0035 1
023-352-036 500-0025 1
023-353-001 500-0845 1
023-353-026 700-0015 1
023-353-028 700-0010 1
023-353-056 700-0005 1
023-361-006 500-0705 1
023-361-007 500-0695 1
023-361-011 500-0690 1
023-361-031 500-0675 1
023-361-039 500-0975 1
023-361-042 500-0945 1
023-361-043 500-0910 1
023-361-044 500-0915 1
023-361-046 500-0740 1
023-361-048 500-0725 1
023-361-049 500-0925 1
023-361-050 500-0935 1
023-361-055 500-0720 1
023-361-056 500-0730 1
023-362-013 500-0580 1
023-362-019 500-0895 1
023-362-020 500-0930 1
023-362-025 500-0955 1
023-362-027 500-0550 1
023-362-028 500-0885 1
023-362-030 520-0493 1
023-362-037 500-0575 1
023-362-038 500-0950 1
023-363-007 500-0555 1
023-363-012 500-0860 1
023-363-013 500-0405 1

56
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com122

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-363-014 500-0400 1
023-363-022 500-0545 1
023-363-026 500-0565 1
023-363-028 500-0570 1
023-363-029 500-0390 1
023-363-030 500-0370 1
023-364-018 500-0515 1
023-364-019 500-0535 1
023-364-020 500-0900 1
023-364-024 500-0905 1
023-364-026 500-0520 1
023-364-028 500-0920 1
023-371-006 500-1425 1
023-371-007 500-1435 1
023-371-010 500-1420 1
023-371-015 500-0735 1
023-371-018 500-1415 1
023-371-022 500-0715 1
023-372-002 500-1430 1
023-372-003 500-1330 1
023-372-005 500-1410 1
023-372-012 500-1440 1
023-373-001 500-1400 1
023-373-004 500-1390 1
023-373-015 500-0995 1
023-373-019 500-0710 1
023-373-032 500-0680 1
023-373-036 500-1395 1
023-373-038 500-1405 1
023-373-045 500-0700 1
023-373-046 500-0685 1
023-381-016 500-1630 1
023-381-048 500-1735 1
023-381-048 500-1745 1
023-381-048 500-1750 1
023-382-003 500-1680 1
023-382-009 500-1540 1
023-382-023 500-1525 1
023-382-025 500-1640 1
023-382-036 500-1635 1
023-382-047 500-1565 1
023-382-052 500-1530 1
023-382-053 500-1660 1
023-382-054 500-1645 1
023-383-003 500-1560 1

57
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com123

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-383-008 500-1545 1
023-383-009 500-1535 1
023-383-042 500-1520 1
023-383-045 500-1515 1
023-383-046 500-1550 1
023-383-051 500-1325 1
023-383-055 500-1315 1
023-383-056 500-1320 1
023-391-034 700-1735 1
023-391-041 700-1605 1
023-391-042 700-1590 1
023-391-059 700-1730 1
023-391-061 700-1600 1
023-392-010 700-1805 1
023-392-019 700-1700 1
023-392-026 700-1740 1
023-401-006 700-1125 1
023-401-009 700-0690 1
023-401-017 700-0700 1
023-401-018 700-0705 1
023-401-026 700-0850 1
023-402-021 700-0685 1
023-402-023 700-0680 1
023-402-024 700-0695 1
023-403-007 700-0590 1
023-403-020 700-1150 1
023-403-027 700-1080 1
023-403-031 700-1145 1
023-403-034 700-1160 1
023-403-036 700-0595 1
023-403-037 700-1505 1
023-403-041 700-1510 1
023-403-042 700-0585 1
023-403-044 700-1090 1
023-403-045 700-1085 1
023-403-046 700-1165 1
023-411-001 400-1410 1
023-411-010 400-1415 1
023-411-011 400-1405 1
023-411-012 400-1400 1
023-411-027 400-1435 1
023-422-001 400-1425 1
023-422-004 400-1420 1
023-422-005 400-1460 1
023-422-009 400-1450 1

58
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com124

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-422-012 400-1380 1
023-422-013 400-1385 1
023-422-022 400-1445 1
023-422-026 400-1455 1
023-422-027 400-1390 1
023-422-033 400-1395 1
023-422-034 400-1430 1
023-423-025 400-1465 1
023-423-035 400-1440 1
023-424-016 400-1510 1
023-424-021 400-1515 1
023-424-022 400-1550 1
023-424-024 400-1525 1
023-424-026 400-1575 1
023-424-027 400-1570 1
023-425-026 400-0590 1
023-425-027 400-0580 1
023-425-031 400-0610 1
023-425-033 400-0625 1
023-425-034 400-1520 1
023-425-035 400-1530 1
023-425-047 400-0605 1
023-425-049 400-0600 1
023-425-051 400-1545 1
023-425-053 400-1555 1
023-425-055 400-0595 1
023-425-056 400-1565 1
023-425-057 400-1560 1
023-425-058 400-1540 1
023-425-059 400-1535 1
023-432-001 400-0750 1
023-432-002 400-0745 1
023-432-007 400-0720 1
023-432-008 400-0715 1
023-432-012 400-0705 1
023-432-013 400-0695 1
023-432-014 400-0690 1
023-432-015 400-0680 1
023-432-018 400-0670 1
023-432-023 400-0675 1
023-432-024 400-0710 1
023-451-001 500-1480 1
023-451-002 500-1490 1
023-451-003 500-1495 1
023-451-004 500-1500 1

59
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com125

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-451-010 500-1505 1
023-451-014 500-1375 1
023-451-017 500-1365 1
023-451-018 500-1360 1
023-451-035 500-1510 1
023-451-037 500-1380 1
023-451-038 500-1335 1
023-452-004 500-1475 1
023-452-005 500-1470 1
023-452-009 500-1340 1
023-452-010 500-1345 1
023-452-011 500-1350 1
023-452-012 500-1355 1
023-452-014 500-1370 1
023-452-019 500-1455 1
023-452-020 500-1465 1
023-453-005 500-1450 1
023-453-006 500-1445 1
023-453-008 500-0890 1
023-461-001 400-1370 1
023-461-003 400-1365 1
023-461-010 400-0870 1
023-461-011 400-0875 1
023-461-013 400-1345 1
023-461-014 400-0900 1
023-461-015 400-0895 1
023-461-016 400-0890 1
023-461-019 400-0905 1
023-461-022 400-0915 1
023-461-023 400-0920 1
023-461-027 400-0885 1
023-461-032 400-0565 1
023-461-033 400-0575 1
023-461-034 400-0615 1
023-461-036 400-0640 1
023-461-037 400-0880 1
023-462-001 400-1035 1
023-462-002 400-1045 1
023-462-003 400-1050 1
023-462-004 400-1055 1
023-462-005 400-1065 1
023-462-006 400-1075 1
023-462-010 400-0935 1
023-462-011 400-0940 1
023-462-014 400-0945 1

60
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com126

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-462-017 400-0910 1
023-462-018 400-1340 1
023-462-019 400-1350 1
023-462-020 400-1355 1
023-462-021 400-1360 1
023-471-002 400-1015 1
023-471-003 400-1020 1
023-471-004 400-1025 1
023-471-005 400-1030 1
023-471-006 400-1040 1
023-471-009 400-1070 1
023-471-011 400-1095 1
023-471-012 400-1115 1
023-471-013 400-1120 1
023-471-014 400-1130 1
023-471-015 400-1135 1
023-471-016 400-1140 1
023-471-017 400-1145 1
023-471-019 400-1155 1
023-471-021 400-1185 1
023-471-024 400-1215 1
023-471-028 400-1250 1
023-471-028 400-1255 1
023-471-028 400-1265 1
023-471-036 400-1235 1
023-471-037 400-0830 1
023-471-038 400-1060 1
023-481-007 400-1090 1
023-481-008 400-1100 1
023-481-011 400-1125 1
023-481-017 400-1210 1
023-482-013 400-1270 1
024-011-002 700-1485 1
024-011-015 700-1500 1
024-011-018 700-0560 1
024-011-020 700-1495 1
024-011-032 700-0565 1
024-011-053 700-1140 1
024-011-054 700-1465 1
024-011-059 700-1535 1
024-011-063 700-0550 1
024-011-064 700-1490 1
024-011-065 700-0575 1
024-012-007 700-0675 1
024-012-016 700-0660 1

61
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com127

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-012-017 700-0570 1
024-012-020 700-0580 1
024-013-008 700-1530 1
024-013-020 700-1520 1
024-013-024 700-0555 1
024-013-031 700-0665 1
024-013-033 700-0670 1
024-013-038 700-0545 1
024-013-045 700-1715 1
024-013-046 700-1525 1
024-013-052 700-1705 1
024-013-053 700-1515 1
024-021-014 700-1455 1
024-021-016 700-1445 1
024-021-022 700-1450 1
024-021-026 700-1380 1
024-021-028 700-1395 1
024-021-038 700-1475 1
024-021-047 700-1460 1
024-021-048 700-1400 1
024-021-049 700-1405 1
024-021-050 700-1390 1
024-021-051 700-1315 1
024-022-007 700-1290 1
024-022-012 700-1270 1
024-022-013 700-1260 1
024-022-026 700-1375 1
024-022-029 700-1355 1
024-022-030 700-1345 1
024-022-031 700-1350 1
024-022-036 700-1235 1
024-022-041 700-1310 1
024-022-044 700-1245 1
024-022-050 700-1385 1
024-022-051 700-1295 1
024-022-052 700-1360 1
024-022-056 700-1285 1
024-031-022 700-1100 1
024-031-027 700-1175 1
024-032-001 700-1480 1
024-032-002 700-1335 1
024-032-004 700-1330 1
024-032-006 700-1325 1
024-032-008 700-1180 1
024-032-010 700-1320 1

62
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com128

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-033-007 600-1285 1
024-033-008 600-1280 1
024-033-013 600-1265 1
024-033-025 600-1255 1
024-033-030 700-0205 1
024-033-033 700-0190 1
024-033-035 700-0220 1
024-033-044 700-0225 1
024-033-046 700-0215 1
024-034-008 700-1305 1
024-034-023 700-0200 1
024-034-039 700-1275 1
024-034-046 700-0210 1
024-034-053 700-1300 1
024-034-054 700-1155 1
024-034-055 700-1170 1
024-034-057 700-1280 1
024-041-006 500-0510 1
024-041-009 500-0495 1
024-041-026 500-0335 1
024-041-027 500-0340 1
024-041-029 500-0345 1
024-041-030 500-0540 1
024-041-031 500-0500 1
024-041-032 500-0530 1
024-041-033 500-0525 1
024-041-035 500-0315 1
024-041-036 500-0325 1
024-042-002 500-0355 1
024-042-015 500-0125 1
024-042-026 500-0120 1
024-042-029 500-0130 1
024-042-033 500-0115 1
024-042-035 500-0330 1
024-042-038 500-0310 1
024-042-040 500-0150 1
024-042-041 500-0360 1
024-042-049 500-0140 1
024-042-050 500-0350 1
024-042-051 500-0320 1
024-043-003 500-0110 1
024-043-006 500-0003 1
024-043-026 500-0145 1
024-043-027 500-0005 1
024-043-028 500-0135 1

63
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com129

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-051-004 500-0970 1
024-051-022 500-1020 1
024-051-023 500-1025 1
024-051-029 500-0960 1
024-051-032 500-0965 1
024-051-033 500-1030 1
024-051-034 500-0665 1
024-052-001 600-1550 1
024-052-005 600-1770 1
024-052-015 500-1040 1
024-052-016 500-1035 1
024-052-017 600-1760 1
024-053-004 600-1780 1
024-053-008 600-0910 1
024-053-009 600-1765 1
024-053-012 600-1775 1
024-054-007 500-1385 1
024-054-024 500-0660 1
024-054-025 500-1295 1
024-054-027 500-0985 1
024-054-028 500-0980 1
024-054-031 500-1300 1
024-054-033 500-0655 1
024-054-034 500-0990 1
024-061-016 500-1050 1
024-061-036 500-1075 1
024-061-048 500-1310 1
024-061-050 500-1065 1
024-061-052 500-1060 1
024-062-004 500-1070 1
024-062-039 600-0650 1
024-062-041 600-0640 1
024-062-044 600-0630 1
024-063-010 600-0655 1
024-063-013 600-0620 1
024-063-050 600-0660 1
024-063-068 600-0895 1
024-063-071 600-0625 1
024-063-072 600-0635 1
024-063-077 600-0665 1
024-063-078 600-0670 1
024-063-079 600-0645 1
024-063-080 600-0880 1
024-063-081 600-0920 1
024-063-083 500-1045 1

64
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com130

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-063-084 600-0915 1
024-063-086 600-0925 1
024-071-024 500-1570 1
024-071-025 500-1700 1
024-071-060 500-1730 1
024-071-063 500-1080 1
024-081-031 700-0540 1
024-081-036 700-1585 1
024-081-037 700-1580 1
024-081-041 700-1690 1
024-081-045 700-1680 1
024-081-050 700-0525 1
024-081-052 700-1685 1
024-082-004 700-1940 1
024-082-014 700-1930 1
024-082-021 700-1695 1
024-082-023 700-1790 1
024-091-005 700-1440 1
024-091-008 700-1425 1
024-091-019 700-1365 1
024-091-021 700-1340 1
024-091-026 700-1435 1
024-091-028 700-1855 1
024-091-029 700-1845 1
024-091-030 700-1370 1
024-091-031 700-1430 1
024-092-021 700-0515 1
024-092-022 700-0520 1
024-092-025 700-0530 1
024-093-004 700-1215 1
024-093-005 700-1210 1
024-093-015 700-1860 1
024-093-019 700-1865 1
024-093-026 700-1870 1
024-093-031 700-1230 1
024-093-033 700-1225 1
024-093-036 700-1205 1
024-101-021 600-1225 1
024-101-022 600-1235 1
024-101-033 600-1245 1
024-101-034 600-1220 1
024-101-049 700-0180 1
024-101-051 700-0165 1
024-101-052 600-1215 1
024-102-003 700-0185 1

65
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com131

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-102-011 700-0160 1
024-102-012 700-1840 1
024-102-020 700-1255 1
024-102-033 700-1265 1
024-102-035 700-0170 1
024-102-037 700-1250 1
024-102-038 700-0195 1
024-102-039 700-1240 1
024-102-040 700-0175 1
024-103-008 700-1200 1
024-103-016 700-1835 1
024-103-019 700-1830 1
024-103-020 700-1220 1
024-111-007 600-2155 1
024-111-008 600-2100 1
024-111-009 600-2090 1
024-111-012 600-2080 1
024-111-016 600-2085 1
024-111-020 600-2110 1
024-111-022 600-2130 1
024-112-007 600-1240 1
024-112-010 600-2105 1
024-112-011 600-1295 1
024-112-020 600-2095 1
024-112-025 600-1260 1
024-112-026 600-1270 1
024-112-027 600-1250 1
024-112-032 600-1290 1
024-112-033 600-1275 1
024-122-002 500-1010 1
024-122-008 600-1540 1
024-122-009 600-1535 1
024-122-014 500-1015 1
024-122-024 600-1545 1
024-122-025 600-1860 1
024-123-001 600-2065 1
024-123-003 600-2060 1
024-123-007 600-1965 1
024-123-008 600-1975 1
024-123-011 600-2070 1
024-123-015 600-1855 1
024-123-026 600-1870 1
024-123-029 600-2125 1
024-123-030 600-2120 1
024-123-031 600-2115 1

66
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com132

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-123-038 600-2160 1
024-123-039 600-2150 1
024-123-040 600-2145 1
024-123-041 600-2140 1
024-123-045 600-2135 1
024-123-049 600-1865 1
024-123-051 600-2170 1
024-123-052 600-2165 1
024-131-012 700-1875 1
024-131-015 700-0535 1
024-131-031 700-1550 1
024-131-036 700-1415 1
024-131-037 700-1420 1
024-131-038 700-1560 1
024-131-039 700-0510 1
024-132-006 700-1555 1
024-132-010 700-1540 1
024-132-012 700-1665 1
024-132-014 700-1640 1
024-132-017 700-1615 1
024-132-023 700-1625 1
024-132-029 700-1900 1
024-132-030 700-1565 1
024-132-032 700-1650 1
024-132-035 700-1575 1
024-132-038 700-1660 1
024-132-041 700-1570 1
024-133-004 700-1905 1
024-133-005 700-1915 1
024-133-006 700-1910 1
024-133-010 700-1890 1
024-141-019 600-0885 1
024-141-020 600-0875 1
024-141-026 600-0890 1
024-141-030 600-1730 1
024-141-031 600-1755 1
024-141-034 600-1715 1
024-141-037 600-1705 1
024-141-039 600-0905 1
024-141-043 600-1735 1
024-141-044 600-0900 1
024-141-046 600-1710 1
024-142-009 600-1500 1
024-142-024 600-1515 1
024-142-029 600-1530 1

67
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com133

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-142-030 600-1725 1
024-142-036 600-1740 1
024-142-040 600-1505 1
024-142-042 600-1552 1
024-143-002 600-1510 1
024-143-005 600-1490 1
024-143-006 600-1513 1
024-143-007 600-1520 1
024-143-026 600-1840 1
024-143-029 600-1845 1
024-143-031 600-1850 1
024-151-006 600-2020 1
024-151-016 600-2000 1
024-151-017 600-1935 1
024-151-026 600-1980 1
024-151-027 600-2030 1
024-151-032 600-1990 1
024-151-033 600-1960 1
024-151-034 600-1955 1
024-152-002 600-2055 1
024-152-013 600-2025 1
024-152-015 600-2050 1
024-152-017 600-2045 1
024-152-028 600-2010 1
024-152-029 600-2035 1
024-161-005 600-1485 1
024-161-008 600-1825 1
024-161-015 600-1820 1
024-161-024 600-1480 1
024-162-007 600-1940 1
024-162-009 600-1830 1
024-162-025 600-1950 1
024-162-026 600-1945 1
024-162-028 600-1970 1
024-171-002 600-1685 1
024-171-009 600-1670 1
024-171-012 600-0830 1
024-171-016 600-1650 1
024-171-024 600-1695 1
024-171-029 600-1700 1
024-171-030 600-1665 1
024-171-031 600-1660 1
024-172-007 600-1553 1
024-172-009 600-1551 1
024-172-011 600-1470 1

68
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com134

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-172-022 600-1690 1
024-172-024 600-1465 1
024-172-030 600-1675 1
024-172-032 600-1655 1
024-172-035 600-1475 1
024-181-005 600-0360 1
024-181-045 600-0330 1
024-181-054 600-0350 1
024-182-022 600-0870 1
024-182-023 600-0865 1
024-182-026 600-0860 1
024-182-032 600-0845 1
024-182-039 600-0615 1
024-182-051 600-0855 1
024-182-052 600-0840 1
024-191-051 600-0020 1
024-191-053 600-0370 1
024-191-054 600-0365 1
024-201-009 600-1195 1
024-201-017 600-1995 1
024-201-023 600-1985 1
024-201-024 600-1185 1
024-202-017 600-1200 1
024-202-021 600-1210 1
024-202-022 600-1205 1
024-202-028 600-1190 1
024-211-014 600-1460 1
024-211-022 600-1445 1
024-211-036 600-1815 1
024-211-037 600-1450 1
024-212-005 600-1805 1
024-212-024 600-1810 1
024-221-003 600-1600 1
024-221-017 600-1640 1
024-221-019 600-1320 1
024-221-033 600-0795 1
024-221-034 600-0800 1
024-221-036 600-0790 1
024-221-039 600-0770 1
024-221-040 600-0775 1
024-222-003 600-1440 1
024-222-005 600-1430 1
024-222-011 600-1455 1
024-222-015 600-1610 1
024-222-016 600-1635 1

69
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com135

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-222-021 600-1425 1
024-222-022 600-1315 1
024-222-024 600-1620 1
024-222-025 600-1625 1
024-222-026 600-1605 1
024-222-027 600-1595 1
024-222-028 600-1645 1
024-231-010 600-0805 1
024-231-019 600-0810 1
024-231-027 600-0825 1
024-231-034 600-0575 1
024-231-043 600-0835 1
024-231-047 600-0820 1
024-231-048 600-0610 1
024-241-010 600-0310 1
024-241-023 600-0210 1
024-241-024 600-0300 1
024-241-030 600-0320 1
024-241-031 600-0325 1
024-242-002 600-0200 1
024-242-005 600-0190 1
024-242-012 600-0175 1
024-242-045 600-0240 1
024-242-047 600-0275 1
024-242-049 600-0180 1
024-242-050 600-0260 1
024-242-056 600-0285 1
024-242-057 600-0155 1
024-243-002 600-0305 1
024-243-005 600-0290 1
024-243-015 600-0250 1
024-243-016 600-0245 1
024-243-017 600-0235 1
024-243-018 600-0230 1
024-243-027 600-0605 1
024-243-040 600-0265 1
024-243-048 600-0295 1
024-243-051 600-0225 1
024-243-053 600-0255 1
024-243-055 600-0270 1
024-243-060 600-0570 1
024-243-062 600-0280 1
024-243-063 600-0315 1
024-243-064 600-0595 1
024-243-065 600-0590 1

70
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com136

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-243-066 600-0580 1
024-252-010 600-0120 1
024-252-011 600-0115 1
024-252-012 600-0130 1
024-252-014 600-0150 1
024-252-015 600-0145 1
024-252-020 600-0125 1
024-252-025 600-0160 1
024-252-034 600-0185 1
024-252-036 600-0195 1
024-252-040 600-0165 1
024-252-041 600-0140 1
024-252-044 600-0135 1
024-252-045 600-0170 1
024-253-009 600-0075 1
024-253-013 600-0205 1
024-253-018 600-0220 1
024-261-015 600-1795 1
024-261-021 600-1800 1
024-261-031 600-1790 1
024-261-036 600-1910 1
024-261-037 600-1925 1
024-261-038 600-1905 1
024-262-013 600-2017 1
024-262-015 600-1915 1
024-262-039 600-1180 1
024-262-042 600-1920 1
024-271-017 600-1395 1
024-271-024 600-1405 1
024-271-025 600-1895 1
024-272-010 600-1390 1
024-272-015 600-1420 1
024-272-016 600-1415 1
024-272-019 600-1565 1
024-272-025 600-1400 1
024-272-026 600-1580 1
024-272-027 600-1575 1
024-272-028 600-1410 1
024-272-029 600-1385 1
024-272-031 600-1570 1
024-272-032 600-1560 1
024-273-009 600-1590 1
024-273-010 600-0750 1
024-273-014 600-1885 1
024-273-018 600-1880 1

71
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com137

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-273-024 600-1555 1
024-273-029 600-1585 1
024-281-015 600-0495 1
024-281-016 600-0535 1
024-281-018 600-0520 1
024-281-023 600-0500 1
024-281-029 600-0460 1
024-281-033 600-0515 1
024-282-006 600-0525 1
024-282-011 600-0780 1
024-282-017 600-0565 1
024-282-018 600-0555 1
024-282-026 600-0530 1
024-282-030 600-0510 1
024-282-031 600-0760 1
024-282-036 600-0490 1
024-282-038 600-0785 1
024-282-039 600-0545 1
024-282-040 600-0540 1
024-282-043 600-0765 1
024-282-044 600-0505 1
024-282-045 600-0755 1
024-291-003 600-0550 1
024-291-014 600-0450 1
024-291-033 600-0455 1
024-291-037 600-0100 1
024-291-038 600-0560 1
024-291-039 600-0095 1
024-301-014 600-0085 1
024-301-025 600-0080 1
024-301-028 600-0420 1
024-301-033 600-0110 1
024-311-001 600-0070 1
024-311-038 600-0050 1
024-311-040 600-0065 1
024-311-041 600-0060 1
024-311-042 600-0035 1
024-312-005 600-0045 1
024-312-024 600-0090 1
024-312-026 040-0095 1
024-312-038 600-0025 1
024-312-039 600-0055 1
024-321-014 600-0010 1
024-321-031 600-0015 1
024-321-035 600-0030 1

72
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com138

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-321-036 600-0005 1
024-331-008 600-1040 1
024-331-014 600-1045 1
024-331-015 600-1140 1
024-331-016 600-1380 1
024-331-018 600-1900 1
024-331-020 600-1165 1
024-331-027 600-1050 1
024-331-031 600-1055 1
024-332-008 600-1150 1
024-332-010 600-1170 1
024-332-014 600-1175 1
024-332-016 600-1155 1
024-332-021 600-1135 1
024-332-027 600-1145 1
024-332-028 600-1130 1
024-341-005 600-1105 1
024-341-008 600-1085 1
024-341-010 600-1035 1
024-341-011 600-1030 1
024-341-016 600-1100 1
024-341-022 600-1027 1
024-341-023 600-1025 1
024-341-024 600-1000 1
024-341-026 600-1075 1
024-341-027 600-1020 1
024-341-028 600-1010 1
024-341-035 600-0995 1
024-341-038 600-1090 1
024-342-005 600-1110 1
024-342-006 600-1095 1
024-342-011 600-1082 1
024-342-013 600-1080 1
024-342-016 600-1120 1
024-342-018 600-1115 1
024-342-019 600-1070 1
024-342-021 600-0990 1
024-342-024 600-1125 1
024-351-002 600-1065 1
024-351-003 640-0986 1
024-352-004 600-1370 1
024-352-009 600-0980 1
024-352-010 600-1355 1
024-352-014 600-0970 1
024-352-015 600-1330 1

73
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com139

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-353-006 600-1375 1
024-353-015 600-1325 1
024-353-032 600-1365 1
024-353-035 600-0960 1
024-353-036 600-1360 1
024-353-038 600-0965 1
024-353-039 600-1060 1
024-353-040 600-0940 1
024-353-044 600-1340 1
024-353-046 600-1335 1
024-353-047 600-1350 1
024-353-048 600-0950 1
024-353-055 600-1015 1
024-354-009 600-1890 1
024-361-014 600-0945 1
024-361-020 600-0705 1
024-361-024 600-0935 1
024-361-032 600-0710 1
024-361-033 040-0712 1
024-361-034 600-0930 1
024-362-009 600-0985 1
024-362-021 600-0720 1
024-362-022 600-0695 1
024-362-023 600-0715 1
024-363-003 600-0690 1
024-363-004 600-0685 1
024-363-009 600-0680 1
024-371-010 600-0725 1
024-371-015 600-0730 1
024-371-016 600-0485 1
024-371-017 600-0475 1
024-371-018 600-0740 1
024-371-026 600-0745 1
024-371-033 600-0465 1
024-371-034 600-0735 1
024-372-018 600-0955 1
024-381-003 600-0380 1
024-381-012 600-0375 1
024-381-013 600-0405 1
024-381-014 600-0410 1
024-381-015 600-0480 1
024-381-018 600-1875 1
024-381-019 600-0395 1
024-381-020 600-0390 1
024-381-021 600-0470 1

74
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com140

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-382-012 600-0385 1
024-382-020 600-0400 1
024-382-021 600-0435 1
024-382-022 600-0440 1
024-383-005 600-0415 1
024-383-007 600-0430 1
024-383-010 600-0445 1
024-383-019 600-0425 1
013-101-043 360-1095 2
013-141-012 800-1375 2
013-141-012 800-1380 2
013-151-042 360-1210 2
013-151-042 400-3390 2
013-151-042 400-3395 2
013-151-042 400-3400 2
013-151-042 400-3405 2
013-151-042 400-3410 2
013-151-042 400-3415 2
013-151-042 400-3420 2
013-151-042 400-3425 2
013-151-042 400-3430 2
013-151-042 400-3435 2
013-151-042 400-3440 2
013-151-042 400-3445 2
013-151-042 400-3450 2
013-151-042 400-3455 2
013-151-042 400-3460 2
013-151-042 400-3465 2
013-151-042 400-3470 2
013-151-042 400-3475 2
013-151-042 400-3480 2
013-151-042 400-3485 2
013-151-042 400-3490 2
013-151-042 400-3495 2
013-151-042 400-3505 2
013-151-042 400-3510 2
013-232-006 400-0470 2
013-232-006 400-0475 2
013-232-006 400-0480 2
013-242-034 400-0270 2
013-251-007 400-0030 2
013-251-007 400-0040 2
013-251-008 360-1105 2
013-361-021 360-1140 2
013-371-020 200-1570 2

75
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com141

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-371-020 200-1575 2
013-371-023 200-1630 2
013-371-026 200-1624 2
013-371-026 200-1629 2
013-371-027 200-1620 2
013-371-036 200-1635 2
022-151-054 100-0460 2
022-171-049 100-0585 2
022-181-061 100-0640 2
022-181-061 100-0645 2
022-181-061 100-0650 2
022-233-026 100-2095 2
022-233-026 100-2105 2
022-261-021 300-0420 2
022-261-021 300-0425 2
022-261-021 300-0430 2
022-261-021 300-0435 2
022-261-021 300-0440 2
023-381-017 500-1650 2
023-381-017 500-1655 2
023-381-051 500-1675 2
023-381-052 500-1670 2
023-381-053 500-1665 2
023-381-054 500-1760 2
023-381-055 500-1755 2
023-425-020 400-0570 2
023-432-003 400-0735 2
023-432-003 400-0740 2
023-461-025 400-0925 2
023-461-025 400-0930 2
023-462-024 400-0980 2
023-462-025 400-0965 2
023-471-020 400-0840 2
023-471-020 400-1170 2
023-471-022 400-1195 2
023-471-023 400-1200 2
023-471-023 400-1205 2
023-471-029 400-1275 2
023-471-029 400-1280 2
023-471-030 400-0825 2
023-471-030 400-1295 2
023-471-031 400-1320 2
023-471-031 400-1325 2
023-471-031 400-1330 2
023-481-002 400-0950 2

76
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com142

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-481-002 400-0955 2
023-481-003 400-0960 2
023-481-004 400-0970 2
023-481-004 400-0975 2
023-481-005 400-0985 2
023-481-005 400-0990 2
023-481-006 400-0995 2
023-481-006 400-1080 2
023-481-009 400-1105 2
023-481-009 400-1110 2
023-481-012 400-1150 2
023-481-013 400-1160 2
023-481-013 400-1165 2
023-481-016 400-1190 2
023-481-023 400-1225 2
023-481-024 400-1230 2
023-481-026 400-1240 2
023-481-027 400-1245 2
023-481-029 400-1175 2
023-481-030 400-1180 2
023-482-006 400-1285 2
023-482-006 400-1290 2
023-482-011 400-1005 2
023-482-011 400-1010 2
023-482-011 400-1260 2
023-482-015 400-1305 2
023-482-016 400-1310 2
023-482-018 400-1315 2
023-482-020 400-1335 2
023-482-021 400-0865 2
024-071-007 500-1575 2
024-071-007 500-1580 2
024-071-033 500-1610 2
024-071-044 500-1605 2
024-071-045 500-1600 2
024-071-046 500-1595 2
024-071-047 500-1590 2
024-071-048 500-1585 2
024-071-049 500-1695 2
024-071-054 500-1725 2
024-071-055 500-1720 2
024-071-056 500-1710 2
024-071-057 500-1715 2
024-071-058 500-1625 2
024-071-059 500-1620 2

77
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com143

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-071-061 500-1690 2
024-071-062 500-1685 2
024-191-046 600-0345 2
024-191-046 600-0346 2
024-191-047 600-0340 2
024-191-047 600-0341 2
013-231-008 450-0435 CL         
013-241-003 450-0410 CL         
013-242-005 450-0240 CL         
013-242-016 450-0347 CL         
013-242-033 360-1135 CL         
013-251-004 360-1120 CL         
013-251-004 450-1125 CL         
013-262-016 450-0789 CL         
013-264-007 450-0765 CL         
013-264-008 450-0760 CL         
013-381-003 250-0260 CL         
013-381-004 250-0250 CL         
013-381-004 250-0255 CL         
022-012-028 250-0430 CL         
022-012-029 250-0435 CL         
022-052-053 040-0017 CL         
022-052-053 360-0015 CL         
022-061-007 200-0008 CL         
022-212-001 350-0680 CL         
022-361-017 250-0185 CL         
022-361-018 250-0180 CL         
022-361-019 250-0175 CL         
022-361-045 200-0056 CL         
022-361-056 250-0188 CL         
022-361-071 250-0174 CL         
022-371-003 250-0245 CL         
022-371-004 360-1000 CL         
022-371-006 250-0235 CL         
022-371-007 360-0090 CL         
022-371-009 250-0230 CL         
022-371-010 360-0080 CL         
022-381-001 360-0050 CL         
022-381-002 360-0045 CL         
022-381-007 360-0030 CL         
022-381-008 360-0025 CL         
022-381-012 360-0040 CL         
023-431-003 360-1205 CL         
023-431-003 400-0665 CL         
023-431-003 400-0667 CL         

78
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com144

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-431-003 400-0669 CL         
023-432-006 450-0725 CL         
023-471-010 450-1085 CL         
023-482-012 450-1000 CL         
013-081-075 450-1150 CW         
013-101-006 350-0350 CW         
013-101-007 360-1100 CW         
013-101-018 350-0340 CW         
013-101-046 040-0040 CW         
013-101-064 350-0320 CW         
013-101-073 360-1090 CW         
013-101-081 350-1255 CW         
013-101-081 350-1575 CW         
013-101-083 350-1550 CW         
013-101-083 350-1565 CW         
013-101-083 360-1235 CW         
013-101-083 360-1240 CW         
013-101-083 360-1245 CW         
013-101-084 350-0330 CW         
013-111-004 360-1060 CW         
013-111-006 450-0460 CW         
013-151-006 450-0850 CW         
013-151-011 400-3500 CW         
013-151-035 450-0860 CW         
013-151-037 360-1220 CW         
013-151-038 450-3545 CW         
013-151-039 450-3540 CW         
013-151-040 450-3535 CW         
013-161-026 400-0345 CW         
013-181-015 800-2530 CW         
013-181-024 360-1165 CW         
013-221-013 450-0015 CW         
013-221-023 450-0025 CW         
013-221-024 450-0035 CW         
013-221-027 450-0060 CW         
013-221-029 450-0045 CW         
013-221-030 360-1110 CW         
013-231-009 450-0445 CW         
013-232-005 400-0465 CW         
013-232-007 450-0165 CW         
013-233-002 450-0390 CW         
013-233-005 450-0370 CW         
013-233-011 450-0185 CW         
013-233-012 450-0175 CW         
013-233-013 360-1145 CW         

79
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com145

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-233-013 400-0378 CW         
013-233-013 400-0379 CW         
013-241-004 450-0400 CW         
013-241-022 450-0215 CW         
013-241-024 450-0245 CW         
013-241-026 450-0285 CW         
013-241-029 450-0360 CW         
013-242-001 450-0220 CW         
013-242-002 450-0225 CW         
013-242-003 450-0230 CW         
013-242-004 450-0235 CW         
013-242-011 450-0315 CW         
013-242-027 450-0335 CW         
013-242-032 450-0349 CW         
013-251-009 450-0020 CW         
013-251-010 450-0050 CW         
013-251-010 450-0055 CW         
013-251-011 040-0060 CW         
013-261-001 450-0080 CW         
013-261-003 450-0100 CW         
013-261-012 450-0520 CW         
013-261-013 450-0525 CW         
013-261-014 450-0530 CW         
013-261-015 450-0105 CW         
013-261-020 450-0125 CW         
013-261-021 450-0810 CW         
013-261-022 450-0820 CW         
013-261-024 450-0085 CW         
013-261-024 450-0090 CW         
013-261-025 360-1130 CW         
013-261-025 450-0120 CW         
013-261-026 450-0130 CW         
013-262-001 450-0490 CW         
013-262-002 450-0500 CW         
013-262-003 450-0535 CW         
013-262-006 450-0805 CW         
013-262-008 450-0770 CW         
013-262-014 450-0755 CW         
013-263-001 450-0132 CW         
013-263-001 450-0135 CW         
013-263-001 450-0140 CW         
013-263-001 450-0815 CW         
013-263-002 450-0150 CW         
013-263-003 450-0155 CW         
013-263-004 450-0160 CW         

80
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com146

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-263-005 450-0170 CW         
013-263-006 450-0180 CW         
013-263-006 450-0190 CW         
013-263-007 450-0620 CW         
013-263-009 450-0355 CW         
013-264-004 450-0785 CW         
013-264-006 450-0775 CW         
013-264-006 450-0780 CW         
013-264-017 450-0795 CW         
013-264-018 450-0800 CW         
013-264-019 360-1225 CW         
013-265-019 450-0200 CW         
013-265-019 450-0205 CW         
013-265-021 450-0210 CW         
013-265-022 450-0353 CW         
013-341-027 360-1055 CW         
013-381-002 200-1015 CW         
013-381-007 250-0080 CW         
013-381-007 360-1020 CW         
013-381-007 360-1025 CW         
022-012-001 200-0100 CW         
022-014-001 250-0095 CW         
022-051-001 250-0290 CW         
022-072-035 350-0010 CW         
022-072-037 355-0021 CW         
022-072-037 360-1075 CW         
022-093-031 350-0025 CW         
022-093-033 350-0040 CW         
022-093-033 350-0045 CW         
022-101-001 360-1065 CW         
022-121-004 300-1585 CW         
022-121-004 300-1595 CW         
022-121-004 300-1600 CW         
022-121-004 350-1580 CW         
022-121-008 350-0105 CW         
022-121-009 350-0120 CW         
022-121-010 350-0115 CW         
022-121-016 350-0080 CW         
022-121-017 350-0095 CW         
022-121-018 350-0085 CW         
022-121-020 350-0375 CW         
022-121-021 300-0070 CW         
022-121-022 350-0065 CW         
022-122-004 350-0050 CW         
022-122-005 350-0055 CW         

81
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com147

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-122-006 350-0060 CW         
022-122-011 350-0110 CW         
022-122-012 350-0125 CW         
022-122-013 300-0130 CW         
022-122-013 300-0135 CW         
022-122-014 350-0140 CW         
022-122-031 350-0090 CW         
022-122-033 350-0075 CW         
022-122-034 350-0035 CW         
022-122-035 350-0100 CW         
022-122-038 350-0030 CW         
022-123-007 350-0145 CW         
022-123-008 350-0150 CW         
022-123-009 350-0160 CW         
022-123-010 350-0205 CW         
022-123-011 350-0220 CW         
022-123-020 350-0255 CW         
022-123-023 350-0400 CW         
022-123-024 300-1586 CW         
022-123-037 350-0175 CW         
022-123-044 350-0240 CW         
022-124-004 350-0165 CW         
022-124-005 350-0168 CW         
022-124-006 350-0170 CW         
022-124-007 350-0210 CW         
022-124-008 350-0215 CW         
022-124-009 350-0225 CW         
022-124-031 350-0250 CW         
022-124-034 350-0265 CW         
022-124-035 350-0155 CW         
022-124-036 350-0235 CW         
022-124-037 350-0230 CW         
022-125-001 350-0260 CW         
022-126-001 350-0270 CW         
022-126-003 350-0275 CW         
022-126-037 350-0295 CW         
022-126-039 350-0290 CW         
022-126-041 350-0410 CW         
022-212-047 350-0675 CW         
022-251-018 350-0300 CW         
022-251-019 350-0305 CW         
022-251-020 350-0310 CW         
022-251-020 350-0315 CW         
022-261-064 350-0280 CW         
022-261-065 350-0405 CW         

82
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com148

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-361-011 250-0210 CW         
022-361-025 250-0165 CW         
022-361-052 250-0190 CW         
022-381-004 360-0035 CW         
022-381-006 250-0125 CW         
022-381-011 360-0020 CW         
023-151-009 800-0980 CW         
023-441-008 040-0752 CW         
023-441-009 450-1485 CW         
024-071-039 360-1160 CW         
013-264-021 040-0020 IN         
013-051-024 010-0010 IN         
013-051-024 010-0150 IN         
013-051-024 010-0160 IN         
013-051-024 025-1030 IN         
013-051-024 025-1035 IN         
013-051-024 360-1045 IN         
013-101-072 350-1085 IN         
013-131-033 015-0170 IN         
013-131-038 040-0051 IN         
013-261-009 015-0080 IN         
013-301-018 025-0190 IN         
022-063-001 005-0040 IN         
022-063-001 005-0050 IN         
022-063-001 005-0185 IN         
022-212-003 015-0060 IN         
022-301-025 005-0012 IN         
022-371-005 005-0010 IN         
023-081-014 005-0042 IN         
023-411-022 025-1040 IN         
023-461-029 020-0100 IN         
023-461-029 020-0110 IN         
024-142-043 010-0090 IN         
024-322-002 005-0015 IN         
013-085-008 200-1590 VR         
013-141-010 700-1195 VR         
013-151-043 400-0344 VR         
013-301-020 300-1145 VR         
013-311-006 300-0625 VR         
013-312-017 300-1460 VR         
013-321-007 100-2975 VR         
013-322-002 100-3010 VR         
013-322-006 100-0145 VR         
013-323-002 100-0205 VR         
013-323-004 100-0185 VR         

83
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com149

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

013-323-010 100-3015 VR         
013-324-002 100-0125 VR         
013-324-006 100-0085 VR         
013-324-013 100-0030 VR         
013-325-003 100-0090 VR         
013-325-009 100-0020 VR         
013-371-022 200-1625 VR         
013-371-035 200-1640 VR         
022-012-026 200-0445 VR         
022-013-040 200-0405 VR         
022-013-049 200-0455 VR         
022-013-053 200-0360 VR         
022-013-056 200-0420 VR         
022-014-004 200-0375 VR         
022-014-038 200-0090 VR         
022-014-045 200-0345 VR         
022-022-011 200-1195 VR         
022-023-014 200-1715 VR         
022-023-026 200-2510 VR         
022-023-031 200-2453 VR         
022-024-026 200-1190 VR         
022-024-045 200-2450 VR         
022-026-040 200-0010 VR         
022-031-018 200-0615 VR         
022-031-022 200-1202 VR         
022-031-024 200-0560 VR         
022-032-034 200-1790 VR         
022-033-042 200-1755 VR         
022-034-004 200-2550 VR         
022-035-022 200-2650 VR         
022-042-040 200-0650 VR         
022-043-010 200-0720 VR         
022-044-029 200-1905 VR         
022-044-037 200-1860 VR         
022-045-001 200-1865 VR         
022-045-024 200-2040 VR         
022-052-001 200-0310 VR         
022-052-012 200-0355 VR         
022-052-023 200-0280 VR         
022-052-029 200-0275 VR         
022-053-045 200-0065 VR         
022-053-053 200-0040 VR         
022-071-045 200-2740 VR         
022-071-089 200-2670 VR         
022-083-010 200-1975 VR         

84
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com150

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-083-016 200-2015 VR         
022-083-022 200-2375 VR         
022-083-047 200-2070 VR         
022-083-064 200-2130 VR         
022-084-009 200-2680 VR         
022-084-054 200-1950 VR         
022-091-009 200-2300 VR         
022-091-050 200-2355 VR         
022-131-050 200-2215 VR         
022-141-016 300-0800 VR         
022-151-077 100-0345 VR         
022-151-078 100-0360 VR         
022-151-085 100-0370 VR         
022-161-007 100-0625 VR         
022-162-012 100-0910 VR         
022-163-006 100-0940 VR         
022-163-010 100-0895 VR         
022-171-001 100-0335 VR         
022-171-002 100-0330 VR         
022-171-017 100-0450 VR         
022-172-029 100-0710 VR         
022-172-030 100-0715 VR         
022-172-048 100-0560 VR         
022-172-052 100-0555 VR         
022-172-055 100-0605 VR         
022-181-017 100-0755 VR         
022-181-059 100-0630 VR         
022-182-012 100-0990 VR         
022-182-016 100-1030 VR         
022-182-026 100-1410 VR         
022-182-029 100-1435 VR         
022-182-038 100-1500 VR         
022-182-063 100-0960 VR         
022-182-064 100-0970 VR         
022-182-068 100-0275 VR         
022-191-024 100-1100 VR         
022-192-003 100-1095 VR         
022-192-045 100-1520 VR         
022-193-019 100-1780 VR         
022-193-030 100-1565 VR         
022-193-037 100-1525 VR         
022-201-004 100-1300 VR         
022-201-020 100-1190 VR         
022-201-032 100-1345 VR         
022-202-010 100-1230 VR         

85
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com151

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

022-222-013 100-0850 VR         
022-223-002 100-0870 VR         
022-224-010 100-1610 VR         
022-225-013 100-1820 VR         
022-226-012 100-1605 VR         
022-226-013 100-1375 VR         
022-231-005 100-1455 VR         
022-231-014 100-1645 VR         
022-231-040 100-1490 VR         
022-231-042 100-1665 VR         
022-232-007 100-1685 VR         
022-232-015 100-1880 VR         
022-233-001 100-1590 VR         
022-233-013 100-1935 VR         
022-241-037 100-1740 VR         
022-242-036 100-2165 VR         
022-243-016 100-2380 VR         
022-261-035 300-0415 VR         
022-261-053 300-1305 VR         
022-282-001 100-1810 VR         
022-283-011 100-2195 VR         
022-291-015 100-2075 VR         
022-291-018 100-0255 VR         
022-291-036 100-1840 VR         
022-292-012 100-2070 VR         
022-292-016 100-2265 VR         
022-301-015 100-0800 VR         
022-302-010 100-0230 VR         
022-302-017 100-0805 VR         
022-303-005 100-2430 VR         
022-303-019 100-2435 VR         
022-312-018 100-2725 VR         
022-313-016 100-2735 VR         
022-321-011 100-0475 VR         
022-322-022 100-2535 VR         
022-323-035 100-2760 VR         
022-331-043 100-2405 VR         
022-331-054 100-2565 VR         
022-332-017 100-2835 VR         
022-333-014 100-2855 VR         
022-343-027 100-2905 VR         
022-353-009 300-0540 VR         
023-011-012 900-1400 VR         
023-012-003 900-1700 VR         
023-012-016 900-1720 VR         

86
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com152

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-012-029 900-1670 VR         
023-013-012 900-0620 VR         
023-013-022 900-1730 VR         
023-014-028 900-0615 VR         
023-015-012 900-0505 VR         
023-016-001 900-0465 VR         
023-016-018 900-0525 VR         
023-016-035 900-0560 VR         
023-017-006 900-0545 VR         
023-017-045 900-0630 VR         
023-017-046 900-0580 VR         
023-018-001 900-0635 VR         
023-018-022 900-0755 VR         
023-019-004 900-0430 VR         
023-019-036 800-0120 VR         
023-021-024 800-0315 VR         
023-021-026 800-0300 VR         
023-022-001 800-0240 VR         
023-023-002 800-0380 VR         
023-023-012 800-0400 VR         
023-025-014 800-0320 VR         
023-025-018 800-0075 VR         
023-025-029 800-0270 VR         
023-033-017 800-0480 VR         
023-035-001 800-0445 VR         
023-041-013 900-1575 VR         
023-041-047 900-1615 VR         
023-044-006 900-1600 VR         
023-045-008 900-0720 VR         
023-045-031 900-0750 VR         
023-046-031 900-0785 VR         
023-046-044 900-0830 VR         
023-047-036 900-0840 VR         
023-048-001 900-1335 VR         
023-048-011 900-0875 VR         
023-048-013 900-0885 VR         
023-049-003 900-1320 VR         
023-049-030 900-1010 VR         
023-051-017 900-0380 VR         
023-051-032 900-0260 VR         
023-052-005 900-0105 VR         
023-062-023 800-1595 VR         
023-063-006 800-1335 VR         
023-066-001 800-0505 VR         
023-071-019 800-0880 VR         

87
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com153

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-071-027 800-0960 VR         
023-081-003 900-1520 VR         
023-082-021 900-1460 VR         
023-083-018 900-1305 VR         
023-084-001 900-1465 VR         
023-084-016 900-1125 VR         
023-086-043 900-1060 VR         
023-087-016 900-1085 VR         
023-088-005 900-1100 VR         
023-088-010 900-1110 VR         
023-088-032 900-1290 VR         
023-088-041 900-1170 VR         
023-089-023 900-1160 VR         
023-089-030 900-1230 VR         
023-089-032 900-1150 VR         
023-089-037 900-1145 VR         
023-090-004 900-0305 VR         
023-090-013 900-1265 VR         
023-092-022 800-0635 VR         
023-092-035 900-0030 VR         
023-092-039 900-0190 VR         
023-093-012 800-2400 VR         
023-093-019 800-2420 VR         
023-094-002 900-0295 VR         
023-094-026 900-0100 VR         
023-094-037 900-0040 VR         
023-095-003 900-0045 VR         
023-095-035 800-0015 VR         
023-101-038 800-1585 VR         
023-102-010 800-2140 VR         
023-103-015 800-1840 VR         
023-104-018 800-1550 VR         
023-105-005 800-1545 VR         
023-106-020 800-1300 VR         
023-112-010 800-1525 VR         
023-112-033 800-1485 VR         
023-113-004 800-1275 VR         
023-113-013 800-1500 VR         
023-115-021 800-0915 VR         
023-119-009 800-0750 VR         
023-119-032 700-1765 VR         
023-121-014 900-0200 VR         
023-121-020 900-0315 VR         
023-122-018 800-2355 VR         
023-131-017 800-2285 VR         

88
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com154

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

023-133-004 800-1925 VR         
023-134-004 800-1975 VR         
023-141-024 800-1725 VR         
023-142-010 800-1765 VR         
023-142-020 800-1435 VR         
023-143-010 800-1470 VR         
023-143-017 800-1160 VR         
023-151-038 800-0985 VR         
023-161-049 800-2540 VR         
023-162-009 800-2085 VR         
023-163-032 800-1955 VR         
023-171-031 800-1875 VR         
023-172-050 800-2570 VR         
023-191-010 800-1400 VR         
023-192-040 700-1620 VR         
023-214-008 400-0545 VR         
023-215-009 400-1640 VR         
023-215-039 400-1720 VR         
023-215-056 400-1690 VR         
023-243-044 700-0390 VR         
023-271-057 700-0410 VR         
023-272-004 700-0495 VR         
023-291-015 500-0425 VR         
023-292-041 500-0210 VR         
023-292-061 500-0835 VR         
023-303-013 500-0590 VR         
023-303-043 500-0490 VR         
023-321-027 700-0605 VR         
023-351-009 500-0365 VR         
023-362-039 500-0560 VR         
023-363-019 500-0380 VR         
023-364-027 500-0505 VR         
023-371-023 500-1460 VR         
023-373-042 500-0670 VR         
023-382-011 500-1305 VR         
023-392-012 700-1725 VR         
023-423-039 400-1375 VR         
023-452-003 500-1485 VR         
024-013-044 700-1720 VR         
024-021-046 700-1470 VR         
024-061-043 500-1055 VR         
024-071-032 500-1615 VR         
024-071-043 500-1085 VR         
024-093-030 700-1885 VR         
024-093-035 700-1850 VR         

89
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com155

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


Exhibit D
Active Service Commitments

024-101-015 600-1230 VR         
024-123-010 600-2075 VR         
024-132-009 700-1545 VR         
024-133-008 700-1895 VR         
024-141-013 600-1720 VR         
024-142-027 600-1750 VR         
024-143-033 600-1525 VR         
024-151-019 600-2005 VR         
024-162-003 600-1835 VR         
024-171-032 600-1680 VR         
024-181-051 600-0335 VR         
024-182-047 600-0850 VR         
024-191-055 600-0355 VR         
024-211-003 600-1435 VR         
024-212-014 600-1930 VR         
024-221-037 600-1615 VR         
024-222-010 600-1630 VR         
024-231-007 600-0600 VR         
024-243-031 600-0585 VR         
024-253-015 600-0215 VR         
024-271-002 600-1310 VR         
024-301-022 600-0105 VR         
024-332-025 600-1160 VR         
024-341-031 600-1005 VR         
024-352-012 600-0975 VR         
024-353-049 600-1345 VR         
024-362-005 600-0700 VR         

Total Accounts 4032

90
PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.pdffactory.com156

http://www.pdffactory.com
http://www.pdffactory.com


EXHIBIT D 
Meter Designation definitions to Exhibit D to Resolution xx‐2013 

 
The attached list consists of the Cambria CSD Active Service Commitments. The column headings are as 

follows: 

A.P.N. ‐ Assessor’s Parcel Number 

Route & Service Number‐Number assigned to billing accounts that is used internally for CCSD purposes 

Meter Designation‐Explains the type of usage that the utility account is being billed for 

 

Meter Designation Codes: 

 

1 = Single Family Residential Accounts (SFR) 

2 = Multi Family Residential Accounts (MFR) 

IN = Internal CCSD accounts, and meters that are special agreement meters 

CL = Commercial Lodging Accounts  

CW = Commercial Accounts 

VR = Properties registered as a vacation rental, combination of SFR, and MFR 

 

 

 

 

157



158



 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES CCSD 

 

TO:  Board of Directors     AGENDA NO. 9.C. 
 
FROM: Bob Gresens, District Engineer   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: September 26, 2013 Subject: Consideration of An Agreement for   
              Consultant Services with CDM Smith for 
          Hydro-geological Modeling of the Lower San 
          Simeon Creek Aquifer to Support   
          Development of the Long-Term Water Supply 
          Project      
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of an Agreement for Consultant Services with CDM Smith for geo-
hydrological modeling of the lower San Simeon Creek aquifer.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The estimated cost is $78,139, which will be allocated to the Water Department.  Based on fiscal year 
2012/2013 results and fiscal year 2013/2014’s projected activity, Water Fund reserves of $18,017 are 
projected.  During fiscal year 2013/2014, Staff will work to identify cost savings and/or surplus Revenue 
to fund this project.   If these funding sources are not sufficient to fund the project, any excess cost 
would be funded by General Fund Reserves by way of a loan to the Water Fund.  Terms of any loan 
from the General Fund would require repayment by the Water Fund as soon as it has the ability to 
repay the loan.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
CDM Smith is a well-established consultant with principal fields of expertise in water, wastewater, and 
transportation.  Mr. Bruce Corwin, a Vice President at the firm’s Sacramento office, will serve as project 
manager on the hydro-geological modeling.  Mr. Michael Smith will serve as the project’s geologist.  
District staff is recommending an Agreement for Consultant Services with CDM Smith to model the lower 
San Simeon Creek aquifer to further support the EIS/EIR being completed by the Army Corps of Engineers 
on the District’s Long-Term Water Supply project. During discussions with the project team, it became 
apparent that such geo-hydrological modeling would better answer questions and concerns on avoiding 
potential impacts to the nearby creek and lagoon areas, particularly as they may relate to the brackish 
water alternative.  Because there are no federal funds available for such an effort, a direct agreement with 
the CCSD was proposed as the most expeditious means to allow continued progress to be made on the 
project’s EIS/EIR. This issue and need was also discussed with the Water Alternatives Ad-Hoc Committee 
on September 16, 2013, which recommended bringing it forward for the full Board’s consideration and 
approval.     
 
Attachments: 
 

 Agreement for Consultant Services 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT___ROBINETTE____ RICE___ 

159



Page 1 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

This AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made and 
effective as of September 30, 2013, between CDM Smith (“Consultant”), and the 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a political corporation of the State of 
California (“District”). In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. TERM 
 

This Agreement shall commence on September 30, 2013 and shall remain and 
continue in effect until January 15, 2013, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
2. SERVICES 
 

Consultant shall perform the tasks described and comply with all terms and 
provisions set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  
 
3. PERFORMANCE 
 

Consultant shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the best of his/her 
ability, experience and talent, perform all tasks described herein. Consultant shall 
employ, at a minimum generally accepted standards and practices utilized by persons 
engaged in providing similar services as are required of Consultant hereunder in 
meeting its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
4. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION 
 

District’s District Engineer, Bob Gresens, shall represent District in all matters 
pertaining to the administration of this Agreement. Bruce Corwin shall represent 
Consultant in all matters pertaining to the administration of this Agreement. 
 
5. PAYMENT 
 

The District agrees to pay the Consultant in accordance with the payment rates 
and terms set forth in Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
6. SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT WITHOUT CAUSE 
 

(a) The District may at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, 
suspend or terminate this Agreement, or any portion hereof, by serving upon the 
Consultant at least ten (10) days prior written notice.  Upon receipt of said notice, the 
Consultant shall immediately cease all work under this Agreement, unless the notice 

160



Page 2 

provides otherwise.  If the District suspends or terminates a portion of this Agreement 
such suspension or termination shall not make void or invalidate the remainder of this 
Agreement. 

(b) In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section, the 
District shall pay to Consultant the actual value of the work performed up to the time of 
termination, provided that the work performed is of value to the District.  Upon 
termination of the Agreement pursuant to this Section, the Consultant will submit an 
invoice to the District pursuant to Section 5.  
 
7. TERMINATION ON OCCURRENCE OF STATED EVENTS 
 
 This Agreement shall terminate automatically on the occurrence of any of the 
following events: 
 

(a) Bankruptcy or insolvency of any party; 
(b) Sale of Consultant’s business; or 
(c) Assignment of this Agreement by Consultant without the consent of 

District. 
(d) End of the Agreement term specified in Section 1. 

 
8. DEFAULT OF CONSULTANT 
 

(a) The Consultant’s failure to comply with the provisions of this Agreement 
shall constitute a default.  In the event that Consultant is in default for cause under the 
terms of this Agreement, District shall have no obligation or duty to continue 
compensating Consultant for any work performed after the date of default and can 
terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice to the Consultant.  If such failure 
by the Consultant to make progress in the performance of work hereunder arises out of 
causes beyond the Consultant’s control, and without fault or negligence of the 
Consultant, it shall not be considered a default. 
 

(b) If the District Manager or his/her delegate determines that the Consultant 
is in default in the performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, 
he/she shall cause to be served upon the Consultant a written notice of the default.  The 
Consultant shall have ten (10) days after service upon it of said notice in which to cure 
the default by rendering a satisfactory performance.  In the event that the Consultant 
fails to cure its default within such period of time, the District shall have the right, 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to terminate this Agreement 
without further notice and without prejudice to any other remedy to which it may be 
entitled at law, in equity or under this Agreement. 
 
9. LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  Consultant shall: 
 
 (a) Procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all 
notices which may be necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the 
services to be performed by Consultant under this Agreement;  

161



Page 3 

 
 (b) Keep itself fully informed of all existing and proposed federal, state and 
local laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees which may affect those 
engaged or employed under this Agreement, any materials used in Consultant’s 
performance under this Agreement, or the conduct of the services under this 
Agreement; 
 
 (c) At all times observe and comply with, and cause all of its employees to 
observe and comply with all of said laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees 
mentioned above; 
 
 (d) Immediately report to the District’s General Manager in writing any 
discrepancy or inconsistency it discovers in said laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, 
and decrees mentioned above in relation to any plans, drawings, specifications, or 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 (e)  The District, and its officers, agents and employees, shall not be liable at 
law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Consultant to comply with this Section. 
 
10. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to 
sales, costs, expenses, receipts, and other such information required by District that 
relate to the performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall maintain 
adequate records of services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of 
services. All such records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and shall be clearly identified and readily accessible. Consultant 
shall provide free access to the representatives of District or its designees at reasonable 
times to such books and records; shall give District the right to examine and audit said 
books and records; shall permit District to make transcripts therefrom as necessary; and 
shall allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings, and activities related to 
this Agreement. Such records, together with supporting documents, shall be maintained 
for a period of three (3) years after receipt of final payment. 

 
 (b) Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this 
Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, computer files, 
surveys, notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the services to 
be performed pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of the District 
and may be used, reused, or otherwise disposed of by the District without the 
permission of the Consultant. With respect to computer files, Consultant shall make 
available to the District, at the Consultant’s office and upon reasonable written request 
by the District, the necessary computer software and hardware for purposes of 
accessing, compiling, transferring, and printing computer files. 
 
 
 

162



Page 4 

11. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

(a)  Indemnification for Design Professional Services. Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, to the fullest extent permitted by law for all design professional 
services arising under this Agreement, Consultant shall indemnify, protect, defend and 
hold harmless District and any and all of its officials, employees and agents 
(“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, costs 
and expenses, including attorney’s fees and costs which arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant. 
 
 
 
 
12. INSURANCE 
 

Consultant shall maintain prior to the beginning of and for the duration of this 
Agreement insurance coverage as specified in Exhibit “C” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as though set forth in full. 

 
 

 
13. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT 
 

(a)  Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the District a wholly 
independent Consultant. The personnel performing the services under this Agreement 
on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and 
control. Neither District nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall have control 
over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, employees, or agents, 
except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that it or any of its officers, employees, or agents are in any manner officers, 
employees, or agents of the District. Consultant shall not incur or have the power to 
incur any debt, obligation, or liability whatever against District, or bind District in any 
manner. 

 
 (b)  No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with 
performance of this Agreement. Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in 
the Agreement, District shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to 
Consultant for performing services hereunder for District. District shall not be liable for 
compensation or indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness arising out of 
performing services hereunder. 
 
14. UNDUE INFLUENCE 
 

Consultant declares and warrants that no undue influence or pressure was or is 
used against or in concert with any officer or employee of the Cambria Community 
Services District in connection with the award, terms or implementation of this 

163



Page 5 

Agreement, including any method of coercion, confidential financial arrangement, or 
financial inducement. No officer or employee of the Cambria Community Services 
District will receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from Consultant, or from any 
officer, employee or agent of Consultant, in connection with the award of this 
Agreement or any work to be conducted as a result of this Agreement. Violation of this 
Section shall be a material breach of this Agreement entitling the District to any and all 
remedies at law or in equity. 

 
 
15. NO BENEFIT TO ARISE TO LOCAL EMPLOYEES 
 

No member, officer, or employee of District, or their designees or agents, and no 
public official who exercises authority over or responsibilities with respect to the project 
during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, 
in any agreement or sub-agreement, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed 
in connection with the project performed under this Agreement. 
 
 
16. RELEASE OF INFORMATION/CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

(a) All information gained by Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall 
be considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without District’s 
prior written authorization. Consultant, its officers, employees, agents, or 
subContractors, shall not without written authorization from the District Manager or 
unless requested by the District Counsel, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of 
support, testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories, or other information 
concerning the work performed under this Agreement or relating to any project or 
property located within the District. Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be 
considered “voluntary” provided Consultant gives District notice of such court order or 
subpoena. 
 
 (b)  Consultant shall promptly notify District should Consultant, its officers, 
employees, agents, or subContractors be served with any summons, complaint, 
subpoena, notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions, or other discovery request, court order, or subpoena from any person or 
party regarding this Agreement and the work performed thereunder or with respect to 
any project or property located within the District. District retains the right, but has no 
obligation, to represent Consultant and/or be present at any deposition, hearing, or 
similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with District and to provide the 
opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by Consultant. 
However, District’s right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right 
by District to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 
 
  
17. NOTICES 
 

164



Page 6 

Any notice which either party may desire to give to the other party under this 
Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, (ii) 
delivery by a reputable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal 
Express, which provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in 
the United States Mail, certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, 
addressed to the address of the party as set forth below or at any other address as that 
party may later designate by notice: 
 
  To District:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
     Cambria Community Services District 
     P.O. Box 65  
     Cambria, CA 93428 
 
  With a copy to:         Timothy J, Carmel, District Counsel  
     Carmel & Naccasha, LLP 
     1410 Marsh St. 
     San Luis Obispo, CA  93401  
       
  To Consultant: Bruce J. Corwin, P.E. 
     CDM Smith, Inc. 
     2295 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 240 
     Sacramento, CA 95833   
 
18.  ASSIGNMENT 
 

The Consultant shall not assign the performance of this Agreement, nor any part 
thereof, without the prior written consent of the District.  
 
19. GOVERNING LAW 
 

The District and Consultant understand and agree that the laws of the State of 
California shall govern the rights, obligations, duties, and liabilities of the parties to this 
Agreement and also govern the interpretation of this Agreement. Any litigation 
concerning this Agreement shall take place in the superior or federal district court with 
jurisdiction over the Cambria Community Services District. 
 
20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties relating to 
the obligations of the parties described in this Agreement. All prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, representations, and statements, or written, are merged 
into this Agreement and shall be of no further force or effect. Each party is entering into 
this Agreement based solely upon the representations set forth herein and upon each 
party’s own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems material. 
 
 

165



Page 7 

21. TIME 
 

District and Consultant agree that time is of the essence in this Agreement.  
 
22. CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL 
 

Consultant is bound by the contents of the Proposal submitted by the Consultant, 
Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.   
 
23. CONSTRUCTION   
 
 The parties agree that each has had an opportunity to have their counsel review 
this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be 
resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement 
or any amendments or exhibits thereto.  The captions of the sections are for 
convenience and reference only, and are not intended to be construed to define or limit 
the provisions to which they relate. 
 
24. AMENDMENTS   
 
 Amendments to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be made only with 
the mutual written consent of all of the parties to this Agreement.   
 
 
25. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT 
 

The person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant 
warrants and represents that he/she has the authority to execute this Agreement on 
behalf of the Consultant and has the authority to bind Consultant to the performance of 
its obligations hereunder. 
 

[Signatures on following page]  

166



Page 8 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first above written. 
 
Please verify all names below 
 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES              
DISTRICT 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
     Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Justine Harris, Acting District Clerk  
   
    
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONSULTANT  
 
 
 
By:__________________________
 
Its:__________________________ 

 
    

167



Page 9 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK PROPOSAL 
 
 

San	Simeon	Creek	Road	Brackish	Water	Alternative	

Ground	Water	Modeling		
The following summarizes the recommended scope of work for preparing a groundwater model to 

address issues for the EIS underway for the Cambria water supply project. This is specifically focused on 

Alternative 5 identified by the Army Corps of Engineers as the San Simeon Creek Road Source Water. 

Based on discussion with the Army Corps EIS contractor, there is a requirement to quantify the timing 

and magnitude of impacts of the proposed operations on San Simeon Creek flows, and associated water 

levels in the adjacent creek and downstream lagoon areas. The proposed modeling effort will develop a 

preliminary model to assess project feasibility and quantify impacts to the hydrologic system. This 

preliminary model can serve as a basis for the more refined detailed design model. 

Background	Information	
The area of interest includes the alluvial deposits of San Simeon Creek and portions of tributary valleys, 

which are located north of Cambria. The alluvial deposits extend about 3 to 5 miles inland from the 

ocean and consist of inter‐bedded sands and finer grain lithologies. The alluvial deposits are thought to 

extend beneath the Pacific, and are bounded by low permeability bedrock. The thickness of the alluvium 

ranges from more than 100 feet near the ocean, thinning in the upstream direction. The aquifer receives 

most of its recharge from infiltration of stream flow during the rainy season. Cambria has a well field 

producing water from three wells in the San Simeon alluvium, and also applies treated effluent down‐

gradient of the well field to recharge the aquifer and limit salt water intrusion. The alternative that will 

be evaluated using this model is an alternative water supply concept that utilizes blended secondary 

effluent and deep brackish water to recharge the aquifer after its treatment. The recharge water would 

be used to control saltwater intrusion and to maintain a mound separating the recharged secondary 

effluent from the well field. Treated water injected up‐gradient of the well field will provide additional 

available water during the dry season.  

An extensive study was conducted by the U. S. Geological Survey and reported in Water‐Resources 

Investigation Report (WRIR) 98‐4061. This study included development of a comprehensive 

interpretation of the valley hydrogeology and water budget and development of a groundwater model 

to assess various water supply alternatives. The report includes extensive water level monitoring data 

and summarizes parameters that were developed during the model calibration. The model was 

developed using an experimental variable density code. The model and associated data sets are no 

longer available and cannot be located, based on discussions with the USGS, and the principal 

investigator, who is no longer with the USGS. 

Scope	of	Work	
The objective of this model development scope of work is to provide preliminary quantitative estimates 

of the impact of the project on basin water levels, the basin water budget, stream flows and viability of 

the fresh water lagoon near the mouth of San Simeon Creek. Important species including southcentral 

168



Page 10 

ESU steelhhead, the endangered tidewater gobie and California red legged frog utilize the fresh water 

lagoon, and seasonal stream flows are important to support spawning in the creek. The model will also 

be used to assess hydrologic aspects of potential mitigation measures, if significant impacts to important 

resources are identified.  

This proposed model is a preliminary effort that will require refinement for design purposes if 

Alternative Concept 5 is selected as the preferred alternative. This preliminary model will address 

groundwater flow, with limited evaluation of water quality. Rigorous treatment of the variable density 

flow would require a significant effort, so this preliminary modeling will treat the system as an 

equivalent fresh water system. This will need to be modified for variable density flow for design 

purposes. Since the impact on surface water resources (creek flow, fresh water lagoon impacts) is the 

primary concern for evaluation of project impacts, an appropriate computer code must be selected that 

will allow evaluation of surface water and groundwater interactions. The most suitable model for this 

purpose must be able to account for the impact of these interactions on stream discharge. Several 

variable density models were assessed, including FEFLOW and SEAWAT. Both of these codes handle 

variable density and can assess surface water interactions, however, they do not directly assess stream 

flow, without complex linkage to an independent surface water model. Due to this limitation, use of 

MODFLOW/MT3D is recommended. The SFR2 package available in MODFLOW explicitly simulates 

surface water flows, as impacted by groundwater gains and losses. This combination does not directly 

address variable density flow, however, this factor will be approximated using simulated concentrations 

as a surrogate. The SEAWAT model is based on MODFLOW/MT3D, but does not use the SFR2 package, 

but rather a simpler surface water interaction package that does not account for changes in surface 

water flow. SEAWAT will not directly calculate the stream depletion. Many of the files from 

MODFLOW/MT3D are compatible with SEAWAT, so conversion to this code in the future is facilitated. 

Since the previous model developed by the USGS is not available, a new model will be configured using 

information from the WRIR 98‐4061, and recalibrated. The tasks to accomplish this and the assessment 

of the alternative are summarized below. 

Task 1 – Project Planning 

A conference call will be held with stakeholders including USACE and environmental AE to discuss 

specific requirements to support the environmental impact statement to focus the model development 

effort. A set of specific model objectives will be finalized on this call and reported back to the group. 

Requirements, including critical time periods for stream flow maintenance, minimum flows and other 

items will be discussed.  

Task 2 – Data Compilation 

Development of the model will be based on data published in the USGS report and information from the 

Cambria Community Services District and the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water 

Conservation District. The USGS report contains information on the extent and thickness of alluvium and 

hydro‐geologic characterization of the materials. In addition, they compiled information on water 

budget components, including estimates of steam flow, precipitation, recharge and pumping for the 

basin. None of the USGS information is available in a form amenable to preparation of modeling data 

sets, so this information will be digitized from figures in the report or entered from tables. The Cambria 

Community Services District maintains water level records, and water quality from selected wells in 

electronic format. They also have information on well production and percolation basin discharge rates. 

169



Page 11 

This information will be obtained and compiled into the project database. Staff will coordinate with the 

District to determine what data are available and to obtain copies. The District  shall provide CDM Smith 

with of San Simeon Creek and Van Gordon Creek channel bottom elevations in the area of interest. 

These data will be incorporated into the model.  

Task 3 – Model Configuration 

The model will be configured using a grid independent approach in a graphical user interface (GUI) in 

order to facilitate model refinement during the calibration process and for future enhancements for 

design. The conceptual model will include definition of the model area, location of boundary conditions, 

well and percolation pond locations and stream locations and characteristics. Initial estimates of 

hydraulic properties will also be incorporated. A uniform rectangular computational grid will be 

developed using a preliminary estimate of 30 foot spacing. This can be easily modified during the 

calibration process, if necessary. Vertical layering will be configured to allow assessment of vertical flow 

components, since management of the brackish water recovery and assessment of migration of the 

percolated treated effluent is important to the project. We estimate that up to 10 vertical layers will be 

incorporated in the model. Once the model framework is configured, including incorporation of 

hydraulic properties and water budget components, the model will be tested and modified to obtain a 

stable numerical solution to begin the calibration process.  

Task 4 – Model Calibration 

Model calibration is the process where model parameters are varied, within their range of uncertainty, 

to improve the agreement between model simulated results and observed field data. The observed field 

data that will be used for this comparison will include primarily water level observations. The calibration 

will include both steady state average conditions and temporal variation in a transient model. The 

calibration process will use both heuristic methods and automated parameter estimation to obtain an 

acceptable calibration. We expect that information on stream flow will be limited, requiring 

incorporation of uncertainty analysis in evaluation of the streamflow impacts. After completion of the 

flow calibration, the transport model in MT3D will be configured and tested to verify operation. When 

the calibration is completed, a conference call with stakeholders will be held to summary the calibration 

and to define specific simulations that are required for the impact assessment.  

Task 5 – Analysis of Alternatives 

Task 5 – Analysis of Alternatives 

Two base alternatives are anticipated in this scope of work, the no action, which would continue 

conditions that currently exist, and Alternative Concept 5. A number of iterations will be required for the 

Alternative Concept 5 simulations to assess possible mitigation measures. Each alternative will be 

configured in the model and simulated across the range of climatic conditions used in the impact 

analysis to determine effects on stream flow, water levels, and the fresh water lagoon/marsh area. 

Differences between the no‐action alternative and the simulated alternative will be used to define 

impacts. Incorporation of mitigating measures will be discussed with stakeholders after initial results are 

obtained. Sensitivity analysis runs will be conducted to assess the impact of minimal information on the 

surface water system and will be incorporated into the analysis 

170



Page 12 

Task 6 – Reporting (Deliverables) 

A report summarizing the modeling activities, calibration and assessment of alternative impacts will be 

prepared for incorporation as an appendix in the environmental impact document. This report will be 

prepared in draft and final form after resolution of comments from stakeholders. 

Task 7 – Project Management 

This task will include management of schedule and budgets. Internal quality assurance reviews will also 

occur in this task. Coordination meetings with stakeholders during the project will occur under this task.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

171



Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 
 

Level of Effort Estimate 
The estimated level of effort to complete this work is provided on a table, below. It is assumed that all 

meetings will be conducted by teleconference, with the exception of the on‐site meeting with the 

District.  

Task  Labor, h Labor, $  ODCs, $  OPs, $  Total, $ 

Task 1 ‐ Project Planning  12 
           

2,737  
            
137  

               
‐    

        
2,874  

Task 2 ‐ Data Compilation  44 
           

6,463  
            
323  

               
‐    

        
6,787  

Task 3 ‐ Model Configuration  64 
         

11,776  
            
589  

               
‐    

     
12,365  

Task 4 ‐ Model Calibration  76 
         

13,548  
            
677  

               
‐    

     
14,225  

Task 5 ‐ Analysis of Alternatives  60 
         

11,487  
            
574  

               
‐    

     
12,062  

Task 6 ‐ Reporting  80 
         

14,847  
            
742  

               
‐    

     
15,589  

Task 7 ‐ Project Management 
and Meetings  60 

         
13,570  

            
679  

               
‐    

     
14,249  

Total   396
         
74,428  

        
3,721  

               
‐    

     
78,149  

 
  

172



Page 14 

 

 
Schedule 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

173



Page 15 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Work, Consultant will 
maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below. Consultant 
will use existing coverage to comply with these requirements. If that existing coverage 
does not meet the requirements set forth here, Consultant agrees to amend, 
supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so. Consultant acknowledges that 
the insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this section constitute the minimum 
amount of coverage required. Any insurance proceeds available to District in excess of 
the limits and coverage required in this agreement and which is applicable to a given 
loss, will be available to District. 
 
Consultant shall provide the following types and amounts of insurance: 
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance using Insurance Services Office “Commercial 
General Liability” policy from CG 00 01 or the exact equivalent. Defense costs must be 
paid in addition to limits. There shall be no cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by 
one insured against another. Limits are subject to review but in no event less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
Business Auto Coverage on ISO Business Auto Coverage from CA 00 01 including 
symbol 1 (Any Auto) or the exact equivalent. Limits are subject to review, but in no 
event to be less than $1,000,000 per accident. If Consultant owns no vehicles, this 
requirement may be satisfied by a non-owned auto endorsement to the general liability 
policy described above. If Consultant or Consultant’s employees will use personal autos 
in any way on this project, Consultant shall provide evidence of personal auto liability 
coverage for each such person. 
 
Workers Compensation on a state-approved policy form providing statutory benefits as 
required by law with employer’s liability limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident or 
disease. 
 
 
Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance as appropriate shall be written 
on a policy form coverage specifically designated to protect against acts, errors or 
omissions of the Consultant and “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the 
policy must specifically include work performed under this agreement. The policy limit 
shall be no less than $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. The policy must “pay 
on behalf of” the insured and must include a provision establishing the insurer’s duty to 
defend. The policy retroactive date shall be on or before the effective date of this 
agreement. 

174



Page 16 

 
 
General conditions pertaining to provision of insurance coverage by Consultant. 
Consultant and District agree to the following with respect to insurance provided by 
Consultant: 
 
 1. Consultant agrees to have its insurer endorse the third party general 
liability coverage required herein to include as additional insureds District, its officials 
employees and agents, using standard ISO endorsement No. CG 2010. Consultant also 
agrees to require all Consultants, and subContractors to do likewise. 
 
 2. No liability insurance coverage provided to comply with this Agreement 
shall prohibit Consultant, or Consultant’s employees, or agents, from waiving the right of 
subrogation prior to a loss. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation rights against 
District regardless of the applicability of any insurance proceeds, and to require all 
Consultants and subContractors to do likewise. 
 
 3. All insurance coverage and limits provided by Consultant and available or 
applicable to this agreement are intended to apply to the full extent of the policies. 
Nothing contained in this Agreement or any other agreement relating to the District or its 
operations limits the application of such insurance coverage. 
 
 4. None of the coverages required herein will be in compliance with these 
requirements if they include any limiting endorsement of any kind that has not been first 
submitted to District and approved of in writing. 
 
 5. No liability policy shall contain any provision or definition that would serve 
to eliminate so-called “third party action over” claims, including any exclusion for bodily 
injury to an employee of the insured or of any Consultant or subcontractor. 
 
 6. All coverage types and limits required are subject to approval, modification 
and additional requirements by the District, as the need arises. Consultant shall not 
make any reductions in scope of coverage (e.g. elimination of contractual liability or 
reduction of discovery period) that may affect District’s protection without District’s prior 
written consent. 
 
 7. Proof of compliance with these insurance requirements, consisting of 
certificates of insurance evidencing all of the coverages required and an additional 
insured endorsement to Consultant’s general liability policy, shall be delivered to District 
at or prior to the execution of this Agreement. In the event such proof of any insurance 
is not delivered as required, or in the event such insurance is canceled at any time and 
no replacement coverage is provided, District has the right, but not the duty, to obtain 
any insurance it deems necessary to protect its interests under this or any other 
agreement and to pay the premium. Any premium so paid by District shall be charged to 
and promptly paid by Consultant or deducted from sums due Consultant, at District 
option. 

175



Page 17 

 
 8. Consultant will provide 30 days notice to District of any cancellation of 
coverage.  
 
 9. It is acknowledged by the parties of this agreement that all insurance 
coverage required to be provided by Consultant or any subContractor, is intended to 
apply first and on a primary, noncontributing basis in relation to any other insurance or 
self insurance available to District. 
 
 10. Consultant agrees to ensure that subContractors, and any other party 
involved with the project who is brought onto or involved in the project by Consultant, 
provide the same minimum insurance coverage required of Consultant. Consultant 
agrees to monitor and review all such coverage and assumes all responsibility for 
ensuring that such coverage is provided in conformity with the requirements of this 
section. Consultant agrees that upon request, all agreements with subContractors and 
others engaged in the project will be submitted to District for review. 
 
 11. Consultant agrees not to self-insure or to use any self-insured retentions 
or deductibles on any portion of the insurance required herein and further agrees that it 
will not allow any Consultant, subContractor, Architect, Engineer or other entity or 
person in any way involved in the performance of work on the project contemplated by 
this agreement to self-insure its obligations to District. If Consultant’s existing coverage 
includes a deductible or self-insured retention, the deductible or self-insured retention 
must be declared to the District. At the time the District shall review options with the 
Consultant, which may include reduction or elimination of the deductible or self-insured 
retention, substitution of other coverage, or other solutions. 
 
 12. The District reserves the right at any time during the term of the contract to 
change the amounts and types of insurance required by giving the Consultant ninety 
(90) days advance written notice of such change. If such change results in substantial 
additional cost to the Consultant, the District will negotiate additional compensation 
proportional to the increase benefit to District. 
 
 13. For purposes of applying insurance coverage only, this Agreement will be 
deemed to have been executed immediately upon any party hereto taking any steps 
that can be deemed to be in furtherance of or towards performance of this Agreement. 
 
 14. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that any actual or alleged failure on 
the part of District to inform Consultant of non-compliance with any insurance 
requirements in no way imposes any additional obligations on District nor does it waive 
any rights hereunder in this or any other regard. 
 
 15. Consultant will renew the required coverage annually as long as District, 
or its employees or agents face an exposure from operations of any type pursuant to 
this agreement. This obligation applies whether or not the agreement is canceled or 

176



Page 18 

terminated for any reason. Termination of this obligation is not effective until District 
executes a written statement to that effect. 
 
 16. Consultant shall provide proof that policies of insurance required herein 
expiring during the term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other 
policies providing at least the same coverage. Proof that such coverage has been 
ordered shall be submitted prior to expiration. A coverage binder or letter from 
Consultant’s insurance agent to this effect is acceptable. A certificate of insurance 
and/or additional insured endorsement as required in these specifications applicable to 
the renewing or new coverage must be provided to District within five days of the 
expiration of the coverages. 
 
 17. The provisions of any workers’ compensation or similar act will not limit 
the obligations of Consultant under this agreement. Consultant expressly agrees not to 
use any statutory immunity defenses under such laws with respect to District, its 
employees, officials and agents. 
 
 18. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained in this 
section are not intended as limitations on coverage, limits or other requirements nor as 
a waiver of any coverage normally provided by any given policy. Specific reference to a 
given coverage feature is for purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue, 
and is not intended by any party or insured to be limiting or all-inclusive. 
 
 19. These insurance requirements are intended to be separate and distinct 
from any other provision in this Agreement and are intended by the parties here to be 
interpreted as such. 
 
 20. The requirements in this Section supersede all other sections and 
provisions of this Agreement to the extent that any other section or provision conflicts 
with or impairs the provisions of this Section. 
 
 21. Consultant agrees to be responsible for ensuring that no contract used by 
any party involved in any way with the project reserves the right to charge District or 
Consultant for the cost of additional insurance coverage required by this agreement. 
Any such provisions are to be deleted with reference to District. It is not the intent of 
District to reimburse any third party for the cost of complying with these requirements. 
There shall be no recourse against District for payment of premiums or other amounts 
with respect thereto. 
 
 22. Consultant agrees to provide immediate notice to District of any claim or 
loss against Consultant arising out of the work performed under this agreement. District 
assumes no obligation or liability by such notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to 
monitor the handling of any such claim or claims if they are likely to involve District. 

177


	Agenda
	GENERAL MANAGER REPORT
	SR 6 A General Manager Rpt
	SR 6 A 2013 Gm Rpt Ferguson Group
	SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt Attach Sch of Cash Invest
	SR 6 A Fin Mgr Rpt Debt Schedule
	SR 6 A Fire Chief Report
	SR 6 A Fire Stats September 2013
	SR 6 A GM Face and Res Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Admin Svcs Office Rpt
	SR 6 A UM Mgr Rpt
	SR 6 A Dis Eng Rpt
	SR 6 A Attachment 1 to Well Level
	SR 6 A Attachment 2 to District Engineers 2013 09 01 Production
	SR 6 A Attachment 3 2013 09 15 SR Well Level Chart
	SR 6 A Attachment 4 to District Engineers SS Creek Levels Statistical Chart
	SR 6 A Attachment 5 to District Engineers SS Annual Levels 1998 to Mid Sept 2013
	SR 6 A Attachment 6 to Distric Engineers SS Creek 2013 Min Max Avg Chart
	SR 6 A Attachment 7 to District Engineers SS Levels Past 5 Yrs Chart 

	Consideration to Approve Expenditures for August 2013
	SR 7 A Expenditure Rpt for Aug 2013
	SR 7 A Expend Rpt Dept Codes

	Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular Meeting August 22 2013 Special Meeting September 9 2013
	SR 7 B 2013 0822 Draft Minutes
	SR 7 B 2013 0909 Draft Minutes

	Consider Resolution 39 2013 Authorizing a Money Market Bank Account at Heritage Oaks Bank 

	SR 7 C Appv Opening Money Mkt Acct
	SR 7 C 39 2013 Open Mkt Acct

	Discussion and Reconsideration of Extension of Intent to Serve Letters for 16 Multi Family EDUs Applicant Pacific Western Bank APN 024 191 062
	SR 9 A Discussion and Reconsideration Intent to Serve Extension Pacific Western Bank
	SR 9 A Attachment of Parcel Map
	SR 9 A Pacific Western Bank Letter
	SR 9 A Attachment 2008 Agreement
	SR 9 A Copy of August 2013 Staff Report Pacific Western Bank

	Discussion on the Status of Intent to Serve Letters Wait Lists and Update of the Existing Commitment List
	SR 9 B Discussion and Consideration on Status of ITS WL
	SR 9 B Exhibit B December 20 2012 List with Strikeouts and Proposed Changes
	SR 9 B Exhibit B 9 26 2013 Update to Non Active Service Commitment List
	SR 9 B Exhibit D Existing Commitment Active Service Meter Designation list 09042013
	SR 9 B Meter Designation Summary for Exhibit D
	SR 9 B Grand Total Utlity Billing Summary Page July August 2013

	Consideration of An Agreement For Consultant Services with CDM Smith for Hydro geological Modeling of the Lower San Simeon Creek Aquifer to Support Development of the Long Term Water Supply Project					


	SR 9 C CDM Smith Consulting Agreement for Geo Hydrological Modeling 
	SR 9 C Attachment CDM Smith Consult Svcs Agmt


